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PART I

Item 1. Financial Statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

[NEEIESE INCOME ......vvvete ettt bbb bbbttt bbb bbbttt bbb bbbt bbb bbbt bbbttt et ettt sebebettane $ 506 $ 773
Interest expense on debt held by:

HSBC @ffIlIAES. ...cveeetieeterect ettt b et b e bbbt b st b n s 55 51

NONEAFFTTTBLES .. ...t h et eb e b b bbb se b et st e e et et et et eneeaeeaesbeenas 219 328
INIEEIESE EXPEIISE ...ttt sttt e e e et h e h Rt R R R R R R e R e et n e r e 274 379
INET TNTEIEST INCOIME ...ttt ettt s e et bt b et b etk e et e e b st bt ebena st ne st 232 394
PrOVISION fOr CrEOIT IOSSES ... .couiriieieiteetere ettt b bbb b et e b e e e e e e et eaeesesne b 2 24
Net interest income after provision for Credit I0SSES ..........covveiiieiiieie e 230 370
Other revenues:

DErVatiVe FElGE0 EXPENSE. .......cuiiveririeeirieisieestiee e seete st tesaeseseesessesessesessesessenessessesessesessesessesessesessanessanes (90) (100)

Gain on debt designated at fair value and related deriVatiVes ..o 31 16

Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliateS ........ccvvevececeeeeres e 8 7

Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables held for sale..........ccooeieinininicnene, 111 454

OLNES TNCOME (0SG) ...ttt ettt ettt ettt bbbt bbb bt b st bt bt e b et b e e b e e b e s s et nbne 22 (23
TOAI OTNET TEVENMUES ...ttt ettt b et bbb bbb b et e s e b e e nnenes 82 354
Operating expenses:

Salaries and emMPloYEe DENEFITS. ..o 56 64

Occupancy and equipmMENt EXPENSES, NEL ........ecvierrrerereeeereeseeeeessese e sressesressessessessessessessesesseesessesses 9 9

Real Stale OWNEA EXPENSES. .......eiuiitirterie sttt sttt ettt ettt ae bt b bt saesbe s b se e bebeseese e s et et e seeneeaeeaesbenaas 12 22

Other servicing and admiNiSratiVe EXPENSES .......c.veerviirieiritirie ettt n e 80 105

Support services from HSBC affilllaleS......ccviiieiiiirire e sre s 60 68
TOtal OPEFALING EXPENSES ....veveiteieeeeeeeee et et e e e e testestestesteseesaesse e esseseeseesesbesbesaesbestestessentansensenseseeseesenrenses 217 268
Income from continuing operations DEfOre iNCOME TAX...........coiirririririee e 95 456
INCOME taX DENEFIT (EXPENSE) ... cueeeeeeeecterere sttt et see st tesae st e e sae e eneese e e eneesensenns 17 (152)
Income from CONtINUING OPEIALIONS .......ccviiiiiiiciie i se ettt st st s sr et e e e e e e ese e e eneereenas 112 304
Discontinued operations (Note 2):

L oss from discontinued operations BEfore iNCOME TaX ..........cvevevrereririese e (11) (119)

INCOME tAX DBNEFIT ... bbb et sttt b e ebe e 5 41
L0ss from disCONtINUEd OPEFAtIONS .........c.ccuiiuiitieieeie ettt et be ettt e et seeaeae e eaeeseeseeneesens (6) (78)
N T o0 TSR $ 106 $ 226

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
INEE INCOMIB ... ettt ettt et et s et e et e et et e et et e et eteseeeeseeeeseeeeseeesseseeseesssesensee e seeseeeeseeteseseesesnnsesnnseas $ 106 $ 226

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net change in unrealized gains (losses), net of tax, on:

Derivatives designated as cash floOW hEAgES ..o 14 168
Securities available-for-sale, not other-than temporarily impaired............ccooevevvievievinenesereereeseenens — (115)
Other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities available-for-sale...........ccooviiiiiiineneneicceeee — (@D}
Foreign currency tranglation adjustments, NEL Of taX .........ccoveereieieiie e — (20)
Other comprehensive INCOME, NEL OF TAX ..o 14 32
Total COMPIENENSIVE INCOME.......c.iiiiiie ettt st be st e e e e et eebesaeebesbesbesrebeseesseneeseenenns $ 120 $ 258

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions,
except share data)

Assets
L0 S 0 SO PE TSRS $ 237 $ 175
Securities purchased under agreementSto reSEll ... 5,226 6,924

Receivables, net (including $3.9 billion and $4.0 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively, collateralizing long-term debt and net of credit loss reserves of $3.0 billion

and $3.3 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively) ....ccccoevverreneineenens 23,326 24,173
ReCEVADIES NEA FOr SAIE ... e e e s re e e sreennas 2,420 2,047
Properties and eqUIPIMENT, NEL.........cooiiie ettt 68 68
REBI ESLALE OWNEM ...ttt ettt sttt e bt et 238 323
Deferred INCOMETAXES, NEL ........ciiiieeiceese ettt e st be s re et e eae e beeaeesbeeneesneeneesneeneas 2,505 2,580
(@1 = =55 = £ 1,493 1,417
Assets of diSCONtiNUEd OPEIALIONS.........cceierieieieeeeee et e e se e aeerenns 173 165
TOMAL ASSELS....vveviuiuiterereseuereret et et s bt e s se b et e b esese s b e b e bese s e s e s e b e b esese R e b e b e b e seRe s e b e b e s e sesesebebebesesesebesesenennantas $ 35686 $ 37,872
Liabilities
Debt:

Due to affiliates (including $504 million and $496 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, carried at fair Valug) .........cvvveveveviniesesceeeeeeeeeneeiens $ 8,749 $ 8,742

Long-term debt (including $7.3 billion and $8.0 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively, carried at fair value and $2.1 billion and $2.2 billion at March 31, 2014

and December 31, 2013, respectively, collateralized by receivables)..........cccoeeveenvenccninne, 18,593 20,839
10 €= 0 (= o RS 27,342 29,581
Liability for postretirement DENEFITS .......ocvii i 228 228
(@141 B T o T 1= TR 1,274 1,299
Liabilities of discontinUed OPEratioNS..........ccoveerieerieerieerie sttt 98 103
LIS t= U L= o | 1TSS 28,942 31,211
Shareholders’ equity
Redeemable preferred stock:

Series B (1,501,100 shares authorized, $0.01 par value, 575,000 shares issued and
(01012 00 1o ) IS OSSOSO 575 575
Series C (1,000 shares authorized, $0.01 par value, 1,000 sharesissued and outstanding).......... 1,000 1,000

Common shareholder’ s equity:
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 100 shares authorized; 68 shares issued at March 31, 2014

and December 31, 2013, rESPECLIVEIY) ..c..eiuiriirieieiieie ettt — —
Additional paid-iN-Capital ...........ccoreiriiiiire bbb 23,963 23,968

W ool 10101z =0 o L= o S (18,700) (18,774)
Accumulated other COMPreNENSIVE 10SS..........cviiiiiisisee et (94) (108)
Total common Shareholder’ S EUILY.........courirrireretere e 5,169 5,086
Total Shareholders” QUILY.........ccccviiieie ettt se et e e e eseeseeaenrens 6,744 6,661
Total liabilities and Sharenolders” BQUILY ........c.ccveccecieceeeeeeeee e ere e $ 35686 $ 37,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Preferred stock

Balance at beginning and end Of PEMOU...........cvrrirrrrrrenrrsr et eseeeees $ 1575 $ 1575
Common shareholder’s equity

Common stock

Balance at beginning and end Of PEriod ..o e — —
Additional paid-in-capital
Balance at beginning Of PEFTOU..........cccviiiiieie e e 23,968 23,974
Employee benefit plans, including transfers and Other ... (5) 4
Balance at €nd Of PEIHTOU ... ...coeiiiieeeeie ettt st 23,963 23,970
Accumulated deficit
Balance at beginning Of PEFTOU. ... e e (18,774) (19,187)
NS T Vot 0 L= RSSO 106 226
Dividends 0N Preferred SLOCK..... ... (32) (32)
Balance at end Of PEIOA..........coiiiieiceie ettt a e ne e ens (18,700) (18,993)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Balance at beginning Of PEMOM.........cciriiriire s (108) (257)
Other comMpPreneNSIVE INCOME........ccviiiirese e esertere et seesr e ae e e e eneeneeneeneenens 14 32
Balance at €nd OF PEITOU .......ccovuiiiiieiieesee et s e nse s (94) (225)
Total common shareholder’s equity at end of Period...........ccoeeveeviieneiesciesce e 5,169 4,752
Total shareholders' equity at end Of PEriOd..........ccooeiieiieiicece e e $ 6,744 $ 6,327

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities

NEL INCOMIE. ... ettt et et e s he e s beshe e s besbe e beeaeebeesbeebeeaeeebsenseeaeeseeeaeesbesasesbeenbesbeentenreenns $ 106 $ 226
Loss from discontinued OPEIBLiONS...........ccuiuiiciciciciiii s (6) (78)
INcome from CONtINUING OPEraLiONS.......c.couiiiuirieierieerieerie ettt bbb 112 304
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash used in operating activities:

ProviSion fOr Cradit IOSSES.........ciiiiirieirierteet e b bbbt nbenes 2 24

Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables held for sale...........ccccccciiicicinnnen, (111) (454)

(Gain) loss on sale of real estate owned, including lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments. 8) 8

Depreciation @and @MOFTIZALION. .........c.eiereerieie ettt sb e st ee et be e e e e e e aeeaeeaesaesreenas 2 2

Mark-to-market on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives ........cccceveveeeveceececcccccceceee, 37 68

Foreign exchange and derivative movements on long-term debt and net change in non-fair value

option related derivative assets and liabilitiesS...........covcveiiceiiic (38) (460)

Net change in Other @SSELS..........ciiiiii (€h) 9

Net change in other liabilitieS. ... s (25) 83

ONEr, NEL ..o 13 (36)
Cash used in operating activities — ContinuiNg OPEratioNS ...........cocucieiiciei s (17) (470)
Cash used in operating activities — discontinued OPErations..............c.covvinn (21) 9
Cash used in 0perating aCtiVItIES ..o s (38) (479)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net change in short-term securities available-for-Sal €. — 80
Net change in securities purchased under agreementsSto reSall ... 1,698 (1,115)
Net change in interest bearing deposits With DankKS..............coveiieiiiineine e — 968
Receivables:

INEL COHBCLIONS ...ttt b e b e b e bt bbb bt b b et st b et nbenes 477 885
Proceeds from sales Of real eState OWNEd. ..o 181 142
Purchases of properties and eqUIPMENE ..............ccueiiiiiiieiii s ) (D
Cash provided by investing activities — CONtiNUING OPEIatiONS.........ccociererere e 2,355 959
Cash provided by investing activities — discontinued OPErations...........c.coeveereereenerenereserese e — 215
Cash provided Dy iNVESLING GCHIVITIES. ......c.iiiieie et sre s 2,355 1,174
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

2013

(in millions)

Cash flows from financing activities

Debt:

Net change in due to affiliates...........ccuviiviiiiiiiic (1) (D

LoNg-term debt FEtired...........ccovueiiiiiii (2,224) (471)
Shareholders’ diVIdENS............ccuiiiiiiiiiii s (32) (32
Cash used in financing activities — ContinuiNg OPEratioNS ..., (2,257) (504)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities — discontinued Operations...........cocovcererereneereeesiesieseennns — —
Cash used in fiNaNCiNG ACHIVITIES ... s (2,257) (504)
INEL CNBNGE TN CASN ...ttt bbbt b et b e e bt e b et e b 60 191
Cash at beginniNg Of PEITOUW...........oeeeee oottt ee e et e e s s eees s se s se e eeeees e enees 198 397
Cash @t €N OF PEFIOUP ... ee e e e s e s es e ee e se s s seeee e e eessee s $ 258 588
Supplemental Noncash Investing and Capital Activities: -
Fair value of properties added to real estate OWNE ..o $ 88 170
Transfer of receivablesto held fOr SAl@ ... s 254 —

@ Cash at beginning of period includes $23 million and $200 million for discontinued operations as of January 1, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
@ Cash at end of period includes $21 million and $43 million for discontinued operations as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note Page Note Page
1 Organization and Basis of Presentation............ 9 9 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss........ 25
2 Discontinued Operations..............cccocevevevevennne. 9 10 Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits...... 26
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RESA ...t 27
4 ReCBIVADIES.......ccueceieveeeecceeecec e 11 12 BUSINESS SEgMENTS.....cccecvicieeeereerece e 29
5 Credit LOSSRESEIVES......ccvvriririeirieerieesie e 15 13 Variable Interest Entities.........ccoceeveeenerenienenn 30
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7 Fair Value Option........cccceeveeveeseniesnsenenieseens 19 15 Litigation and Regulatory Matters................... 37
8 Derivative Financia Instruments..................... 21 16 New Accounting Pronouncements................... 38

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

HSBC Finance Corporation is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC North America Holdings Inc. (“HSBC North
America’), which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc (“HSBC” and, together with its subsidiaries,
"HSBC Group"). The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of HSBC Finance Corporation and its
subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP’) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include al of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for
completefinancial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for afair
presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods have been made. HSBC Finance
Corporation and its subsidiaries may also be referred to in this Form 10-Q as “we,” “us’ or “our.” These unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 (the “2013 Form 10-K"). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the
current period presentation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that we will continue as a going concern. Such assertion
contemplates the significant losses recognized in recent years and the challenges we anticipate with respect to a sustained return
to profitability on acontinuing operations basis under prevailing and forecasted economic conditions. HSBC continuesto be fully
committed and has the capacity to continue to provide the necessary capital and liquidity to fund continuing operations.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect theamountsreportedinthefinancia statementsand accompanying notes. Actual resultscould differ from those estimates.
Unlessotherwisenoted, informationincluded inthese notesto the consolidated financial statementsrel atesto continuing operations
for al periods presented. See Note 2, “Discontinued Operations,” for further details. Interim results should not be considered
indicative of resultsin future periods.

2. Discontinued Operations

2012 Discontinued Operations:

Insurance On March 29, 2013, we sold our interest in substantially all of our insurance subsidiariesto Enstar for $153 millionin
cash and recorded again at sale of $21 million ($13 million after-tax), which is reflected in the table below.

There were no assets or liabilitiesin our discontinued Insurance operations at either March 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. The
following table summarizes the operating results of our discontinued Insurance business for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Net interest iNCOME aNd OtNEN FEVENUESY............vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseseeseseesee s sseseeeeseeseeseesessene s eeseseeeeneeseeeseees $ — $ 72

Income from discontinued operations DEfOre INCOME TAX ..........ccuieeieirieieneeeee e — 13
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@ Interest expense, which isincluded as acomponent of net interest income, was allocated to discontinued operations in accordance with our existing internal

transfer pricing policy. This policy uses match funding based on the expected lives of the assets and liabilities of the business at the time of origination,
subject to periodic review, as demonstrated by the expected cash flows and re-pricing characteristics of the underlying assets.

Commercial Inthe second quarter of 2012, we began reporting our Commercial businessin discontinued operations asthere were
no longer any outstanding receivable balances or any remaining significant cash flows generated from this business. At March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, assets of our Commercial business totaled $64 million and $63 million, respectively. Liabilities of
our Commercial businesstotaled $1 million at December 31, 2013. Therewere no liabilitiesin our Commercial business at March
31, 2014. Thefollowing table summarizesthe operating results of our discontinued Commercial businessfor the periods presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Net interest iNCOmME and OtNEN TEVENUES ..........c.eoovieeiecie ettt ettt sttt et e eate e teeeseeebeesnaeenee e $ 2 % 1
Income from discontinued operations before iNCOME TAX ... s 1 1

2011 Discontinued Operations:

Card and Retail Services On May 1, 2012, HSBC, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries HSBC Finance Corporation, HSBC
USA Inc. and other wholly-owned affiliates, sold its Card and Retail Services business to Capital One Financial Corporation
(“Capital One™). In addition to receivables, the sale included real estate and certain other assets and liabilities which were sold at
book value or, in the case of real estate, appraised value. Under the terms of the agreement, interestsin facilities in Chesapeake,
Virginia, Las Vegas, Nevada; Mettawa, |llinois; Volo, lllinois; Hanover, Maryland; Salinas, California; Sioux Falls, South Dakota
and Tigard, Oregon were sold or transferred to Capital One, although we entered into site-sharing arrangementsfor certain of these
locations for a period of time. Our Card and Retail Services businessis reported in discontinued operations.

The following table summarizes the operating results of our discontinued Card and Retail Services business for the periods
presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Net interest inComMe and OLtNEr FEVENUES............cccviiiiiice et s $ — $ —
L oss from discontinued operations before income tax\ .............oouivveeeeeeveeeeseeeee e (12) (133)

For thethree monthsended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the amountsinclude expensesrel ated to activitiesto compl ete the separation of the credit card operational
infrastructure between us and Capital One. We expect costs associated with the separation of the credit card operational infrastructure to continue through the
remainder of 2014. Additionally for the three months ended March 31, 2013, the amount includes an incremental expense of $100 million recorded based on
actions taken and actions planned to be taken in connection with an industry review of enhancement services products.

Assets and liabilities of our discontinued Card and Retail Services business, which are reported as a component of Assets of
discontinued operations and Liabilities of discontinued operationsin our consolidated balance sheet, consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
L0 S o ST SO PSSP $ 21 $ 23
OhEr BSSEISY) ........ooooveeeeeee e 88 79
ASSELS Of diSCONtINUEA OPEFBLIONS.......coveiirieieierieie ettt ettt st $ 109 $ 102
O HHADITEES® .....vveeooooeeeeeessereeesss s $ %8 $ 102
Liabilities Of diSCONtiNUEd OPEIaliONS..........cervererieririeirieesiee sttt er s er e bbb sr e sn e sr e r e ere e $ 98 $ 102

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, other assets primarily consists of current and deferred taxes.

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, other liabilities primarily consists of certain legal accruals.

10
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3. Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell

Securities purchased under agreementsto resell ("Resale Agreements") are treated as collateralized financing transactions and are
carried on our balance sheet at the amount advanced plusaccrued interest with abalance of $5.2 billionand $6.9 billionat March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, al of which were purchased from HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. ("HSI"). The market
value of the collateral subject to the Resale Agreements is regularly monitored and additional collateral is obtained or provided
when appropriate.

4. Receivables

Receivables consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)

Real estate secured:

L T L = o $ 22599 $ 23,568

S er0) 1ol 1= TSROSO 2,882 3,016
Total real estate SECUrEd FECEIVANIES.........coveeeiecrei ettt et eebe e saaeereesree s 25,481 26,584
Accrued interest iNCOME AN OLNET .........ccuev it sbe s ebeeeresearis 842 862
Credit 10SS reServe for reCEIVADIES ..o e s re s re e (2,997) (3,273)
TOtal FECEIVADIES, NEL......cveieiieieecee ettt st et st e st et et st e besbesaesbesbesbesbssbesbestesenas $ 23,326 $ 24,173

Deferred origination fees, net of costs, totaled $175 million and $183 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, and are included in the receivable balance. Net unamortized premium on our receivables totaled $92 million and
$102 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Collateralized funding transactions Secured financings previously issued under public trusts with a balance of $2,073 million
at March 31, 2014 are secured by $3,899 million of closed-end real estate secured receivables. Secured financings previously
issued under public trusts with a balance of $2,200 million at December 31, 2013 were secured by $4,020 million of closed-end
real estate secured receivables.

Age Analysis of Past Due Receivables The following tables summarize the past due status of our receivables at March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013. The aging of past due amounts is determined based on the contractual delinquency status of payments
made under the receivable. An account is generally considered to be contractually delinquent when payments have not been made
in accordance with the loan terms. Delinquency status is affected by customer account management policies and practices such
asre-age.

Past Due

Total Total
March 31, 2014 30 - 89 days 90+ days Past Due Current?  Receivables®
(in millions)
Real estate secured:
ST A 1T LT $ 1783 $ 1342 $ 3125 $ 19474 $ 22,599
7 o0 010 [ 1T <10 TR 192 176 368 2,514 2,882
Total real estate secured receivables.........ccoovnircnnenee. $ 1975 $ 1518 $ 3493 $ 21988 $ 25481
Past Due Total Total
December 31, 2013 30 - 89 days 90+ days Past Due Current?  Receivables®
(in millions)
Real estate secured:
e A 1T S O $ 2462 $ 1538 $ 4000 $ 19568 $ 23,568
TS e 0] 110 [T o 1RO 249 192 441 2,575 3,016

Total real estate secured receivables.........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeencennn, $ 2711 $ 1730 $ 4441 $ 22143 $ 26,584
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@ Receivables less than 30 days past due are presented as current.

@ Thereceivable balancesincluded in thistable reflects the principal amount outstanding on the loan and certain basis adjustmentsto the loan such as deferred
feesand costson originated | oans, purchaseaccounting fair val ueadjustmentsand premiumsor discountson purchased | oans. However, thesebasi sadjustments

on theloansare excluded in other presentations of dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and nonperforming receivable account balances.

Nonaccrual receivables Nonaccrual consumer receivables and nonaccrual receivables held for sale are all receivables which are
90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as second lien loans (regardiess of delinquency status) where the first lien loan
that we own or serviceis 90 or more days contractually delinquent. Nonaccrual receivables do not include receivables which have
made qualifying payments and have been re-aged such that the contractual delinquency status has been reset to current. If are-
aged loan subsequently experiences payment default and becomes 90 or more days contractually delinquent, it will be reported as
nonaccrual. Nonaccrual receivables and nonaccrual receivables held for sale consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Nonaccrual receivable portfolios:
Rl €5taE SECUTEU™M ..o $ 1544 $ 1,769
Recaivables held fOr SAIED ... s 1,584 1,422
Total NONACCTUAl FECEIVADIES™..........ooeoeeeeeeeeeeee et e s ee e ese e se e sn e $ 3128 $ 3,191

@ AtMarch 31,2014 and December 31,2013, nonaccrual real estatesecured receivablesheld for investment include$681 million and $639 million, respectively,
of receivables that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ For adiscussion of the movements between the components of nonaccrual receivables, see Note 6, "Receivables Held for Sale," which includes discussion

of theformal program introduced in the second quarter of 2013 to transfer receivables (meeting pre-determined criteria) to held for sale when the receivable
iswritten down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies.

®  Nonaccrual receivables do not include receivables totaling $1,054 million and $953 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which
have been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which are less than 90 days contractually delinquent
and not accruing interest.

The following table provides additional information on our total nonaccrual receivables:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest income that would have been recorded if the nonaccrual receivable had been current in
accordance with contractual terms during the Period...........cooeeireerieeniese e $ 93 % 199
Interest income that was recorded on nonaccrual receivables included in interest income on
nonaccrual 10ans during the PEITOU...........coeiiiiiie bbb 8 14

Troubled Debt Restructurings Troubled debt restructurings(" TDR Loans") represent receivablesfor whichtheoriginal contractual
terms have been modified to provide for terms that are at less than a market rate of interest for new receivables because of
deterioration in the borrower’s financial status.

Modifications for real estate secured and personal non-credit card receivables may include changes to one or more terms of the
loan, including, but not limited to, achangein interest rate, an extension of the amortization period, areduction in payment amount
and partial forgiveness or deferment of principal. A substantial amount of our modificationsinvolveinterest rate reductions which
lower the amount of interest income we are contractually entitled to receive for a period of time in future periods. By lowering
the interest rate and making other changes to the loan terms, we believe we are able to increase the amount of cash flow that will
ultimately be collected from the loan, given the borrower's financial condition. Re-aging is an account management action that
resultsin the resetting of the contractual delinquency status of an account to current which generally requires the receipt of two
qualifying payments. TDR Loans are reserved for based on the present val ue of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans
original effectiveinterest rate which generally resultsin ahigher reserve requirement for these loans. The portion of the credit loss
reserves on TDR Loans that is associated with the discounting of cash flows is released from credit |oss reserves over the life of
the TDR Loan.

12



HSBC Finance Corporation

Thefollowingtablepresentsinformation about recei vablesand receivableshel d for sal ewhich asaresult of any account management
action taken during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 became classified as TDR Loans.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Real estate secured:

[ T L L= R $ 225 $ 458
<o) 1o I 1= TS 28 51
Real estate secured receivables held for SAlE.......ooviiiiriccscccc e 19 38
TOtal rEAl EStALE SECUNEM .......eeveeeieete ettt ettt sttt e e st e b e s be et e eae e beeseeareeaeesaeeneesaeentesaeentesaeentenneanes 272 547
Personal non-credit card receivables held fOr SAE Y ... en s — 28
TOLAI ettt ettt e et e ee et et e et ettt e e ettt et ee e e et ettt en e et eeeen e eee e $ 272 $ 575

@ Asdiscussed more fully in Note 7, "Receivables Held for Sale," in our 2013 Form 10-K , we sold our personal non-credit card receivable portfolio on April
1, 2013.

@ Thefollowing table summarizes the actions taken during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 which resulted in the above receivables being
classified asa TDR Loan.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
$ 244 $ 219

28 356
$ 272 $ 575

Receivables and receivables held for sale reported as TDR Loans consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

TDR Loans: Y@
Real estate secured:

T £ 1= 3OO $ 10380 $ 10,633
SECONA TN ..ot ees e s s 1,024 1,047
Real estate secured receivables held fOr SAIE® ...t 1,651 1,392
Total real estate SECUred TDR LOGNS........c.ocouiiuiiieiciecee ettt sttt e be e e reenesaeenaesanenea $ 13055 $ 13,072

Credit loss reserves for TDR Loans:®
Real estate secured:

[ TS A 1= 0 TSRS $ 209 $ 2,294
TS o0 010 [ 1T o R 345 360
Total credit loss reserves for rea estate secured TDR LOANS ........ovveoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e, $ 2444 $ 2,654

@ TDR Loans are considered to be impaired loans regardless of accrual status.

@ TheTDR Loan balancesincluded in the table above reflect the current carrying amount of TDR Loans and includes all basis adjustments on the |oan, such
as unearned income, unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated loans and premiums or discounts on purchased loans as well as any charge-off
recorded in accordance with our existing charge-off policies. Additionally, the carrying amount of TDR Loans classified as held for sale has been reduced
by both the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment as well as the credit loss reserves associated with these receivables prior to the transfer. The
following table reflects the unpaid principal balance of TDR Loans:
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March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Readl estate secured:

LT 8 = o TSRS $ 10,729 $ 10,983
LSS oo 0o =TT 1,168 1,188
Real estate secured receivables NEIA fOr SAIE........cvviiciieece e 2,776 2,587
TOtal rEAl ESEALE SECUIEM. ......ccvieuieveiteeteeete et te et et e steste et e stesae et e beeae e sesbeeseesaesasessebeessessesbeeseensssasensenbeeseessesaeeseensesas $ 14673 $ 14,758

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the unpaid principal balances reflected above include $207 million and $92 million, respectively, which has
received areduction in the unpaid principal balance as part of an account management action.

®  There are no credit |oss reserves associated with receivables classified as held for sale asthey are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, TDR Loans held for investment totaling $637 million and $604 million, respectively, are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

®

Included in credit loss reserves.

The following table discloses receivables and receivables held for sale which were classified as TDR Loans during the previous
12 months which subsequently became sixty days or greater contractually delinquent during the three months ended March 31,
2014 and 2013.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Real estate secured:

FIESE LB ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e et e et ete et esesaesestesesseseeseneesensesesesesesesseseetesessennarenes $ 142 ¢ 308
SECONA LIBN ...ttt ettt e et e b e e aeesbeeaeeebeeasesaeessesaeebesaeesbesaeesbesseebeeasanbeeasenreenns 17 36
Real estate secured receivables held fOr SAE ..o viiiiecccccecc e 16 32
TOtal rEAl ESLALE SECUNEM ......cviciecieciect ettt ettt et e e st e e ee e e besbe e beebeenbesaeebeeaeesseeneesbeensesaeensesaeentessaans 175 376
Personal non-credit card receivables held Or SAIEW ... — 21
o] - OSSR SRRSO $ 175 $ 397

@ Asdiscussed more fully in Note 7, "Receivables Held for Sale," in our 2013 Form 10-K,, we sold our personal non-credit card receivable portfolio on April
1, 2013.

The following table provides additional information relating to TDR Loans, including TDR Loans held for sale:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Average balance of TDR Loans:
Real estate secured:
LS 1= TSP $ 11,990 $ 14,730
1SS oo o 1 1T o T OSSR 1,035 1,190
TOtal real ESLALE SECUNEQ. ... .o ettt ettt b e a e et st esee e e beseese e e e e e e eneeneenas 13,025 15,920
Personal NON-CIEAit CAIT ...........ciiieuirieiieerie ettt sttt sttt ettt et neebe e — 574
Total average balance Of TDR LOGNS.......cciriiiriiiie ettt st se e e e e e e eneas $ 13,025 $ 16,494

Interest income recognized on TDR Loans:
Real estate secured:

LT 1= PSP $ 206 $ 242
= w0 00 I 1= USSR 25 28

TOtal real ESAIE SECUNEM. ......eeeeieeiieeieeet ettt st 231 270
Personal NON-CrEiT CAIG ..........o ettt b bbb e e e e e e e e e e ene e ene — 40
Total interest income recognized 0N TDR LOANS........coiirrierieenee ettt sre s seesesees $ 231 % 310
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Consumer Receivable Credit Quality Indicators Credit quality indicators used for consumer receivables include a loan's
delinquency status, whether the loan is performing and whether the loan isa TDR Loan.

Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and as a percent of total
receivables and receivables held for sale (“ delinquency ratio”) for our loan portfolio:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Dollars of Delinquency Dollars of Delinquency
Delinquency Ratio Delinquency Ratio

(dollars are in millions)
Real estate secured:

TS ol 1T= o [ SRR $ 1,928 8.53% $ 2,387 10.13%

1SS o010 1T o TS 243 8.43 275 9.12

Real estate secured receivablesheld for sale........coovveieiecnciccicece 1,630 67.36 1,473 71.96
Total real estate SECUIEd........cceiveveeieeeeeecee e $ 3,801 13.62% $ 4,135 14.44%

Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of receivables and receivables held for sale:

Nonaccrual
Accruing Loans Loans® Total
(in millions)
At March 31, 2014
Real estate SECUrEd™ P ...........ooooice s $ 23937 $ 1544 $ 25481
RecaivableS held fOr SAl........oouiiiiie e 836 1,584 2,420
LI L RS $ 24,773 $ 3,128 $ 27,901
At December 31, 2013 -
Real estate SECUrEdM@ ...........ooivi s $ 24815 $ 1769 $ 26584
Receivables held fOr Sale..........ooiiiiiiiiie e e 625 1,422 2,047
LI L S $ 25440 $ 3191 $ 28,631

@ AtMarch 31,2014 and December 31,2013, nonaccrual real estate secured receivablesheld for investment include $681 million and $639 million, respectively,
of receivables that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, nonaccrual real estate secured receivables held for investment include $1,076 million and $1,245 million,
respectively, of TDR Loans, some of which may also be carried at fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

®  Nonaccrual loans do not include receivables totaling $1,054 million and $953 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which have
been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which are less than 90 days contractually delinquent and not
accruing interest.

Troubled debt restructurings See discussion of TDR Loans above for further details on this credit quality indicator.

5. Credit Loss Reserves

Thefollowing table summarizes the changesin credit loss reserves by product/class and the related receivable balance by product
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:
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Real Estate Secured

Personal Non-
First Lien Second Lien Credit Card Total

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014:

Credit loss reserve balance at beginning of period...........cccoeveveceiineceeecccceens $ 2,777 $ 496 $ — $ 3273
Provision fOr Credit IOSSES.........ccveiieeiiceece ettt eneas (24) 30 4 2
Net charge-offs:
ChargE-OffS ) .......ovvooeveeseessiese s (248) (63) — (311)
RECOVEITES ...ttt sttt sttt b e b e e e b b e nesba e enesaene 21 8 4 33
Total net Charge-offs........ccciiiiii s (227) (55) 4 (278)
Credit loss reserve balance at end of Period ........cccooeireinineeseiereeeee e $ 2526 $ 471 $ — $ 2,997
Reserve components: -
Collectively evaluated for impairmeNt............ccceereveeererceeeee e $ 414 % 125 $ — $ 539
Individually evaluated for impPairmMEnt™®............ccovvieereereeeseeeseeeeseeeeseeeeseseseseeeees 2,060 345 — 2,405
Receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
1€SS COSE 10 SEI L. 51 1 — 52
Receivables acquired with deteriorated credit quality ..........ccocoerrereirenneneenene 1 — — 1
Total Credit I0SS TESEIVES......cvi ettt ettt te st ae s e s aeesaeesreesreens $ 2526 $ 471 $ — $ 2997
Receivables: -
Collectively evaluated for impairment..........cccoeorereeiieineees e $ 11,924 $ 1,850 $ — $ 13,774
Individually evaluated for impairment®..............ccooocooovvimereeosereeeessseee e 9,789 978 — 10,767
Receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
[€SS COSE 10 SEIL....eee e et 876 51 — 927
Receivables acquired with deteriorated credit quality .......ccoooevereieiececenceseine 10 3 — 13
TOtal FECEIVADIES ...t nne s $ 22599 $ 2,882 $ — $ 25,481
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013: -
Credit loss reserve balance at beginning of Period.........ccccveeiiereiivcceseseseseesens $ 3867 $ 740 $ — $ 4,607
Provision for Credit [OSSES.........uviirrier e 16 40 (32 24
Net charge-offs:
Charge-offS.......ccoiiiiiii (301) (98) — (399)
RECOVEITES ...ttt ettt st b et b e e b b 29 12 32 73
Total Net Charge-offS........cciiici s (272) (86) 32 (326)
Other 8 — — 8
Credit loss reserve balance at end of Period ........cocooeireininenecereeeee e $ 3619 $ 694 $ — $ 47313
Reserve components: -
Collectively evaluated for impairment...........ocoeorreirnneenrse e $ 615 $ 206 $ — % 821
Individually evaluated for impPairmMEnt™®............ccoovveereereeeseeereeeeseeeeseeeese s 2,846 486 — 3,332
Receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
1€SS COSE 10 SEIL....niiiiie e 153 1 — 154
Receivables acquired with deteriorated credit quality ..........ccocoeerereinennieneenene 5 1 — 6
Total Credit [OSSFESEIVES......c.ccuvceeceereece ettt be b b enas $ 3619 $ 694 $ — $ 4313
Receivables: -
Collectively evaluated for iMmpairmMENt..........ccceereeeerenesceseesesereeeseesesesesens $ 15241 $ 2275 % — $ 17,516
Individually evaluated for impairment®..............ccooo.coomvveimereecnsreeeeseseee e 10,968 1,125 — 12,093
Receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
[€SS COSE 10 SAIL....eeeee et e 2,240 66 — 2,306
Receivables acquired with deteriorated credit quality .......ccccoovveveieiecvesiceseine 12 3 — 15
TOtal FECEIVADIES ...t $ 28461 $ 3469 $ — $ 31,930
®

These amounts represent TDR Loans for which we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow methodology. Each loan isindividually identified as a
TDR Loan and then grouped together with other TDR Loans with similar characteristics. The discounted cash flow impairment analysisis then applied to
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these groups of TDR Loans. The receivable balance above excludes TDR Loansthat are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
less cost to sell which totaled $637 million and $1,728 million a March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve component above excludes credit loss
reserves for TDR Loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $39 million and $107
million at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These credit |oss reserves are reflected within receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair
value of the collateral less cost to sell in the table above.

@ For collateral dependent receivables that are transferred to held for sale, existing credit loss reserves at the time of transfer are recognized as a charge-off.
We transferred to held for sale certain real estate secured receivables during three months ended March 31, 2014 that were carried at the lower of amortized
cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell and recognized the existing credit loss reserves on these receivables as additional charge-off totaling $20
million during three months ended March 31, 2014.

6. Receivables Held for Sale

Real Estate Secured Receivables Red estate secured receivables held for sale which are carried at the lower of amortized cost
or fair value totaled $2,420 million and $2,047 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Asdiscussed in prior filings, during the second quarter of 2013, we adopted a formal program to initiate sale activities for real
estate secured receivablesin our held for investment portfolio when areceivable meeting pre-determined criteriais written down
to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies
(generally 180 days past due). During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred real estate secured receivables to
held for sale with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $439 million at the time of transfer. The net realizable value
(carryingvalue) of thesereceivablesprior totransfer after considering thefair valueof the property lesscost to sell wasapproximately
$342 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014. As we plan to sell these receivables to third party investors, fair value
represents the price we believe athird party investor would pay to acquire the receivable portfolios. A third party investor would
incorporate a number of assumptions in predicting future cash flows, such as differences in overall cost of capital assumptions,
which may result in alower estimate of fair value for the cash flows associated with the receivables. Accordingly, during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 we recorded alower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment of $60 million associated with the
newly transferred loans, all of which was attributable to non-credit related factors as these receivables were aready carried at the
lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell and was recorded as a component of total other revenuesin
the consolidated statement of income.

We expect that receivables held for sale at March 31, 2014 will be sold in multiple transactions generally over the next 15 months
or, if the foreclosure process is completed prior to sale, the underlying properties acquired in satisfaction of the receivables will
be classified as real estate owned (*REQO”) and sold. As we continue to work with borrowers, we may also agree to a short sale
whereby the property is sold by the borrower at a price which has been pre-negotiated with us and the borrower is released from
further obligation. Accordingly, based on the projected timing of loan sales and the expected flow of foreclosure volumeinto REO
over the next 15 months, a portion of the real estate secured receivables classified as held for sale will ultimately become REO.
Asaresult, aportion of thefair value adjustment on receivables held for sale may be reversed in earnings over time. This estimate
of fair valueis highly dependent upon the timing and size of future receivable sales aswell as the volume and timelines associated
with foreclosure activity. During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, we transferred a portion of our real estate
secured receivable portfolio held for salewith acarrying value of $70 million and $112 million, respectively, to REO after obtaining
titleto the underlying collateral and reversed a portion of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment previously recorded
totaling $4 million and $33 million, respectively. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, we
completed short sales on real estate secured receivables with a carrying value of $11 million and $35 million, respectively. As a
result of these short sales, we reversed aportion of thelower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment previously recorded totaling
$1 million and $9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as the agreed price was higher
than the carrying value.
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Receivable Held for Sale Activity During the Period The following table summarizes the activity in receivables held for sale
during the three months ended March 31, 2014:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014
(in millions)

Real estate secured receivables held for sale at beginning of period...........ccocvvvve v $ 2,047
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on real estate secured receivables held for sale....................... 171
Carrying value of real estate secured receivables held for sale settled through short sale or transfer to REO...... (81)
Change in real estate secured receivable balance, including ColleCtions............coi e 29
Transfer of real estate secured receivablesinto held for investment at the lower of amortized cost or fair value @
Transfer of first lien real estate secured receivablesinto held for sale at the lower of amortized cost or fair

VBIUED ...ttt e e e e et e e e et et e et ee e es et et eee et ee s e s e ereeeeee et ee s e s et eseeeeeesernn e eeneees 262
Real estate secured receivables held for sale at end of PEriod ... $ 2420

@ During the first quarter of 2014, we identified asmall pool of receivables held for sale which did not meet our criteriato be classified as held for sale. Asa
result we transferred these receivables to held for investment at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

@ Thelower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables transferred into held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014 totaled $60
million.

®  Net of avaluation allowance of $165 million at March 31, 2014. The following table provides arollforward of our valuation allowance for the three months
ended March 31, 2014:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014
(in millions)

Balance at beginning Of PEITOM. ..o bbb bbb bbb bbb $ 329
Initial valuation allowance for receivables transferred to held for sale during the pefiod..............ccoocevvcnnicnnccrncene 60
Release of valuation allowance resulting from improvements in fair VAUE...........ccccrieirririeinieieieiie e (171)
Valuation allowance on receivables transferred to held for investment 4)
Change in of valuation allowance for collections, loans sold, charged-off, transferred to REO or short sale..........c.ocivinninninne (49)
BalanCe @t €0 OF PEMIO..........ciuiiiii bbb s $—1%

18



HSBC Finance Corporation

The following table summarizes the components of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment recorded in provision for
credit losses and other revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Lower of Amortized Cost or Fair Value
Adjustments Associated With

Fair Value REO Short Sales Total
(in millions)
(Income)/Expense:
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014:
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments recorded as a
component of:
Other revenues:
Initial lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment ............ $ 60 $ — $ — 3 60
Subsequent to initial transfer to held for sale.........ccccecvvrenene (176) 4 1 (171)
Total recorded through other revenues...........ccccveveeeeerevesennn. (116) 4 1 (111)
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment ...........ccocvveveererenes $ (116) $ 4 $ 1 8% (112)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013:
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments recorded as a
component of:
Other revenues:
Initial lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment ............ $ — % — 3 — $ —
Subsequent to initial transfer to held for sale (412) (33) 9 (454)
Total recorded through other revenues...........cccoeeveeeeeceveenenne. (412) (33) (9 (454)
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment ............c.coceeeeeereene. $ (412) $ (33) $ 9 $ (454)

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we reversed $176 million of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment
previously recorded primarily due to an increase in the relative fair value of the real estate secured receivables held for sale as
conditions in the housing industry have continued to show improvement in the first quarter of 2014 due to modest improvements
in property values as well as lower required market yields and increased investor demand for these types of receivables.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we reversed $494 million of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment
previously recorded primarily dueto anincreaseintheréative fair value of thereal estate secured receivablesheld for sale during
2013 largely due to improved conditions in the housing industry. During the first quarter of 2013, the fair value of the personal
non-credit card receivables held for sale decreased by $82 million, reflecting the excess of theinterest and feeincome on theloans
over the feesreceived from the Purchasers as the sale agreement called for interest and fees on the loans to pass to the Purchasers
after December 31, 2012 in return for a cost of carry and servicing fee to be paid to the seller.

7. Fair Value Option

We have elected to apply fair value option (“FVQO") reporting to certain of our fixed rate debt issuances which also qualify for
FVO reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards. The following table summarizes fixed rate debt issuances
accounted for under FVO:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)

Fixed rate debt accounted for under FVO reported in:
[0 0T (0 10 (= o $ 7,338 $ 8,025
DU R (oI i L LT (= 504 496
Total fixed rate debt accounted for UNAer FV O........o.uoviiciciece ettt 3 7,842 $ 8,521
Unpaid principal balance of fixed rate debt accounted for under FVO®™............ccoocovvvcvevrernen.. $ 7281 % 7,942
Fixed rate long-term debt not accounted for under FVO..........c.ooooveeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeee e $ 6,291 $ 7,083
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@ Balanceincludes aforeign currency translation adjustment relating to our foreign denominated FVO debt which increased the debt balance by $247 million
and $245 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

We determine the fair value of the fixed rate debt accounted for under FV O through the use of athird party pricing service. Such
fair value representsthe full market price (including credit and interest rate impacts) based on observable market datafor the same
or similar debt instruments. See Note 14, "Fair Value Measurements,” for adescription of the methods and significant assumptions
used to estimate the fair value of our fixed rate debt accounted for under FVO.

The following table summarizes the components of the gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Mark-to-market on debt designated at fair value™®:

INLEIESE FAEE COMPONENL . ... eeiieieitieeite ettt ettt et e e st e st e e sae e st e sbeeeateesbeeebeesbeesabeenbeesabeesaeesaseesbeeenneensee s $ 36 $ 86
Credit risK COMPONENT..........ciiiiiii bbb (16) (41)
Total mark-to-market on debt designated at fair VAIUE...........cccvveviiire v 20 45
Mark-to-market 0N the related GEVALVESY ............ooeeeeeeseeeeseeeesseseeseesseeessesesseeeseseseseeeesese st eeeseseeeses (57) (113)
Net realized gains 0N the related deriVatiVES.........c.ccvrieiriie e 68 84
Gain on debt designated at fair value and related deriVatiVeS..........coooeieeeieieieeee e $ 31 $ 16

@ Mark-to-market on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives excludes market value changes due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. Foreign currency translation gains (losses) recorded in derivative related expense associated with debt designated at fair valuewas aloss of $2 million
and again of $110 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Offsetting gains (losses) recorded in derivative related expense
associated with the related derivatives was and a gain of $2 million and a loss of $110 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

The movement in the fair value reflected in gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivativesincludes the effect of our
own credit spread changes and i nterest rate changes, including any economic ineffectivenessin the relationship between therel ated
derivatives and our debt and any realized gains or |osses on those derivatives. With respect to the credit component, as our credit
spreadsnarrow accounting lossesare booked and thereverseistrueif credit spreadswiden. Differencesari se between themovement
inthefair value of our debt and the fair value of the related derivative due to the different credit characteristics and differencesin
the calculation of fair value for debt and derivatives. The size and direction of the accounting consequences of such changes can
be volatile from period to period but do not alter the cash flows intended as part of the documented interest rate management
strategy. On a cumulative basis, we have recorded fair value option adjustments which increased the value of our debt by $561
million and $581 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The change in the fair value of the debt and the change in value of the related derivatives during the three months ended March
31, 2014 and 2013 reflects the following:

* Interest rate curve — During the three months ended March 31, 2014, changes in market movements on certain debt and
related derivatives that mature in the near term resulted in again in the interest rate component on the mark-to-market of
the debt and a loss on the mark-to-market of the related derivative. As these items near maturity, their values are less
sensitivetointerest rate movements. Rising long-term interest rates during the three months ended March 31, 2013 resulted
inagain in the interest rate component on the mark-to-market of the debt and aloss on the mark-to-market of the related
derivative in the year-ago period. Changes in the value of the interest rate component of the debt as compared with the
related derivative are al so affected by differencesin cash flowsand val uation methodol ogiesfor the debt and the derivatives.
Cash flowson debt arediscounted using asinglediscount ratefrom the bond yield curve for each bond’ sapplicable maturity
while derivative cash flows are discounted using rates at multiple points along an interest rate yield curve. Theimpacts of
these differences vary as short-term and long-term interest rates shift and time passes. Furthermore, certain FVO debt no
longer has any corresponding derivatives.

»  Credit — Our secondary market credit spreadstightened during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 on overall
positive economic news.

Net income volatility, whether based on changes in the interest rate or credit risk components of the mark-to-market on debt
designated at fair value and therelated derivatives, impactsthe comparability of our reported results between periods. Accordingly,
gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives for the three months ended March 31, 2014 should not be considered
indicative of the results for any future periods.
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8. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our business activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
Accordingly, we have comprehensive risk management policies to address potential financial risks, which include credit risk,
liquidity risk, market risk, and operational risks. Our risk management policy is designed to identify and analyze these risks, to
set appropriatelimitsand controls, and to monitor therisksand limitscontinually by meansof reliableand up-to-date administrative
and information systems. Our risk management policies are primarily carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the
HSBC Group Management Board. The HSBC North AmericaAsset Liability Committee (“HSBC North AmericaALCQO”) meets
regularly to review risks and approve appropriate risk management strategies within the limits established by the HSBC Group
Management Board. Additionally, our Risk Management Committee receivesregular reports on our interest rate and liquidity risk
positions in relation to the established limits. In accordance with the policies and strategies established by HSBC North America
ALCO, in the normal course of business, we enter into various transactions involving derivative financia instruments. These
derivative financial instruments primarily are used as economic hedges to manage risk.

Objectives for Holding Derivative Financial Instruments Market risk (whichincludesinterest rateand foreign currency exchange
risks) is the possibility that a change in interest rates or foreign exchange rates will cause a financial instrument to decrease in
valueor becomemorecostly to settle. Prior to our ceasing originationsin our Consumer L ending businessand ceasing loan purchase
activitiesin our Mortgage Services business, customer demand for our loan products shifted between fixed rate and floating rate
products, based on market conditions and preferences. These shifts in loan products resulted in different funding strategies and
produced different interest rate risk exposures. Additionally, the mix of receivables on our balance sheet and the corresponding
market risk is changing as we manage the liquidation of all of our receivable portfolios. We maintain an overall risk management
strategy that utilizes interest rate and currency derivative financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to fluctuations caused by
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates related to our debt liabilities. We manage our exposure to interest rate risk
primarily through the use of interest rate swaps with the main objective of managing the interest rate volatility due to a mismatch
in the duration of our assets and liabilities. We manage our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk primarily through the use
of cross currency interest rate swaps.

Interest rate swaps are contractual agreements between two counterpartiesfor the exchange of periodicinterest paymentsgenerally
based on a notional principal amount and agreed-upon fixed or floating rates. The majority of our interest rate swaps are used to
manage our exposure to changesin interest rates by converting floating rate debt to fixed rate or by converting fixed rate debt to
floating rate. We have also entered into currency swaps to convert both principal and interest payments on debt issued from one
currency to the appropriate functional currency.

We do not manage credit risk or the changes in fair value due to the changes in credit risk by entering into derivative financial
instruments such as credit derivatives or credit default swaps.

Control Over Valuation Process and Procedures A control framework has been established which is designed to ensure that fair
values are validated by a function independent of the risk-taker. To that end, the ultimate responsibility for the measurement of
fair valuesrestswiththeHSBC U.S. Val uation Committee. TheHSBC U.S. Val uation Committeeestablishespoliciesand procedures
to ensure appropriate valuations. Fair values for derivatives are measured by management using valuation techniques, valuation
modelsand inputsthat are devel oped, reviewed, validated and approved by the Quantitative Risk and Valuation Group of an HSBC
affiliate. These valuation models utilize discounted cash flows or an option pricing model adjusted for counterparty credit risk and
market liquidity. The models used apply appropriate control processes and procedures to ensure that the derived inputs are used
to value only those instruments that share similar risk to the relevant benchmark indices and therefore demonstrate a similar
response to market factors.

Credit Risk By utilizing derivative financial instruments, we are exposed to counterparty credit risk. Counterparty credit risk is
the risk that the counterparty to atransaction fails to perform according to the terms of the contract. We manage the counterparty
credit (or repayment) risk in derivativeinstrumentsthrough established credit approvals, risk control limits, collateral, and ongoing
monitoring procedures. We utilize an affiliate, HSBC Bank USA, National Association ("HSBC Bank USA") as the primary
provider of derivative products. We have never suffered aloss due to counterparty failure.

At both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, all of our existing derivative contracts are with HSBC subsidiaries, making them
our sole counterparty in derivative transactions. Derivative agreements require that payments be made to, or received from, the
counterparty when the fair value of the agreement reaches a certain level. When the fair value of our agreements with affiliate
counterpartiesrequiresthe posting of collateral, itisprovidedin either theform of cash and recorded on the bal ance sheet, consistent
with third party arrangements, or in the form of securities which are not recorded on our balance sheet. The fair value of our
agreementswith affiliate counterpartiesrequired the affiliatesto provide collateral to usof $721 million and $811 million at March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, all of which was received in cash. These amounts are offset against the fair value
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amount recognized for derivative instruments that have been offset under the same master netting arrangement and recorded in
our balance sheet asacomponent of derivativefinancial assetsor derivativerelated liabilities. At March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, we had derivative contractswith anotional amount of $14.5 billion and $16.5 billion, respectively, all of whichisoutstanding
withHSBC Bank USA. Derivativefinancial instruments are generally expressed in terms of notional principal or contract amounts
which are much larger than the amounts potentially at risk for nonpayment by counterparties.

To manage our exposure to changesin interest rates, we entered into interest rate swap agreements and currency swapswhich have
been designated as cash flow hedges under derivative accounting principles, or are treated as non-qualifying hedges. We currently
utilize the long-haul method to assess effectiveness of all derivatives designated as hedges.

Thefollowing table presentsthefair value of derivative contracts by major product typeon agrossbasis. Grossfair values exclude
the effects of both counterparty netting and collateral, and therefore are not representative of our exposure. Thetablebel ow presents
the amounts of counterparty netting and cash collateral that have been offset in the consolidated balance sheet.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)
Derivatives®
Derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges
INEETESt FAlE SIWADS ......veevieeetiietee ettt ettt st sttt $ 14 $ (121) $ 16 $ (138)
CUITENCY SWADS ....cveveueiteeeteseetesee e seetesaetessesessesessesessesestesestesestessssensssessnsens 260 (22) 255 (28)
Cash FlOW NEAQES ..o e 274 (143) 271 (166)
Non-qualifying hedge activities
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
INEErESE rale SIWAPS ...t e 23 (238) 24 (171)
CUITENCY SWAS ....eveeneeeeeereeeeeseeeeeseeeseesseestesseetesseasseeseesseensesseensesseessnns — — — —
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments.............cccveevveenns 23 (238) 24 (171)
Derivatives associated with debt carried at fair value
INLErESE FALE SWES .....veveeierieesieeiie ettt see e snee e e enee e 232 — 270 —
CUITENCY SWAPDS ....eveeieeieesteeeesteeaesteeeesteestessaestesseasseesaesseesesseensesseessens 524 — 542 —
Derivatives associated with debt carried at fair value..........ccccceeueee.e. 756 — 812 —
TOtal AEriVALIVES .....ccvecveieciecc e e et 1,053 (381) 1,107 (337)
Less: Gross amounts offset in the balance sheet® ... 1,053 (381) 1,107 (337)
Net amounts of derivative financial assets and liabilities presented in
the DalanCe SHEEL® ... e sene $ _ s _ s — 3 _

@ All of our derivatives are bilateral over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives.

Represents the netting of derivative receivable and payable balancesfor the same counterparty under an enforceabl e netting agreement. Gross amounts offset
in the balance sheet includes cash collateral received as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 of $721 million and $811 million, respectively. At
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we did not have any financial instrument collateral received/posted.

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had not received any cash or financial instruments not subject to an enforceable master netting agreement.

Fair Value Hedges Inthefirst quarter of 2013, weterminated all of our activefair value hedge positionsto better align our overall
hedge position with our overal interest rate risk position, which had changed after the issuance of $1.5 billion in fixed rate debt
to HSBC USA Inc. in December 2012. Prior to the first quarter of 2013, fair value hedges included interest rate swaps to convert
our fixed rate debt to variable rate debt and currency swapsto convert debt issued from one currency into U.S. dollar variable rate
debt. We recorded fair value adjustments to the carrying value of our debt for fair value hedges which increased the debt balance
by $1 million and $5 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, there were neither any gains or losses recorded on any derivatives or
related hedged items in the consolidated statement of income as we terminated all of our active fair value hedge positionsin the
first quarter of 2013 as discussed above.

Cash Flow Hedges Cash flow hedges include interest rate swaps to convert our variable rate debt to fixed rate debt by fixing
future interest rate resets of floating rate debt aswell as currency swaps to convert debt issued from one currency into U.S. dollar
fixed rate debt. Gains and losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are reported in other comprehensive
income (loss) (“OCI”) net of tax and totaled a loss of $83 million and $97 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. We expect $58 million ($37 million after-tax) of currently unrealized net losseswill be reclassified to earningswithin
one year. However, these reclassified unrealized losses will be offset by decreased interest expense associated with the variable
cash flows of the hedged items and will result in no significant net economic impact to our earnings.

The following table provides the gain or loss recorded on our cash flow hedging relationships.

Location of Gain

Gain (Loss) Recognized IlzocatiRon (I)f G.?.i” 4y _Gain (Loss) Reclassed (Loss) Recognized  Gain (Loss) Recognized
in AOCI on Derivative (foss) A?)CCa|S$I 1€ From AOCI'into Income  in Incomeonthe  In Income on Derivative
(Effective Portion) mmlncome into (Effective Portion) IIDGF]i\flatl_\/e (Ineffective Portion)
neffective
7017 7013 (Effective Portion) 701Z 7013 ( Pertion 7012 7013
(in millions)
Derivative related
Interest rate swaps..... $ 13 $ 42  Interest expense $ — % (1) income $ — % 2
Derivative related
Currency swaps......... 4 15 Interest expense 3) (5) income 5 14
Derivative loss
recognized on
termination of
hedges — (199)
TOtal oo $ 7 % 57 $ @) $ (205 $ 5 % 16

Non-Qualifying Hedging Activities We have entered into interest rate and currency swaps which are not designated as hedges
under derivative accounting principles. However, as of December 31, 2013, we no longer have any open currency swap positions.
These financial instruments are economic hedges but do not qualify for hedge accounting and are primarily used to minimize our
exposure to changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates through more closely matching both the structure and duration
of our liabilitiesto the structure and duration of our assets.

The following table provides detail of the realized and unrealized gain or loss recorded on our non-qualifying hedges:

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized

in Derivative
Related Income (Expense)
Location of Gain (Loss) Three Months Ended March 31,
Recognized in Income on
Derivative 2014 2013
(in millions)
INterest rate CONLIraCtS.........covevirrerrereeeceeeeeee e Derivativerelated expense  § (95) $ 83
TOMAl oo $ (95) $ 83

We have elected the fair value option for certain issuances of our fixed rate debt and have entered into interest rate and currency
swapsrelated to debt carried at fair value. Theinterest rate and currency swaps associated with this debt are non-qualifying hedges
but are considered economic hedges and realized gains and losses are reported as “ Gain on debt designated at fair value and rel ated
derivatives’ within other revenues. The derivatives related to fair value option debt are included in the tables below.
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Thefollowing table provides the gain or loss recorded on the derivativesrelated to fair value option debt primarily due to changes
in interest rates. See Note 7, “Fair Value Option,” for further discussion.

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Derivative
Related Income (Expense)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Location of Gain (Loss)

Recognized in Income on Derivative 2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest rate contracts...........ccceeeeeeunee. Gain on debt designated at fair value and related
derivatives $ 3 % D
Currency Contracts.........ccovverveerveneenenes Gain on debt designated at fair value and related
derivatives 8 (28)
TOtal.ecececeeece e 3$ 1 % (29)

Notional Amount of Derivative Contracts The following table provides the notional amounts of derivative contracts.

December 31,

March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
[NEEFESE FAEE SWADS. ... cueevvevieeiieteee st st te st e st b et et st s betese s et s e e st bebe e ssebebe e s ebebeseasssesesenens $ 1,959 $ 3,256
CUITENCY SWAS ... cuteeueeteeeeseeeeesseeseesseessesseessesseessesssessesssessesssesseensesseessesseessessesssesseessessessensnnes 2,248 2,277
4,207 5,533
Non-qualifying hedges:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
INEEFESE FALE SIS ......veveeeeeeteeete et esee st e e seeste s e steseeste s e e tees e e seeseesseeseesseensesneeeesneensesneensnss 3,699 3,699
CUITENCY SWADS .....eeuvieueeteeueesteeeesueeseesaeesaesaeessesseesbesasaabeessanbeeaseeseesesaeeaaesaeeseesanesbesnnesbennranes — —
3,699 3,699
Derivatives associated with debt carried at fair value:
[NEEIESE FAEE SIWAPDS ...ttt ettt sttt ettt e he bt b e saeebe b e sbe st e beseese e e et e e e e enean 3,682 4,343
CUITENCY SWEIS ... vt seeieeieee ettt r st ee s s e e s e e e e e e e s e e st e st eh e e bt sbeer e reneene e s e e e nn e e ennens 2,892 2,892
6,574 7,235
10, | SO SS $ 14,480 $ 16,467

The decrease in the notional amount of our derivative contracts at March 31, 2014 as compared with December 31, 2013 reflects
maturities of approximately $2.0 billion.

During thefirst quarter of 2013, we terminated $1.0 billion of cash flow hedge positions. As discussed in previousfilings, we have
approximately $1.0 billion of junior subordinated notesissued to an affiliate, HSBC Finance Capital Trust X ("HFCT 1X"). HFCT
IX, whichisarelated but unconsolidated entity, which issued trust preferred securitiesto third party investorsto fund the purchase
of the junior subordinated notes. In October 2013, U.S. Regulators published afinal rulein the Federal Register implementing the
Basel |11 capital framework under which the trust preferred securities will no longer qualify as Tier | capital. In anticipation of
these changes as well as other recent changesin our assessment of cash flow needs, including long term funding considerations,
in the first quarter of 2013 we terminated the associated cash flow hedges associated with these notes, which resulted in the
reclassification to income of $199 million of unrealized losses previously accumulated in other comprehensive income during the
first quarter of 2013.
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9. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCI") includes certain items that are reported directly within a separate component
of shareholders’ equity. The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss bal ances.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging instruments:

Balance at beginning Of PEriOd.........ccciiiiiii $ 97) $ (359
Other comprehensive income for period:
Net gains arising during period, net of tax of $5 million and $20 million, respectively............... 12 36
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of $1 million and $73
MITON, TESPECHVEIY D ... ..ot 2 132
Total other comprehensive inCome fOr PEMOM.........coe i 14 168
Balance at end Of PEOU........cviiiiiiciii s (83) (190)
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale, not other-than temporarily impaired:
Balance at beginning Of PEITOQ.........cco i e — 115

Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of $- million and $(62)

MILTION, FESPECUVEIY™M ...t — (115)

Total other comprehensive income (10SS) fOr PEMOU........c.oovroeririrere e — (115)

Balance at €nd Of PEIOU........ceieieeeieiee et e e e e e eneens — —
Unrealized gains (losses) on other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities available-for-sale:

Balance at beginning Of PEITOU.........c.ooi i — 1

Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of tax of $- million and $(1)

MM, FESPECHVEIY™Y ...t — 1)
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) for PEMOU.........c.ccvcveieiieiecice e — (1)
Balance at €nd Of PEITOU. .......cviuiriiieieeeree bbbt — —
Pension and postretirement benefit plan liability:
Balance at beginning and end of Period.............ccccciiccci (11) (26)
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning Of PEITOQ.........c.coo i e — 11
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Trangation losses, net of tax of $- million and $(1) million, respectively..........coovvrrcecvrerennns — (5)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of tax of $- million and $(9)
MILTTON, FESPECHVEIY.......ooooeeerees sttt — (15)
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) fOr PEMOU.......cc.coveeeeerererecere e — (20)
Balance at end Of PEiOQ.........ciiiiciiiii s — 9
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of Period.............cooiiiiiiiiiees $ 94) $ (225)

@ The amounts reclassified during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 are included in loss from discontinued operations in our consolidated
statement of income.

@ Seethe tables below for the components of the amounts reclassified during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 into income and location in
our consolidated statement of income.
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The following table provides additional information related to the amounts classified into the consolidated statement of income
out of accumulated other comprehensive loss during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

Amount Reclassified

from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive  Affected Line Item in the Statement
Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Components Loss® of Income

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014:
Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging instruments:

Interest rate and CUMTENCY SWaPS.........cccvcueueeeeverereeeeieerereeeenesenns $ (3) Interest expense
Total BEfOr@taX .....cvcviceiiecicece e e 3)
TaX DENEFIT ... e Q)
NEE OF TBX.c1ueetiectececte ettt st s $ 2

Three Months Ended March 31, 2013:
Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging instruments:

Interest rate and CUrTeNCY SWaPS........ceoueveereeeereeeeeee e $ (6) Interest expense
Derivative loss recognized on termination of hedge
FElationSiP ..o (199) Derivative related expense
Total DEfOr@aX ....ccveeveie e e (205)
TaX DENEFIT ... e (73)
L= 0 = TR $ (132)

@ Amounts in parenthesis indicate expenses recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Thecomponentsof pension expensefor thedefined benefit pension plan recordedin our consolidated
statement of income and shown in the table below reflect the portion of the pension expense of the combined HSBC North America
Pension Plan (either the “HSBC North America Pension Plan” or the “Plan”) which has been allocated to us.

Three months ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Service cost — benefits earned during the Period ... $ 1 % 2
Interest cost on projected benefit ObIIGatiON ..o 13 14
EXPECLEA FELUIN ON @SSELS.......ccuieiiiieciiciesie sttt ste e et se e e e e e e e aessesaesbesbesbeseesbesbesaesentesee e eneeneeneennesennes (14) (18)
RECOGNIZEA TOSSES ...ttt ettt aeeae st eheebe s aeseeeb e bese e s et e se e s eneeneeneeneeneenas 6 11

PENSION EXPENSE ....vcereeereerereseseesesesesssssssesessssessesesesssssssesesesssssesesesesesesesesesesesssesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesnsess $ 6 $ 9

During the first quarter of 2014, an additional contribution of $74 million was made to the Plan.

Postretirement Plans Other Than Pensions The components of net periodic benefit cost for our postretirement plans other than
pension are as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Service cost — benefits earned during the PEriod ... $ — % —
11 1= B 0T 1 SRS 2 2
Net periodic postretirement BENEfit COSE......viiiiiiieiercere e $ 2 % 2
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11. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, we conduct transactions with HSBC and its subsidiaries. These transactions occur at prevailing
market ratesand termsand include funding arrangements, derivatives, servicing arrangements, information technol ogy, centralized
support services, item and statement processing services, banking and other miscellaneous services. The following tables and
discussions below present the more significant related party balances and the income (expense) generated by related party
transactions for continuing operations:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)

Assets:

L= o $ 236 $ 172
Securities purchased under agreements to resell® ..o 5,226 6,924
(@1 0SS £ 140 86
B0 = - S = =TTV $ 5602 $ 7,182
Liabilities:

DUE O GIlIAIES? ..ot st s et s st en s ses e sses s sennens $ 8749 $ 8,742
OUNET TIBDIITEIES e eeeeeeeeee s eeeeeeeseseess s eeeeeeeesesseee s eeseeeeseeseeseseeeeeseseeeeeseseseseesesssseeneeee (66) 51
TOtAl HADITTIES........eeieeee et e et e e ae e s aeetesaeesbesaeesteeneesteennenes $ 8,683 $ 8,793

@ Securitiesunder an agreement to resel| arepurchased from HSI and generally havetermsof 120 daysor less. Thecollateral underlying the securitiespurchased
under agreements to resell, however, iswith an unaffiliated third party. Interest income recognized on these securities is reflected as interest income from
HSBC affiliate in the table below.

@ Dueto affiliates includes amounts owed to HSBC and its subsidiaries as a result of direct debt issuances as well as HSBC's ownership of our subordinated
debt and excludes preferred stock.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Income/(Expense):

Interest income from HSBC affill@ES .......c.ovveuiieeieece e $ 1 $ 1

Interest expense paid to HSBC @ffiliAES™) ..........o..oveeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeese s eeeee e s seese s seeees (80) (139)
Net iNterest iNCOME (I0SS) ......ucueueuiiiiiirieieie s $ (719) $ (138)
Gain (loss) on FV O debt With affiliate...........coooiiii e $ ® $ 3
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affillialeS........cccvviiiri e 8 7
Support services from HSBC affillates ..o, (60) (68)
Stock based compensation expense With HSBCD ..............ovvirevoneiosessiees s (1) )

@ Includes interest expense paid to HSBC affiliates for debt held by HSBC affiliates as well as net interest paid to or received from HSBC affiliates on risk
management hedges related to non-affiliated debt.

@ Employees participate in one or more stock compensation plans sponsored by HSBC. These expenses are included in Salary and employee benefits in our
consolidated statement of income. Employees also participate in a defined benefit pension plan and other postretirement benefit plans sponsored by HSBC
North Americawhich are discussed in Note 10, “Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits.”

Funding Arrangements with HSBC Affiliates:

We have historically used avariety of HSBC affiliates to fund a portion of our borrowing needs. However, in the first quarter of
2012, we revised our funding strategies and as a result, al of our ongoing funding requirements have been integrated into the
overall HSBC North America funding plans and our funding requirements are now sourced primarily through HSBC USA, Inc.
Due to affiliates consists of the following:
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March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)

HSBC Private Banking Holdings (Suisse) S.A. and SUbSIdIaries...........ccoceeveneienene e $ 4300 $ 4,300
HSBIC USA INC. .ttt sttt sttt e bt e e st b e e s bebe e e ee 3,012 3,012
HSBC Holdings plc (includes $504 million and $496 million at March 31, 2014 and December

31, 2013 carried at fair value, reSPECHIVEIY) ......oveiirieiiere e 827 820
HSBC North America HOIAINGS INC. ..o e 600 600
HSBC ASIAHOIAINGS BV .....ooiiiiiiiieiiieres ettt bbb 10 10
DUE L0 BFfIlIAEES. ...ttt e ettt e b e s bbbt st se e b et e e e e eneas $ 8,749 $ 8,742

HSBC Private Banking Holdings (Suisse) S.A. and subsidiaries - We have various debt agreements with maturities between 2014
and 2016.

HSBC USA Inc. - We have a $5.0 hillion, 364-day uncommitted revolving credit agreement with HSBC USA Inc. which expires
during the fourth quarter of 2014. The credit agreement allows for borrowings with maturities of up to 15 years. Of the amounts
outstanding at March 31, 2014, $512 million matures in September 2017, $1.5 billion matures in January 2018 and $1.0 hillion
matures in September 2018.

HSBC Holdings plc - We have a public subordinated debt issue with a carrying amount of $3.0 billion at March 31, 2014 which
matures in 2021. Of this amount, HSBC Holdings plc holds $827 million.

HSBC North America Holdings Inc. - We have a$600 million loan agreement with HSBC North Americawhich providesfor three
$200 million borrowings with maturities between 2034 and 2035.

HSBC Asia Holdings BV - We have two $5 million loan agreements with maturity dates in 2014 and 2015.

We have the following funding arrangements available with HSBC &ffiliates, although there are no outstanding balances at either
March 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013:

e $1.0 billion committed revolving credit facility with HSBC USA Inc. was available at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013. This credit facility expiresin May 2017;

e $100 million committed revolving credit facility with HSBC Investments (Bahamas) Limited was available at December 31,
2013. Thisfacility matured in April 2014 and was not renewed; and

o $455million, 364-day uncommitted revolving credit facility with HSBC North Americawas available at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

Asdiscussed more fully in Note 15, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in November 2013, we obtained a surety bond to secure
a stay of execution of the partial judgment in the Jaffe litigation pending the outcome of our appeal in the Jaffe litigation. This
surety bond has been guaranteed by HSBC North America and we pay HSBC North America an annual fee for providing the
guarantee whichisincluded as acomponent of interest expense paid to HSBC affiliates. Guarantee feesfor the three months ended
March 31, 2014 totaled $1 million.

Aspreviously discussed, we maintainan overall risk management strategy that utilizesinterest rate and currency derivativefinancial
instruments to mitigate our exposure to fluctuations caused by changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates related to
affiliate and third-party debt liabilities. HSBC Bank USA is our sole counterparty in derivative transactions. The notional amount
of derivative contracts outstanding with HSBC Bank USA totaed $14.5 billion and $16.5 billion at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. When the fair value of our agreements with affiliate counterparties requires the posting of
collateral, it is provided in either the form of cash and recorded on the balance sheet or in the form of securities which are not
recorded on our balance sheet. Thefair value of our agreementsat March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 with HSBC Bank USA
required HSBC Bank USA to provide collateral to us of $721 million and $811 million, respectively, al of which wasreceived in
cash. These amounts are offset against the fair value amount recognized for derivative instruments that have been offset under the
same master netting arrangement. See Note 8, “ Derivative Financial Instruments,” for additional information about our derivative
portfolio.

In addition to the lending arrangements discussed above, during the fourth quarter of 2010, we issued 1,000 shares of Series C
preferred stock to HSBC Investments (North America) Inc. ("HINO") for $1.0 billion. Dividends paid on the Series C Preferred
Stock totaled $22 million and $22 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Services Provided Between HSBC Affiliates:

Under multiple service level agreements, we provide servicesto and receive services from various HSBC affiliates. Thefollowing
summarizes these activities:

Servicing activitiesfor real estate secured receivables across North Americaare performed both by usand HSBC Bank USA.
As aresult, we receive servicing fees from HSBC Bank USA for services performed on their behalf and pay servicing fees
toHSBC Bank USA for servicesperformed on our behalf. Thefeeswereceivefrom HSBC Bank USA arereportedin Servicing
and other feesfrom HSBC affiliates. Thisincludes fees received for servicing real estate secured receivables (with acarrying
amount of $944 million and $1.0 billion at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively) that we sold to HSBC Bank
USA in 2003 and 2004. Fees we pay to HSBC Bank USA are reported in Support services from HSBC affiliates.

Wealso providevarious servicesto HSBC Bank USA, including processing activities and other operational and administrative
support. Fees received for these services are included in Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates.

HSBC North Americastechnology and certain centralized support servicesincluding human resources, corporate affairs, risk
management, legal, compliance, tax, finance and other shared services are centralized within HSBC Technology & Services
(USA) Inc. ("HTSU"). HTSU aso provides certain item processing and statement processing activities for us. The fees we
pay HTSU for the centralized support servicesand processing activitiesareincluded in Support servicesfrom HSBC affiliates.
We also receive fees from HTSU for providing certain administrative services to them as well as receiving rental revenue
from HTSU for certain office space. The fees and rental revenue we receive from HTSU are included in Servicing and other
feesfrom HSBC &ffiliates.

Weuse HSBC Globa Resourcing (UK) Ltd., an HSBC &ffiliatelocated outside of the United States, to provide various support
services to our operations including among other areas, customer service, systems, collection and accounting functions. The
expenses related to these services are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates.

Banking services and other miscellaneous services are provided by other subsidiaries of HSBC, including HSBC Bank USA,
which are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates.

12. Business Segments

We have one reportable segment: Consumer. Our Consumer segment consists of our run-off Consumer Lending and Mortgage
Servicesbusinesses. Whilethese businessesare operating in run-off, they have not been reported asdi scontinued operationsbecause
we continue to generate cash flow from the ongoing collections of the receivables, including interest and fees. There have been
no changes in measurement or composition of our segment reporting as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

We report financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*1FRSS").
Our segment results are presented in accordance with IFRSs (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure) on a legal entity basis as
operating resultsare monitored and reviewed and trends are eval uated on an | FRSsbasis. However, we continueto monitor liquidity
and capital adequacy, establish dividend policy and report to regulatory agencieson aU.S. GAAP basis.
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A summary of differencesbetween U.S. GAAPand IFRSsasthey impact our resultsare presented in Note 18, "Business Segments,”
in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013 in the differences between U.S. GAAP
and IFRSs impacting our results.

The following table reconciles our IFRSs segment results to the U.S. GAAP consolidated totals:

IFRSs
Consumer U.S. GAAP
Segment IFRSs IFRSs Consolidated
Totals Adjustments®  Reclassifications® Totals
(in millions)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014:
Net iNterest iNCOME.......c.ovuiiiiiiir s $ 372 $ 75) $ (65) $ 232
Other operating income (Total Other revenues) ..., (84) 105 61 82
Total operating iNCOME (I0SS).......cucervrurieririeeeririee et 288 30 (4) 314
Loan impairment charges (Provision for credit 0SSes) .........cccveiieieiiiciennns 118 (116) — 2
Net interest income and other operating income less loan impairment

CRAIGES. ... 170 146 4) 312
OPErating EXPENSES........cuvererreerrerestrerseseaere et sesssesessesssessesssssesnens 216 5 (4) 217
Profit (10sS) BEfOre tax .........cccovviiciiiicsicc s $ 46) $ 141 $ — $ 95
Balances at end of period: -
Customer loans (Receivables)... $ 27,283 % (1,770) $ (32) $ 25,481
AASSELS.....ooeovo et 37,152 (1,639) — 35,513
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013:
NEL INtErESt INCOME......vcviiteeceeectece ettt bereneas $ 636 $ (159) $ 83 $ 394
Other operating income (Total other revenues) (199) 462 91 354
Total operating iNCOME (I0SS)......c.cucueuuimeiiiiieieieieieeieieeeie e 437 303 8 748
Loan impairment charges (Provision for credit 10SSes) ..........ccccevervveereniennnns 319 (295) — 24
Net interest income and other operating income less |oan impairment

ChAIGES. ...t et 118 598 8 724
OPEratinNg EXPENSES......cucvveieirieteeririeie st ses e e st st sesbe e e sessesesbssesesestesenens 255 5 8 268
Profit (10SS) DEFOrE taX .....ccoveueiririeireeice et $ (137) $ 503 $ — % 456
Balances at end of period: -
Customer |0ans (RECEIVADIES)...........criiciiiriicii s $ 36,021 $ (4,050) $ 41 $ 31,930
AASSEES .oooovvveneeeessss st 46,941 (2,208) — 44,733

@ |FRSsAdjustments consist of the accounting differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs which have been described in Note 18, "Business Segments,” in
the 2013 Form 10-K.
@ Represents differences in balance sheet and income statement presentation between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.

13. Variable Interest Entities

We consolidate variable interest entities (“VIES’) in which we are deemed to be the primary beneficiary through our holding of a
variableinterest which isdetermined asacontrolling financial interest. The controlling financial interest is evidenced by the power
to direct the activities of aVIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and obligations to absorb losses of, or the
right to receive benefitsfrom, the VI1E that could be potentially significant to the VIE. Wetakeinto account all of our involvements
inaVIE inidentifying (explicit or implicit) variable interests that individually or in the aggregate could be significant enough to
warrant our designation as the primary beneficiary and hence require us to consolidate the VIE or otherwise require us to make
appropriate disclosures. We consider our invol vement to be significant wherewe, among other things, (i) provideliquidity facilities
to support the VIE's debt issuances, (ii) enter into derivative contracts to absorb the risks and benefits from the VIE or from the
assets held by the VIE, (iii) provide a financial guarantee that covers assets held or liabilities issued, (iv) design, organize and
structure the transaction and (v) retain afinancial or servicing interest in the VIE.

We are required to evaluate whether to consolidate a VIE when we first become involved and on an ongoing basis. In aimost all
cases, aqualitative analysis of our involvement in the entity provides sufficient evidence to determine whether we are the primary
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beneficiary. In rare cases, a more detailed analysis to quantify the extent of variability to be absorbed by each variable interest
holder isrequired to determine the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated VIEs Intheordinary course of business, we have organized special purpose entities (* SPES’) primarily to meet our
own funding needs through collateralized funding transactions. We transfer certain receivables to these trusts which in turn issue
debt instrumentscollateralized by thetransferred receivables. Theentitiesused inthesetransactionsare V1 Es. Aswearetheservicer
of the assets of these trusts and have retained the benefits and risks, we determined that we are the primary beneficiary of these
trusts. Accordingly, we consolidate these entities and report the debt securities issued by them as secured financingsin long-term
debt. Asaresult, all receivablestransferred in these secured financings have remained and continue to remain on our balance sheet
and the debt securities issued by them have remained and continue to be included in long-term debt.

The assets and liabilities of these consolidated secured financing VIEs consisted of the following as of March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013:

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Consolidated ~ Consolidated  Consolidated = Consolidated
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)
Real estate collateralized funding vehicles:
O o $ 2 3 — % — $ —
RECEIVADIES, NEL: ... e
Real estate secured receivables........cccevveeecerivce v 3,899 — 4,020 —
Accrued interest income and Other ..........ccccce e vecceceececien, 156 — 156 —
Credit |0SSTESEIVES ... (535) — (556) —
RECEIVADIES, NEL........cceeieececece e e 3,520 — 3,620 —
(@1 0T g Lo ] ] S — (33) — (41
LoNg-term debt ..o — 2,073 — 2,200
TOMAL .ot e ettt n et en e eeen et enene e $ 3522 $ 2040 $ 3620 $ 2,159

The assets of the consolidated VIESs serve as collateral for the obligations of the VIEs. The holders of the debt securitiesissued by
these vehicles have no recourse to our general assets.

Unconsolidated VIEs Asof March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, all of our unconsolidated VI Es, which relate to investments
in certain partnerships, arereported within our discontinued operations. We do not have any unconsolidated VI Eswithin continuing
operations.

14. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting principlesrelated to fair value measurements provide aframework for measuring fair value and focus on an exit price
that would bereceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability inthe principal market (or in the absence of the principal market,
the most advantageous market) accessible in an orderly transaction between willing market participants (the “Fair Vaue
Framework™). Where required by the applicable accounting standards, assets and liabilities are measured at fair value using the
“highest and best use” valuation premise. Fair value measurement guidance clarifies that financial instruments do not have
alternative use and, assuch, thefair value of financial instruments should be determined using an “in-exchange” valuation premise.
However, the fair value measurement literature provides a valuation exception and permits an entity to measure the fair value of
agroup of financial assets and financial liabilities with offsetting credit risk and/or market risks based on the exit price it would
receive or pay to transfer the net risk exposure of agroup of assets or liabilitiesif certain conditions are met. We have not el ected
to make fair value adjustments to a group of derivative instruments with offsetting credit and market risks.

Fair Value Adjustments The best evidence of fair value is quoted market price in an actively traded market, where available. In
the event listed price or market quotes are not available, val uation techniques that incorporate rel evant transaction dataand market
parametersreflecting the attributes of the asset or liability under consideration are applied. Whereapplicable, fair value adjustments
are made to ensure the financial instruments are appropriately recorded at fair value. The fair value adjustments reflect the risks
associated with the products, contractual terms of the transactions, and theliquidity of the marketsin which the transactions occur.

Credit risk adjustment - The credit risk adjustment is an adjustment to a group of financial assets and financia liabilities,
predominantly derivative assets and derivative liabilities, to reflect the credit quality of the partiesto the transaction in arriving at
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fair value. A credit valuation adjustment to a financial asset is required to reflect the default risk of the counterparty. A debit
valuation adjustment to afinancial liability isrecorded to reflect our default risk. Where applicable, we take into consideration the
credit risk mitigating arrangements including collateral agreements and master netting arrangements in estimating the credit risk
adjustments.

Valuation Control Framework A control framework has been established whichisdesigned to ensurethat fair valuesarevalidated
by afunction independent of the risk-taker. To that end, the ultimate responsibility for the measurement of fair values rests with
the HSBC U.S. Valuation Committee. The HSBC U.S. Vauation Committee establishes policies and procedures to ensure
appropriate valuations. Fair valuesfor debt securities and long-term debt for which we have elected fair val ue option are measured
by athird-party valuation source (pricing service) by reference to external quotations on theidentical or similar instruments. Once
fair values have been obtained from the third-party valuation source, an independent price validation process is performed and
reviewed by the HSBC U.S. Valuation Committee. For price validation purposes, we obtain quotations from at least one other
independent pricing source for each financial instrument, where possible. We consider the following factors in determining fair
values:

* similarities between the asset or theliability under consideration and the asset or liability for which quotation isreceived;

»  collaborationof pricing by referenceto other independent market datasuch as market transactionsand rel evant benchmark
indices;

* whether the security istraded in an active or inactive market;

* consistency among different pricing sources;

» thevaluation approach and the methodol ogies used by the independent pricing sources in determining fair value;
» the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the measurement date; and

* the manner in which the fair value information is sourced.

Greater weight is given to quotations of instruments with recent market transactions, pricing quotes from dealers who stand ready
to transact, quotations provided by market-makers who originally underwrote such instruments, and market consensus pricing
based on inputs from alarge number of participants. Any significant discrepancies among the external quotations are reviewed by
management and adjustments to fair values are recorded where appropriate.

Fair values for derivatives are determined by management using valuation techniques, valuation models and inputs that are
developed, reviewed, validated and approved by the Quantitative Risk and Valuation Group of an HSBC affiliate. The models
used apply appropriate control processes and proceduresto ensure that the derived inputs are used to value only those instruments
that share similar risk to the relevant benchmark indexes and therefore demonstrate a similar response to market factors.

We have various controls over our val uation process and proceduresfor receivables held for sale. Asthesefair values are generally
determined using value estimates from third party and affiliate val uation specialists, the controls may include analytical reviews
of quarterly value trends, corroboration of inputs by observable market data, direct discussion with potential investors and results
of actual sales of such receivable, al of which are submitted to the HSBC U.S. Valuation Committee for review.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value estimates, methods and assumptions set forth below for our financial
instruments, including those financial instruments carried at cost, are made solely to comply with disclosuresrequired by generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes
includedinthisForm 10-Q. Thefollowing tablesummarizesthe carrying valuesand estimated fair value of our financial instruments
at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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March 31, 2014

Carrying  Estimated
Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions)

Financial assets:

L0r = o SRS $ 23r $ 237 $ 237 $ — $ —
Securities purchased under agreementsto resell .........cocoevvereeeniecene 5,226 5,226 — 5,226 —
Redl estate secured receivables®:
FIPSETIEN ettt ettt 20,779 18,089 — — 18,089
SECONA LIBN.. .ttt ettt ere e eneeaeas 2,547 1,391 — — 1,391
Total real estate secured receivables..........ccovvevevevcccceccececeeeee, 23,326 19,480 — — 19,480
Receivablesheld for Sale..........cooicieiiiiicicececeeeeeee e 2,383 2,420 — 902 1,518
DUEFrom affiliateS.....cceieeeieceececececee e e 140 140 — 140 —
Financial liabilities:
Dueto affiliates carried at fair vValue .........ccoeevevveeece i 504 504 — 504 —
Dueto affiliates not carried at fair value..........cccoveeiiieece e, 8,245 8,449 — 8,449 —
Long-term debt carried at fair value.........ccceeevevececececceccece e 7,338 7,338 — 7,338 —
Long-term debt not carried at fair value.........coocoveveieneiincneccnee 11,255 11,796 — 9,840 1,956

December 31, 2013

Carrying  Estimated
Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions)

Financial assets:

LOF = o TR $ 175 $ 175 $ 175 % — $ —
Securities purchased under agreementsto resell .........cocvevvvivrneninnenn 6,924 6,924 — 6,924 —
Real estate secured receivables™:
T o 1= 21,514 18,577 — — 18,577
SECONA [IBN....otiiecccecee e e be e ere s 2,659 1,418 — — 1,418
Total real estate secured receiVables.........coooveeveeeceecceeecee e 24,173 19,995 — — 19,995
Receivablesheld for Sale........coovvviiveiiie e 2,047 2,047 — — 2,047
Due from affiliateS......cccveieieece e 86 86 — 86 —
Financial liabilities:
Dueto affiliates carried at fair ValUE........cccveeveeveeieecee e, 496 496 — 496 —
Dueto affiliates not carried at fair value.........cceeveveeveeceecececcne e 8,246 8,369 — 8,369 —
Long-term debt carried at fair value..........coccvveviininnincccnees 8,025 8,025 — 8,025 —
Long-term debt not carried at fair value...........cccvevvinninccnccnece 12,814 13,301 — 11,232 2,069

@ The carrying amount of receivables presented in the table above reflects the amortized cost of the receivable, including any accrued interest, less credit loss
reserves as well as any charge-offs recorded in accordance with our existing charge-off palicies.

Receivable values presented in the table above were determined using the Fair Value Framework for measuring fair value, which
is based on our best estimate of the amount within arange of values we believe would be received in a sale as of the balance sheet
date (i.e. exit price). The secondary market demand and estimated value for our receivables has been heavily influenced by the
challenging economic conditionsduring the past several years, including house pricedepreciation, el evated unemployment, changes
in consumer behavior, changesin discount rates and the lack of financing options avail able to support the purchase of receivables.
For certain consumer receivables, investors incorporate numerous assumptions in predicting cash flows, such as future interest
rates, higher charge-off levels, slower voluntary prepayment speeds, different default and loss curves and estimated collateral
values than we, as the servicer of these receivables, believe will ultimately be the case. The investor's valuation process reflects
this difference in overall cost of capital assumptions as well as the potential volatility in the underlying cash flow assumptions,
the combination of which may yield asignificant pricing discount from our intrinsic value. The estimated fair values at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 reflect thesemarket conditions. Theincreaseintherel ativefair value of real estate securedreceivables
since December 31, 2013 reflects the conditions in the housing industry which have continued to show improvement in the first
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quarter of 2014 due to modest improvements in property values as well as lower required market yields and increased investor
demand for these types of receivables.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis The following table presents information about our assets
and liabilitiesmeasured at fair value on arecurring basis as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and indicatesthefair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value.

Significant
Quoted Prices in Other Significant Total of Assets
Active Markets for ~ Observable Unobservable (Liabilities)
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Netting® Fair Value
(in millions)

March 31, 2014
Derivative financial assets:

INEEXESE FALE SWAPS ...evvceeriereeeseseieiee bbbt seseens $ — 3 269 $ — 3 — 3 269

CUITENCY SWEPS ...t — 784 — — 784

Derivative NELING .....c.cceieiriieie e — — — (1,053) (1,053)

Total derivative financial assetS.........ooeureeeerenierneeneeeneaeen: — 1,053 — (1,053) —
TOtEl BSSELS.....oicirecerir s $ — 3 1,053 $ — 3 (1,053) $ —
Due to affiliates carried at fair ValUE...........eevereveeererrereersseenene $ — 5 G s — 3  — 3 (504
Long-term debt carried at fair value............ccocuvviiceniicinininns — (7,338) — — (7,338)
Derivative related liabilities:

INEErESt FAE SWAPS .....cvvvvvreeeeereereiee e — (359) — — (359)

Currency swaps — (22) — — (22)

Derivative netting — — — 381 381

Total derivative related liabilities...........cocooveiiniciiininnes — (381) — 381 —
Total HHabilitIES....c.eeeereeeeecrecce e $ — $ (8,223) $ — $ 381 % (7,842)
December 31, 2013 -
Derivative financial assets:

INEErESt rate SWaAPS .....c.ccverereireire e $ — % 310 $ — % — % 310

CUITENCY SIVAPS ....vovevvevteeeieieeeieteiesetesesesesessieseseseseassesesesns — 797 — — 797

Derivative NELING .......ccceviiiiiice s — — — (1,107) (1,107)

Total derivative financial assets............ccoeevecuiiciiciciicienen. — 1,107 — (1,207) —
TOtAl BSSELS.....veveveiereeeeeeeeeees st eneenen $ — % 1,107 $ — $ (1107) $ —
Due to affiliates carried at fair value $ —$ (4% $  — %  — $  (4%)
Long-term debt carried at fair value...........coocveeereenriniecrncenenns — (8,025) — — (8,025)
Derivative related liabilities:

Interest rate swaps — (309) — — (309)

CUITENCY SWEPS ....ocvreririsieisies st — (28) — — (28)

Derivative NELING .......ccviiiriiiic et — — — 337 337

Total derivativerelated liabilities..........cccoovveenncrrnennas — (337) — 337 —
Total HabIlItIES......veeereerecerrercce e $ — 3 (8,858) $ — $ 337 % (8,521)

@ Represents counterparty and swap collateral netting which allow the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts when certain conditions are met.

Significant Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the three months
ended March 31, 2014 or 2013.

Information on Level 3 Assets and Liabilities There were no assets or liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the three months ended March 31, 2014 or 2013.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis The following table presents information about our
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and indicates the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value.
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Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements
as of March 31, 2014

Total Gains
(Losses) for the
Three Months

Ended March 31,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2014
(in millions)

Real estate secured receivables held for sale.........cooevvvevivcennee, $ — $ 902 $ 1518 $ 2420 $ 111
Receivables held for investment carried at the lower of

amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell® . — 927 — 927 (163)
Real estate OWNEA®P ...t — 288 — 288 (20)
Total assets at fair value on anon-recurring basis...........ccccceeeee. $ — $ 2117 $ 1518 $ 3635 $ (72)

Total Gains

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements
as of March 31, 2013

(Losses) for the
Three Months
Ended March 31,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2013
(in millions)

Receivables held for sale:

Real etate SECUIEd........c.eeeieiiieeceeece ettt $ — 3 — $ 3407 $ 3407 $ 536

Personal non-credit card®.............oooovoeeveeoeeeeeeeeeeee e, — 2,947 — 2,947 (82)
Total receivablesheld for sale.........cocvvieviiieci i, — 2,947 3,407 6,354 454
Receivables held for investment carried at the lower of

amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell®.. — 2,306 — 2,306 (227)

Real eState OWNEA® ...........ooveeeeeeeeeesesee s — 271 — 271 (17)
Total assets at fair value on anon-recurring basis...........ccccveenee.. $ — $ 5524 $ 3407 $ 8,931

520

@ Total gains (losses) for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 includes amounts recorded on receivables that were subsequently transferred to

held for sdle.

@ Real estate owned is required to be reported on the balance sheet net of transactions costs. The real estate owned amounts in the table above reflect the fair

value of the underlying asset unadjusted for transaction costs.
®
discussed more fully in Note 7, "Receivables Held for Sale," in our 2013 Form 10-K.

Our personal non-credit card portfolio held for sale was classified as Level 2 at March 31, 2013. This portfolio of receivables was sold on April 1, 2013 as

Thefollowingtablepresentsquantitativeinformation about non-recurring fair valuemeasurementsof assetsand liabilitiesclassified

asLevel 3inthefair value hierarchy as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

Fair Value Range of Inputs
Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Significant December 31,
Financial Instrument Type 2014 2013 Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Receivables held for sale carried at fair
value:
Real estate secured.............. $ 1518 $ 2,047 Thirdparty appraisal  Collateral loss 0% - 95% 0% - 93%
valuation based on severity rat
estimated loss Expenses incurred 5% - 10% 5% - 10%
severities, including through collateral
collateral values, disposition
cash flows and
market discount rate  parket discount 4% - 8% 6% - 10%

rate

(6]

The majority of the real estate secured receivables held for sale consider collateral value, among other items, in determining fair value. Collateral values

are based on the most recently available broker's price opinion and the collateral |oss severity rates averaged 21 percent and 21 percent at March 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. In the current market conditions, investors al so take into consideration the fact that the most recently available broker's

price opinion may not capture all of the home price appreciation due to the timing of the receipt of the opinion.
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Valuation Techniques Thefollowing summarizesthe valuation methodol ogies used for assetsand liabilitiesrecorded at fair value
and for estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value but for which fair value disclosures are required.

Cash: Carrying amount approximates fair value due to the liquid nature of cash.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell: Thefair value of securities purchased under agreements to resell approximates
carrying amount due to the short-term maturity of the agreements.

Receivables and receivables held for sale: The estimated fair value of our receivables held for saleis determined by developing
an approximate range of value from amix of various sources appropriate for the respective pools of assets aggregated by similar
risk characteristics. These sourcesinclude recently observed over-the-counter transactionswhere available and fair value estimates
obtained from an HSBC &ffiliate and athird party valuation specialist for distinct pools of receivables. These fair value estimates
are based on discounted cash flow models using assumptions we believe are consistent with those that would be used by market
participants in valuing such receivables and trading inputs from other market participants which includes observed primary and
secondary trades.

Valuation inputs include estimates of future interest rates, prepayment speeds, default and loss curves, estimated collateral values
(including expenses to be incurred to maintain the collateral) and market discount rates reflecting management's estimate of the
rate of return that would be required by investors in the current market given the specific characteristics and inherent credit risk
of the receivables held for sale. Some of these inputs are influenced by collateral value changes and unemployment rates. To the
extent available, such inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation and other
means. We perform analytical reviews of fair value changes on a quarterly basis and periodically validate our valuation
methodol ogies and assumptions based on the results of actual sales of such receivables. We also may hold discussions on value
directly with potential investors. Portfolio risk management personnel provide further validation through discussions with third
party brokers. Since some receivables pools may have features which are unique, the fair value measurement processes use
significant unobservable inputs which are specific to the performance characteristics of the various receivable portfolios.

Real estate owned: Fair valueis determined based on third party valuations obtained at the time we take title to the property and,
if lessthan the carrying amount of the loan, the carrying amount of the loan is adjusted to the fair value | ess estimated cost to sell.
The carrying amount of the property isfurther reduced, if necessary, at least every 45 daysto reflect observablelocal market data,
including local area sales data.

Due from affiliates: Carrying amount approximatesfair value because the interest rates on these receivables adjust with changing
market interest rates.

Long-term debt and Due to affiliates: Fair value is primarily determined by athird party valuation source. The pricing services
sourcefair value from quoted market prices and, if not available, expected cash flows are discounted using the appropriate interest
rate for the applicable duration of the instrument adjusted for our own credit risk (spread). The credit spreads applied to these
instruments are derived from the spreads recognized in the secondary market for similar debt as of the measurement date. Where
available, relevant trade datais also considered as part of our validation process.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities: Derivative values are defined as the amount we would receive or pay to extinguish the
contract using a market participant as of the reporting date. The values are determined by management using a pricing system
maintained by HSBC Bank USA. In determining these values, HSBC Bank USA uses quoted market prices, when available. For
non-exchangetraded contracts, such asinterest rate swaps, fair valueisdetermined using discounted cash flow modeling techniques.
Valuation models calculate the present value of expected future cash flows based on models that utilize independently-sourced
market parameters, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities, and currency rates. Valuations may be adjusted in order
to ensure that those val ues represent appropriate estimates of fair value. These adjustments are generally required to reflect factors
such as market liquidity and counterparty credit risk that can affect pricesin arms-length transactions with unrelated third parties.
Finally, other transaction specific factors such asthe variety of valuation modelsavailable, the range of unobservable model inputs
and other model assumptions can affect estimates of fair value. Imprecision in estimating these factors can impact the amount of
revenue or |loss recorded for a particular position.

Counterparty credit risk is considered in determining the fair value of afinancial asset. The Fair Value Framework specifies that
thefair value of aliability should reflect the entity's non-performancerisk and accordingly, the effect of our own credit risk (spread)
has been factored into the determination of thefair value of our financial liabilities, including derivativeinstruments. | n estimating
the credit risk adjustment to the derivative assets and liabilities, we take into account the impact of netting and/or collateral
arrangements that are designed to mitigate counterparty credit risk.
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15. Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The following supplements should be read together with the disclosure in Note 22, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our
2013 Form 10-K. Only those matters with significant updates and new matters since our disclosure in our 2013 Form 10-K are
reported herein.

In addition to the matters described below, and in our 2013 Form 10-K, in the ordinary course of business, we are routinely named
asdefendantsin, or aspartiesto, variouslegal actionsand proceedingsrelating to activitiesof our current and/or former operations.
These legal actions and proceedings may include claims for substantial or indeterminate compensatory or punitive damages, or
for injunctive relief. In the ordinary course of business, we also are subject to governmental and regulatory examinations,
information-gathering requests, investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal), certain of which may result in adverse
judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. In connection with formal and informal inquiries by these
regulators, wereceive numerous requests, subpoenas and orders seeking documents, testimony and other information in connection
with various aspects of our regulated activities.

In view of theinherent unpredictability of litigation and regulatory matters, particularly where the damages sought are substantial
or indeterminate or when the proceedings or investigations arein the early stages, we cannot determine with any degree of certainty
the timing or ultimate resolution of litigation and regulatory matters or the eventual loss, fines, penalties or business impact, if
any, that may result. We establish reservesfor litigation and regulatory matters when those matters present loss contingencies that
are both probable and can be reasonably estimated. Once established, reserves are adjusted from time to time, as appropriate, in
light of additional information. Theactual costs of resolving litigation and regul atory matters, however, may be substantially higher
than the amounts reserved for those matters.

Giventhesubstantial or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters, and theinherent unpredictability of such matters,
an adverse outcome in certain of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financia statementsin
particular quarterly or annual periods. We currently are subject to apartial final judgment entered in October 2013 in the Securities
Litigation (Jaffe v. Household International, Inc., et al. (N.D. Ill. No. 02 C5893)) in the amount of $2.5 billion, plus pre-judgment
interest at the Prime Rate. Claimstotaling approximately $527 million, prior to theimposition of pre-judgment interest, alsoremain
pending that are still subject to objections not ruled on by the district court. Although the partial final judgment ison apped, if the
Appeals Court rejects or only partially accepts our arguments, the amount of damagesin the action, based upon that judgment, the
application of pre-judgment interest at the Prime Rate as ordered by the district court, and other pending claims, may liein arange
from arelatively insignificant amount to an amount up to or exceeding $3.5 billion. We continue to maintain a reserve for this
matter in an amount that represents management's current estimate of probable losses.

Litigation - Continuing Operations

Securities Litigation The appeal to the Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit in the Jaffe matter has been fully briefed and the
oral argument is currently scheduled for May 29, 2014.

Lender-Placed Insurance Matters Lender-placed insurance involves a lender obtaining an insurance policy (hazard or flood
insurance) on amortgaged property when the borrower fails to maintain their own policy. The cost of the lender-placed insurance
is then passed on to the borrower. Industry practices with respect to lender-placed insurance are receiving heightened regul atory
scrutiny from both federal and state agencies.

The various U.S. HSBC defendants entered into a Memorandum of Understanding in the Lopez v. HSBC Bank USA, N.A., et al.
(S.D. Fla 13-CV-21104) action to settle hazard lender-placed insurance claims on behalf of a nationwide class comprised of
borrowers“who, from January 1, 2005 to the present, were charged by HSBC defendants as assureds or additional assureds under
ahazard lender placed insurance policy for residential property.” The settlement pays claims of class members, on aclaims made
basis, based on aformula, aswell as class plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and costs of administration, with an overall cap of $32 million
for al payments. This settlement does not include claims related to lender-placed flood insurance, such as those asserted in the
Montanez, et al. v. HSBC Mortgage Corporation (USA), et al. (E.D. Pa. No. 11-CV-4074) and Weller, et al. v. HSBC Mortgage
Services, Inc., et al. (D. Col. No. 13-CV-00185) actions. The Southern District of Florida granted preliminary approva of the
settlement on March 24, 2014. The settlement is subject to final approval by the court.

Litigation - Discontinued Operations

Credit Card Litigation To date, opt-out merchants havefiled 35 opt-out suitsin either state or federal court, including one, Speedy
Stop Food Stores LLC v. Visa Inc. (Tex. Dist. Ct., VictoriaCity, No. 13-10-75377-A), that namescertain HSBC entitiesasdefendants.
Most of these opt-out suits have been transferred to the consolidated multi-district litigation, MDL1720. Pursuant to the MDL
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1720 Sharing Agreements, certain HSBC entities are responsible for a pro rata portion of any judgment or settlement amount
awarded in actions consolidated into MDL 1720.

Salveson v. JPMorgan Chase et al. (N.D.Cal. No. 13-CV-5816) On March 28, 2014, defendants, including the HSBC defendants
who have been served as of that date (HSBC Bank USA and HSBC Finance), filed a motion to dismiss.

Debt Cancellation Litigation The court in State of New Mexico ex rel Gary King, Attorney General, v. HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A.,
HSBC Card Services, Inc., and HSBC Bank USA, N.A., granted in part the HSBC defendants’ motion to dismiss, including that
portion of the motion seeking dismissal of the Attorney Genera’s claims under the New Mexico Unfair Practices Act. The only
remaining claims are those asserted under Regulation Z, as promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Act, which do not seek consumer
relief.

County of Cook v HSBC North America Holdings Inc., et al. (N.D. Ill. Case No. 1:14-cv-2031). On March 21, 2014, Cook County,
Illinois (the county in which the city of Chicago islocated) filed an action pursuant to the Fair Housing Act against HSBC North
America and certain subsidiaries that is substantially similar to the lawsuit filed by the counties of DeKalb, Fulton and Cobb in
Georgia. In this action, as in DeKalb County, et al. v. HSBC North America Holdings Inc., et al., the plaintiff asserts that the
defendants allegedly discriminatory lending and servicing practicesled toincreased | oan delinquencies, forecl osuresand vacancies,
which in turn caused the plaintiff to incur damages in the form of lost property tax revenues and increased municipal services
costs, among other damages. An amended complaint was filed on March 31, 2014. The action is at an early stage.

16. New Accounting Pronouncements

Unrecognized Tax Benefits In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an Accounting Standards
Updatethat providesguidanceonfinancial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when anet operatingloss(“NOL")
carryforward, asimilar tax loss, or atax credit carryforward exists in the same tax jurisdiction. The standard requires an entity to
present the unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of the deferred tax asset for an NOL or tax credit carryforward whenever the
NOL or tax credit carryforward woul d beavail ableto reducetheadditional taxableincomeor tax dueif thetax positionisdisallowed.
However, the standard requiresan entity to present an unrecogni zed tax benefit onthebal ance sheet asaliability if certain conditions
are met. We adopted this guidance on January 1, 2014. The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our unrecognized
tax benefit liahility.

Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans In January 2014, the FASB issued an Accounting Standards
Update to define an in-substance repossession or foreclosure of residential real estate for purposes of determining whether or not
an entity should derecognize a consumer mortgage loan collateralized by that real estate. Under the standard, an in-substance
repossession or foreclosure has occurred if the entity has obtained legal title to the real estate as aresult of the completion of a
foreclosure (even if the borrower has rights to reclaim the property after the foreclosure upon the payment of certain amounts
specified by law), or if, through adeed in lieu of foreclosure or other legal agreement, the borrower conveysall interest in the real
estate to the entity in satisfaction of theloan. The standard al so requires entitiesto disclose both the amount of forecl osed residential
real estate held as well as the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residential real estate that the
entity isin the process of foreclosing upon. The new guidance is effective for al annual and interim periods beginning January 1,
2015. We do not expect adoption of this standard will have a significant impact on our financial statements.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed throughout this Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may make or approve certain statements in future filings with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), in press releases, or oral or written presentations by representatives of HSBC
Finance Corporation that are not statements of historical fact and may also constitute forward-looking statements. Words such as
“may”, “will”, “should”, “would”, “could”, “appears’, “believe’, “intends’, “expects’, “estimates’, “targeted”, “plans’,
“anticipates’, “goa”, and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but should not be considered as
the only means through which these statements may be made. These matters or statements will relate to our future financial
condition, economic forecast, results of operations, plans, objectives, performance or business developments and will involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be
materially different from that which was expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements are, by their nature, subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our
actual future results may differ materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. While there is no assurance that
any list of risks and uncertainties or risk factors is complete, below are certain factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements:

e uncertain market and economic conditions, uncertainty relating to the U.S. debt and budget matters, the potential for
futuredowngrading of U.S. debt ratings, adeclinein housing prices, high unemployment, tighter credit conditions, changes
ininterest rates, theavailability of liquidity, unexpected geopolitical events, changesin consumer confidenceand consumer
spending, and consumer perception asto the continuing availability of credit and price competition inthe market segments
We Serve;

» changesin laws and regulatory requirements;

e extraordinary government actions as aresult of market turmoil;

e capital and liquidity requirements under Basel |11, and Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review ("CCAR");

« changesin central banks' policies with respect to the provision of liquidity support to financial markets;

« afailurein or abreach of our operation or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third party servicers or vendors,
e damageto our reputation;

« theability to retain key employees;

e our ability to meet our funding requirements;

e increasesin our alowance for credit losses and changesin our assessment of our loan portfolios;

» changes in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") and International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
accounting standards;

«  changesto our mortgage servicing and foreclosure practices,

«  continued heightened regulatory scrutiny with respect to residential mortgage servicing practices, with particular focus
on loss mitigation, foreclosure prevention and outsourcing;

» changesin bankruptcy lawsto alow for principal reductions or other maodifications to mortgage |oan terms;
e ourinability to wind down our real estate secured receivable portfolio at the same rate asin recent years,

» additional costs and expenses due to representations and warranties made in connection with |oan sale transactions that
may requireusto repurchasetheloansand/or indemnify privateinvestorsfor lossesdueto breachesof theserepresentations
and warranties;

» the possibility of incorrect assumptions or estimates in our financial statements, including reserves related to litigation,
deferred tax assets and the fair value of certain assets and liabilities;
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« additional financia contribution requirements to the HSBC North America Holdings Inc. (“HSBC North America’)
pension plan;

e unexpected and/or increased expenses relating to, among other things, litigation and regulatory matters; and

» theother risk factors and uncertainties described under Item 1A, "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013 (the "2013 Form 10-K").

Forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions and speak only as of the date they are made. We
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent circumstances or events. You should,
however, consider any additional disclosures of aforward-looking nature that arise after the date hereof as may be discussed in
any of our subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K.

Executive Overview

Organization and Basis of Reporting HSBC Finance Corporation and its subsidiaries are indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of
HSBC North America, which is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc (“HSBC” and, together with its
subsidiaries, "HSBC Group"). HSBC Finance Corporation and itssubsidiariesmay a so bereferred toin Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) as“we’, “us’, or “our”.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations excludes the results of our discontinued operations
unless otherwise noted. See Note 2, “ Discontinued Operations,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statementsfor further
discussion of these operations.

Current Environment The U.S. economy continued its gradual recovery during the first quarter of 2014. Consumer confidence,
however, declined during thefirst quarter of 2014 as severe winter weather across many parts of the United States and continuing
high gasoline prices dampened consumer sentiment. In March 2014, the Federal Reserve Board announced a further reductionin
its bond buying stimulus program and updated its guidance on short-term interest rates, putting less weight on the unemployment
rate and indicating that it would look at ‘ abroad range of economic indicators' in deciding when to start raising short-term interest
rates.

While the economy continued to add jobs in the first quarter of 2014, the pace of new job creation continued to be well short of
the pace needed to significantly reduce the number of long-term unemployed. The unemployment rate in the U.S. remained flat
during the quarter at 6.7 percent as more people began to look for work, athough a significant number of U.S. residents are no
longer looking for work and are not reflected in the U.S. unemployment rates. Unemployment has continued to have an impact
on the provision for credit losses in our loan portfolio and in loan portfolios across the industry. Concerns about the future of the
U.S. economy, including the pace and magnitude of recovery from the recent economic recession, consumer confidence, fiscal
policy, volatility in energy prices, credit market volatility including the ability to resolve various global financial issues and trends
in corporate earnings will continue to influence the U.S. economic recovery and the capital markets. In particular, continued
improvement in unemployment rates, asustained recovery of the housing markets and stabilization in energy pricesremain critical
components of abroader U.S. economic recovery. These conditionsin combination with the impact of recent regulatory changes,
will continue to impact our resultsin 2014 and beyond.

While the housing market in the U.S. continues to recover, the strength of the recovery varies by market. However, the impact of
servicers resuming foreclosure activities and the listing of the underlying properties for sale along with increases in mortgage
interest rates could slow down future price gains. In addition, certain courts and state legislatures have issued rules or statutes
relating to foreclosures and scrutiny of foreclosure documentation hasincreased in some courts. Also, in some areas, officials are
requiring additional verification of information filed prior to the foreclosure proceeding. The combination of these factors has led
to asignificant backlog of foreclosures which will take time to resolve.

Business Focus Asdiscussed in prior filings, we have adopted aformal program to initiate sale activities for real estate secured
receivablesin our held for investment portfolio when areceivable meeting pre-determined criteriais written down to the lower of
amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies (generally 180
days past due). During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred real estate secured receivablesto held for sale with
an unpaid principal balance of approximately $439 million at thetime of transfer. The net realizable value (carrying value) of these
receivables prior to transfer after considering the fair value of the property less cost to sell was approximately $342 million during
the three months ended March 31, 2014. As aresult of the transfer of these receivablesto held for sale, during the three months
ended March 31, 2014 we recorded alower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment of $60 million to reduce the carrying value
of the newly transferred loans, all of which was attributable to non-credit related factors (e.g. interest rates, market liquidity and
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differences in overall cost of capital assumptions) and was recorded as a component of total other revenues in the consolidated
statement of income. We currently expect additional real estate secured receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately $750 million could be transferred to held for sale during the remainder of 2014 aswe anticipate that during the year
they will be written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our
existing charge-off policies and therefore meet our criteriato be considered held for sale. We believe credit losses rel ated to these
receivables are substantially covered by our existing credit loss reserves. However, based on the current fair value of our existing
receivables held for sale portfolio, the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment for non-credit related factors on these
receivablescould beintherange of $120 million to $140 million. Our estimate of both the volume of loanswhichwill betransferred
to held for sale as they become 180 days past due as well as the fair value adjustment required for the aforementioned pool of
loansisinfluenced by factors outside our control such as changesin default rates, estimated coststo obtain properties, home prices
and investors' required returns amongst others. There is uncertainty inherent in these estimates making it reasonably possible that
they could be significantly different as factors impacting the estimates continually evolve.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we reversed $176 million of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment
previously recorded primarily due to an increase in the fair value of the real estate secured receivables held for sale as conditions
in the housing industry have continued to show improvement in the first quarter of 2014 due to modest improvementsin property
values as well as lower required market yields and increased investor demand for these types of receivables. As noted in the
preceding paragraph, these fair value estimates are influenced by numerous factors outside of our control and these factors have
been highly volatile in recent years. Accordingly, the improving trend in the fair value of receivables held for sale that began in
2013 and has continued during the first quarter of 2014 should not be considered indicative of fair value changesin future periods
as deterioration in these factors would likely require increases to our valuation allowance in future periods.

AtMarch 31,2014, thefair valueof thereal estate secured receivablesheld for sal etotal ed $2,420 million. Weexpect that receivables
held for sale at March 31, 2014 will be sold in multiple transactions generally over the next 15 months. If the foreclosure process
iscompleted prior to sale, the underlying propertiesacquired in satisfaction of thereceivableswill beclassified asrea estate owned
(“REQ”) and sold.

SeeNote6, “ ReceivablesHeldfor Sale,” intheaccompanying consolidated financial statementsfor additional informationregarding
receivables held for sale.

Excluding receivables held for sale as discussed above, our real estate secured receivable portfolio held for investment, which
totaled $25,481 millionat March 31, 2014, iscurrently running off. Thetimeframeinwhich thisportfoliowill liquidateisdependent
upon the rate at which receivables pay off or charge-off prior to their maturity, which fluctuates for a variety of reasons such as
interest rates, availability of refinancing, home values and individual borrowers' credit profile. In light of the current economic
conditions and mortgage industry trends, our loan prepayment rates have slowed when compared with historical experience even
though interest rates remain low. Additionally, our loan modification programs, which are primarily designed to improve cash
collections and avoid foreclosure as determined to be appropriate, are contributing to the slower loan prepayment rates. While
difficult to project both loan prepayment rates and default rates, based on current experience we expect our run-off real estate
secured receivable portfolio (excluding receivables held for sale) to be approximately $18 billion by the end of 2016. Attrition
will not be linear during this period. Run-off is expected to be slow as charge-offs decline and the remaining real estate secured
receivables stay on the balance sheet longer due to the impact of modifications and/or the lack of refinancing alternatives as well
as the impact of a continued elongated foreclosure process.

We continue to eval uate our operations as we seek to optimize our risk profile and cost efficiencies aswell as our liquidity, capital
and funding requirements. This could result in further strategic actionsthat may include changesto our legal structure, asset levels,
outstanding debt levels or cost structure in support of HSBC's strategic priorities. We also continue to focus on cost optimization
effortsto ensurerealization of cost efficienciesin an effort to create amore sustainabl e cost structure. Since2011, we haveidentified
various opportunitiesto reduce costs through organizational structure redesign, vendor spending, discretionary spending and other
general efficiency initiatives which have resulted in workforce reductions. Our focus on cost optimization is continuing and, as a
result, we may incur restructuring charges in future periods, the amount of which will depend upon the actions that ultimately are
implemented.

During the second quarter of 2014, we entered into an agreement to outsource the servicing of our REO portfolio to athird party
which we believe will result in a more efficient process for servicing our REO portfolio. The servicing will be transferred over
time and we anticipate the transfer will be completed by the end of 2014. Although we are transferring the servicing activitiesto
athird-party, the REO portfolio will remain on our balance sheet.

On May 1, 2014, we sold a pool of real estate secured receivables to a third-party investor with an aggregate unpaid principal
balance of $1,260 million (aggregate carrying value of $890 million) at the time of sale. Aggregate cash consideration for these
real estate secured receivables totaled $890 million. We incurred a loss on these transactions of approximately $9 million which
will be recorded during the second quarter of 2014, primarily reflecting transaction fees.
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Performance, Developmentsand Trends Thefollowingtablesetsforth selected financial highlightsof HSBC Finance Corporation
for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 and as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Income from CONtINUING OPErAiONS..........c.coueiuiieieieeieeeeceeee ettt e ete et beetesreetese e e e eseeseeneeseas $ 112 $ 304
Return on average assets ("ROA"), anNUAIIZE .........cccoeveeeecieeee e 1.2% 2.7%
Return on average common shareholder's equity ("ROE"), annualized..............cccceeeevevceencenennen. 5.8 21.6
Net interest Margin, aNNUBIZEAM ... ee e s s 2.70 3.67
Consumer net charge-off ratio, ANNUAITIZEAD ..o ceeese e seeeee e es e seeeeee 4.28 4.02
EFFICIENCY TAHOM ..ot n et ee e e eeeeene 69.1 35.8

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Real estate SecUred recaivables™ ... sees e $ 25481 $ 26,584
CrEdit 0SS TESEIVES .......ooovooieiesi e 2,997 3,273
Two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio for real estate secured receivables held for
INVESIMENED ... 8.52% 10.01%

@ See"Results of Operations’ for a detailed discussion of trendsin our net interest margin and efficiency ratio.

@ See"Credit Quality" for adetailed discussion of trends in credit |oss reserve levels as well as delinquency and charge-off ratios.

®  Ratio of total costs and expenses from continuing operations to net interest income and other revenues from continuing operations.
@ See"Receivables Review" for adetailed discussion of changesin real estate secured receivable levels.

We reported net income of $106 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with a net income of $226
million during the year-ago period. Income from continuing operations was $112 million during the three months ended March
31, 2014 compared with income from continuing operations of $304 million during the year-ago period. We reported income from
continuing operations before taxes of $95 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with income from
continuing operations before taxes of $456 million during the year-ago period. Our resultsin both periods were impacted by the
change in the fair value of own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have elected the fair value option which distorts
comparability of the underlying performance trends of our business. The following table summarizes the impact of thisitem on
our income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax for all periods presented.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Income from continuing operations before income tax, as reported..........cov e rereresereeeeee e $ 95 $ 456
Fair value movement on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread..........ccccevvvevvvvecvnieiennns 16 41
Underlying income from continuing operations before income tax® ..............cooooveoeeeeeceseeesseeseesseeseeons $ 111 ¢ 497

@ Represents anon-U.S. GAAPfinancial measure.

Excluding theimpact of fair value movement on fair value option debt attributable to credit spread as presented in the table above,
underlying income from continuing operations before tax during the three months ended March 31, 2014 declined $386 million
compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013. The decrease reflects significantly lower other revenues driven by
significantly higher reversalsin the prior year quarter of the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables held
for sale and lower net interest income, partially offset by lower operating expenses and lower provisions for credit losses.

See "Results of Operations' for a more detailed discussion of our operating trends. In addition, see "Receivables Review" for
further discussion on our receivable trends, "Liquidity and Capital Resources' for further discussion on funding and capital and
"Credit Quality" for additional discussion on our credit trends.
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Our return on average common sharehol der’sequity (“ ROE”) was 5.8 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared
with 21.6 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2013. Our return on average assets (“ROA") was 1.2 percent for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 compared with 2.7 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2013. ROE and ROA declined
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared with the prior year period due to lower net income during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 as discussed above.

Funding and Capital During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not receive any capital contributionsfrom
HSBC Investments (North America) Inc. ("HINO"). During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we retired $2,224 million of
term debt as it matured. The maturing debt cash requirements were met through funding from cash generated from operations,
including receivable sales and other balance sheet attrition, and liquidation of short term investments. The balance sheet dynamics
described above continue to have an impact on our liquidity and risk management processes. Continued success in reducing the
size of our receivable portfolios through sales of pools of real estate secured receivables will be the primary driver of our liquidity
during the remainder of 2014. However, lower cash flow as aresult of declining receivable balances may not provide sufficient
cash to fully repay maturing debt over the next four to five years. As we continue to liquidate our receivable portfolios, HSBC's
continued support will be required to properly manage our business operations and maintain appropriate levels of capital. HSBC
has historically provided significant capital in support of our operations and has indicated that it is fully committed and has the
capacity and willingness to continue that support. Any required incremental funding has been integrated into the overall HSBC
North Americafunding plans and will be sourced through HSBC USA Inc. or through direct support from HSBC or its affiliates.

Asdiscussed above, aportion of our real estate secured receivable portfolio is currently classified asheld for sale aswe no longer
have the intent to hold these receivables for the foreseeable future for capital or operational reasons. In the current market
environment, market pricing continues to value the portion of our real estate secured receivable portfolio held for investment at
amounts that would not provide a sufficient economic benefit to us upon sale. Therefore, we have determined that we have the
positive intent and ability to hold these remaining real estate secured receivables for the foreseeabl e future and, as such, continue
to classify these real estate secured receivables as held for investment. However, should market pricing improve in the future or
if HSBC calls upon us to execute certain strategies in order to address capital and other considerations, it could result in the
reclassification of additional real estate secured receivablesto held for sale.

Basis of Reporting

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (“U.S. GAAP"). Unless noted, the discussion of our financial condition and results of operationsincluded in MD&A are
presented on a continuing operations basis of reporting. Certain reclassifications have been madeto prior year amountsto conform
to the current year presentation.

In addition to the U.S. GAAPfinancial resultsreported in our consolidated financial statements, MD& A includes reference to the
following information which is presented on anon-U.S. GAAP basis:

Equity Ratios Tangible common equity to tangible assets is anon-U.S. GAAP financial measure that is used by HSBC Finance
Corporation management and certain rating agencies to evaluate capital adequacy. This ratio excludes from equity the impact of
unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedging instruments, postretirement benefit plan adjustments and unrealized gains (losses)
on investments as well as subsequent changesin fair value recognized in earnings associated with debt for which we elected the
fair value option and the related derivatives. Thisratio may differ from similarly named measures presented by other companies.
The most directly comparable U.S. GAAP financial measure is the common and preferred equity to total assets ratio. For a
guantitative reconciliation of these non-U.S. GAAP financial measures to our common and preferred equity to total assets ratio,
see “Reconciliations of Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measuresto U.S. GAAP Financial Measures.”

International Financial Reporting Standards Because HSBC reports financia information in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs’) and IFRSs operating results are used in measuring and rewarding performance of
empl oyees, our management al so separately monitors net income under | FRSs (anon-U.S. GAAPfinancial measure). All purchase
accounting fair value adjustments relating to our acquisition by HSBC have been “pushed down” to HSBC Finance Corporation
for both U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The following table reconciles our net income on a U.S. GAAP basisto a net gain (loss) on an
IFRSs basis:
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
NEL INCOME — U.S. GAAP DBSIS......coiiiiiietiiiisieteeeee ettt ettt sttt s st se st st ebe s st be e ssebesenessanetas $ 106 $ 226
Adjustments, net of tax:
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments on loans held for sale........cccooeveieiiiecniccceeee, (138) (416)
L O8N IMPBITITIENE. ...ttt sttt b e b e bt e bbb e st b st b et s b e e e b s e bt s e bt b e b e b se st enenbenes 32 29
TaX VAlUBLION BlIOWANCES. ..ottt bbbt bbbttt 20 —
L 0SS 0N Sal€ Of INSUrANCE DUSINESS........ui ittt et e e sbe s — (92)
Loan origination COSE AEfEITAlS. ..o e et 4 3
[NEEFESE FECOTNITION ...ttt ettt bbb e bbb bbbt b et st e et e et e e et e ne b e 1) —
Present value of 1ong term iNSUraNCe CONTACES ........cveieiriieee e s sre e — 1
Pension and other postretirement DENEfit COSES ........oouirrririe s — 4
@ 13T SRR 2 4
Net iNCOME (10SS) — IFRSS DASIS......c.eiiiiiiicieie ettt s re st te s te e e e e e e e eseeseesesneenens 25 (249)
TaxX DENEfit — IFRSSDESIS. ....ceiee ettt et sne e 81 128
LOSS BEfOre taX — IFRSSESIS ......cvciiieicieicecee ettt sttt s b et $ (56) $ (377)

A summary of differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs as they impact our results are presented in our 2013 Form 10-K. There
have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013 inthedifferencesbetween U.S. GAAPand | FRSsimpacting our results.

Quantitative Reconciliations of Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measures to U.S. GAAP Financial Measures For gquantitative
reconciliations of non-U.S. GAAPfinancial measures presented herein to the equivalent U.S. GAAP basisfinancial measures, see
“Reconciliations of Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measuresto U.S. GAAP Financia Measures.”

Receivables Review

The following table summarizes receivables and receivables held for sale at March 31, 2014 and increases (decreases) since
December 31, 2013:

Increases (Decreases) From
December 31, 2013

March 31,
2014 $ %
(dollars are in millions)

Receivables:
Real estate secured:

= 1= ST $ 22,599 $ (969) (4.1)%

SECONA HBN....ooviiiii s 2,882 (134) (4.4)
Total real estate secured receivables held for investment™® ............ooo.conrrvernnrrreenn. $ 25481 $ (1,103 (4.1)%

Receivables held for sale:
First lien real estate secured receivables held for sale®...........oooouieeiviveeeseeeeseese, $ 2420 $ 373 18.2 %

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, real estate secured receivables held for investment includes $927 million and $879 million, respectively, of
receivables that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policy.

@ Asdiscussed below, as aresult of the transfer of certain real estate secured receivables to held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014, the
trend for changes in receivabl e balances between March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 reflects more than the change in the underlying receivables.

®  SeeNote 6, "Receivables Held for Sale," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for detail information related to the movementsin the real
estate secured receivables held for sale balances between periods.
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Real estate secured receivables held for investment The decrease since December 31, 2013 reflects the continued liquidation of
thereal estate secured receivable portfoliowhichwill continuegoing forward aswell asthetransfer of real estate secured receivables
to held for sale with a carrying value prior to transfer of approximately $342 million during the three months ended March 31,
2014. Theliquidation ratesin our real estate secured receivable portfolio continue to be impacted by low loan prepayments as few
refinancing opportunities for our customers exist.

Prior to 2013, real estate markets in a large portion of the United States had been affected by stagnation or declines in property
values for a number of years. As aresult, the loan-to-value (“LTV") ratios for our real estate secured receivable portfolios have
generally deteriorated since origination. Receivables that have an LTV greater than 100 percent have historically had a greater
likelihood of becoming delinquent, resulting in higher loss severities which adversely impacts our provision for credit losses. The
following table presents LTV ratios for our real estate secured receivable portfolio held for investment as of March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. The improvement in LTV ratios since December 31, 2013 reflects the improvements in home prices during
the quarter.

LTV Ratios W@®

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
First Second First Second
Lien Lien Lien Lien

I Y 0 USSR 43% 16% 41% 15%
..................................................................................................... 18 12 18 12
................................................................................................... 17 17 17 17
............................................................................................................... 22 55 24 56
AVErage LTV fOr POrFOli0......ccieerieirieieeieese et 83 101 84 103
AVErage LTV fOr LTV>100%0 ......cceieieeeeeeeeesesesestesieseestes e ssessessessesseessessessessenees 113 118 114 120

@ LTV ratiosfor first liens are cal cul ated using the receivable balance, excluding any accrued interest income, as of the reporting date (including any charge-
offs recorded to reduce receivables to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off
policies). LTV ratios for second liens are calculated using the receivable balance as of the reporting date (including any charge-offs recorded to reduce
receivables to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies) plus the senior
lien amount at origination. For purposes of this disclosure, current estimated property values are derived from the property's appraised value at the time of
receivableorigination updated by thechangeintheFederal Housing FinanceAgency's(formerly known asthe Officeof Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight)
house pricing index (“HPI") at either a Core Based Statistical Area (“CBSA”) or state level. The estimated value of the homes could differ from actual fair
values due to changes in condition of the underlying property, variations in housing price changes within metropolitan statistical areas and other factors. As
aresult, actual property values associated with loans that end in foreclosure may significantly differ from the estimated values used for purposes of this
disclosure.

@ For purposes of this disclosure, current estimated property values are calculated using the most current HPI's available and applied on an individual loan
basis, which results in an approximate three month delay in the production of reportable statistics for the current period. Therefore, the March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 information in the table above reflects current estimated property values using HPIs as of December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013,
respectively.

®  Excludes the purchased receivable portfolios which totaled $798 million and $831 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Receivables held for sale Receivables held for sale totaled $2,420 million at March 31, 2014 compared with $2,047 million at
December 31, 2013. Theincrease since December 31, 2013 reflects the transfer of additional real estate secured receivableswhich
had been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing
charge-off policiesinto receivables held for sale with a fair value of approximately $262 million at the time transfer during the
three months ended March 31, 2014 as discussed above. The increase also reflects an increase in the fair value of the real estate
receivables held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014. The increases were partialy offset by short sales of
receivables held for sale which occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and the transfer of receivables held for
sale to REO. See Note 6, “Receivables Held for Sale,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information.
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Real Estate Owned

The following table provides quarterly information regarding our REO properties:

Quarter Ended

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
2014 2013 2013 2013 2013
Number of REO properties at end of period........cccccceeveurennne. 2,912 4,149 4,509 3,984 3,242
Number of properties added to REO inventory inthe period.. 1,125 2,008 2,727 2,659 2,130
Average |loss (gain) on sale of REO properties™ .................... (.6)% (2)% A% 1% 3.4%
Average total loss on foreclosed properties®...........ccooone..... 51.5 % 51.9 % 51.2% 50.3% 52.5%
Average timeto sell REO properties (in days)........cccceveveeeenns 156 157 150 150 160

@ Property acquired through foreclosureisinitially recognized at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less estimated coststo sell (“Initial
REO Carrying Amount”). The average loss on sale of REO propertiesis calculated as cash proceeds less the Initial REO Carrying Amount divided by the
unpaid loan principal balance prior to write-down (excluding any accrued interest income) plus certain other ancillary disbursements that, by law, are
reimbursable from the cash proceeds (e.g., real estate tax advances) and were incurred prior to our taking title to the property and does not include holding
costs on REO properties. This ratio represents the portion of our total loss on foreclosed properties that occurred after we took title to the property.

@ Theaveragetotal loss on foreclosed properties sold each quarter includes both the loss on sale of the REO property as discussed above and the cumulative
write-downs recognized on the loans up to the time we took title to the property. This calculation of the average total |oss on foreclosed properties uses the
unpaid loan principal balance prior to write-down (excluding any accrued interest income) plus certain other ancillary disbursements that, by law, are
reimbursable from the cash proceeds (e.g., real estate tax advances) and were incurred prior to the date we took title to the property and does not include
holding costs on REO properties.

As previously reported, beginning in late 2010 we temporarily suspended all new foreclosure proceedings and in early 2011
temporarily suspended foreclosures in process where judgment had not yet been entered while we enhanced foreclosure
documentation and processes for foreclosures and re-filed affidavits where necessary. As of March 31, 2014, we have resumed
processing suspended foreclosure actionsin substantially all states and have referred substantially all of the backlog of loans for
foreclosure. We have a so begun initiating new foreclosure activities in substantially all states. The number of REO properties at
March 31, 2014 declined as we added fewer properties to REO inventory during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as many
of the receivables for which the underlying property had been in the process of foreclosure, were sold in December 2013. The
number of REO properties added to inventory during the remainder of 2014 will continue to be impacted by our receivable sale
program as many of the properties currently in the process of foreclosurewill be sold prior to our taking title and, to alesser extent,
will be impacted by the extended foreclosure timelines.

The average |oss on sale of REO properties and the average total 10ss on foreclosed properties for the first quarter of 2014 were
essentially flat as compared with the prior quarter.

Results of Operations

Unless noted otherwise, the foll owing discusses amounts from continuing operations as reported in our consolidated statement of
income.

Net Interest Income Thefollowing table summarizesnet interest income and net interest margin for the threemonthsended March
31, 2014 and 2013:

Three months ended March 31, 2014 o%® 2013 o%®
(dollars are in millions)

[NEEFESE INCOME. ... vttt $ 506 5.90% $ 773 7.19%

[NLEFESE EBXPENSE. ... 274 3.20 379 3.52

NEL INtErESt INCOME .....uviiiciririeieie et $ 232 270% $ 394 3.67%

@ o4 Columns; comparison to average interest-earning assets.
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Net interest income decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to the following:

* Average receivable levels decreased largely as aresult of the sale of our portfolio of personal non-credit card receivables
onApril 1, 2013 as well asreal estate secured receivable liquidation, including receivable sales subsequent to March 31,
2013.

» Overal receivable yields decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as a result of a significant shift in
receivable mix to higher levels of lower yielding first lien real estate secured receivables asaresult of the sale of our higher
yielding persona non-credit card receivable portfolio on April 1, 2013 and continued run-off in our second lien real estate
secured receivables portfolio. While overall receivable yiel ds decreased as compared with the prior year quarter, receivable
yieldsin our real estate secured receivable portfolio improved during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to lower
levels of nonaccrual receivables.

* |nterest expense decreased resulting from lower average borrowings and lower average rates.

Net interest margin was 2.70 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with 3.67 percent for the three months
ended March 31, 2013. The decrease in net interest margin for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was driven by the lower
overall receivable yields largely due to the sale of our higher yielding personal non-credit card receivable portfolio on April 1,
2013 asdiscussed above, partialy offset by alower cost of funds as a percentage of average interest earning assets. Thefollowing
table summarizes the significant trends affecting the comparability of net interest income and net interest margin:

2014
(dollars are in millions)

Net interest income/net interest margin from Prior Year QUAItEN ...........cocoereeeeeeerierienerese e $ 3% 3.67%
Impact to net interest income resulting from: -

oY= =5 = =Y 1= SR (206)

RECAIVADIE YIEIUS. ...ttt ettt s et e st e et e s e s e st ensesenenin (68)

Cost of fUNAS (rate @Nd VOIUME) .......oiveeiieiiieiriest et 104

L 11T PSP P PSPPSRSO 8
Net interest income/net interest Margin for CUrTENt QUAIEY ...........oierererereeeeee e e $ 232 2.70%

The varying maturities and repricing frequencies of both our assets and liabilities expose usto interest rate risk. When the various
risksinherent in both the asset and the debt do not meet our desired risk profile, we use derivative financial instrumentsto manage
these risks to acceptable interest rate risk levels. See “Risk Management” for additional information regarding interest rate risk
and derivative financial instruments.

Provision for Credit Losses The following table summarizes provision for credit losses by product:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Provision for credit losses:
REBI ESLAEE SECUME ...ttt ettt ettt e e et e e beseebeseebestesestessssenestensstensetensetens $ 6 $ 56
Personal NON-Credit Card.........ciereeieieiee e re st se e st aese e e e e e e e e enenns 4 (32
1= | SRS RRS $ 2 $ 24

Our provision for credit |osses decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared with the three months ended
March 31, 2013 as discussed below.

» The provision for credit losses for real estate secured loans significantly improved reflecting the impact of lower loss
estimates due to lower receivable levels and improved credit quality, including lower dollars of delinquency on accounts
less than 180 days contractually delinquent as compared with the prior year quarter. The improvement aso reflects the
transfer of certain real estate secured receivablesto held for sale subsequent to March 31, 2013. Subsequent to the transfer
to held for sale no further provision for credit losses are recorded on these receivables as receivables held for sale are
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. The improvement in the provision for credit losses a so reflects lower
new troubled debt restructure ("TDR Loan") volumes and lower reserve requirements on TDR Loans resulting from
improvementsin loss and severity estimates based on recent trends in the portfolio.

* The provision for credit losses for personal non-credit card receivables for both the three months ended March 31, 2014
and 2013 reflects recoveries received from borrowers on fully charged-off personal non-credit card receivables that were
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not transferred to held for sale because there were no receivabl e balances outstanding. Additionally, the three monthsended
March 31, 2013 includes $10 million of cash proceeds received from the bulk sale of recovery rights of certain previously
charged-off personal non-credit card receivables.

Net charge-offstotaled $278 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with $326 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2013. The decrease in net charge-offs during the three months ended March 31, 2014 reflects lower charge-off
on accounts that reach 180 days contractual delinquency as aresult of improvementsin home prices since March 31, 2013. The
decrease also reflects the impact of the transfer of certain real estate secured receivablesto held for sale subsegquent to March 31,
2013 as there are no longer any charge-offs associated with the receivables after the transfer to held for sale which impacts
comparability between the periods. See “ Credit Quality” for further discussion of our net charge-offs.

Credit lossreservesat March 31, 2014 decreased as compared with December 31, 2013 asthe provision for credit losseswas |ower
than net charge-offs by $276 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014. The decrease compared with December 31,
2013 reflects lower reserve reguirements on TDR Loans, lower receivable levels and lower levels of two-months-and-over
contractua delinquency on accountslessthan 180 days contractually delinquent. Reserve requirementson TDR Loanswere lower
at March 31, 2014 due to lower new TDR Loan volumes as well as the impact of continuing improvements in loss and severity
estimates based on recent trends in the portfolio. The decrease also reflects the transfer to held for sale of additional real estate
secured receivables during the three months ended March 31, 2014 which had been written down to the lower of amortized cost
or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell as previously discussed. Credit 10ss reserves associated with these receivables prior
to their transfer to held for sale totaled $20 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and was recognized as an
additional charge-off at the time of the transfer to held for sale. See “ Credit Quality” for further discussion of credit loss reserves.

Other Revenues The following table summarizes the components of other revenues:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Derivative related EXPENSE ......cccvviieeeieie sttt $ (90) $ (100) $ 10 10.0%
Gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives...........ccooceveuneee. 31 16 15 93.8%
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates........ccccooeveveerecececcece e 8 7 1  14.3%
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables held for sale. 111 454 (343) (75.6)%
OtNEN TNCOIME......ctiiitiicte ettt bbb 22 (23) 45 *
TOtal OtNEN FTEVENUES.........ovveeeeceteeeee ettt es $ 82 $ 3% $ (272) (76.8%

* Not meaningful

Derivative related expense includesrealized and unrealized gainsand losses on derivativeswhich do not qualify aseffective hedges
under hedge accounting principles, ineffectiveness on derivatives which are qualifying hedges and, for the three months ended
March 31, 2013, aderivativel ossrecognized on thetermination of hedgeson certain debt asdiscussed morefully bel ow. Designation
of swaps as effective hedges reduces the volatility that would otherwise result from mark-to-market accounting. All derivatives
are economic hedges of the underlying debt instruments regardless of the accounting treatment. The following table summarizes
derivative related expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
NEL rEaliZEH [OSSES.......ocuiiiiii $ (26) $ (27
Mark-to-market on derivatives which do not qualify as effective hedges...........ccccoeevvriiicincciccnnne (69) 110
Hedge accounting INEffECHIVENESS..........oceeicce ettt sre e 5 16
Derivative loss recognized on termination of NEAgES............ccceveiiiiicieiiccc e — (199)
TOLBL.cvuveveveiesee ettt et b bt $ (90) $ (100)

As previously discussed, our real estate secured receivables are remaining on the balance sheet longer due to lower prepayment
rates. At March 31, 2014, we had $3.1 hillion of interest rate swaps outstanding for the purpose of offsetting the increase in the
duration of these receivables and the corresponding increase in interest rate risk as measured by the present value of a basis point
(“PVBP”). While these positions acted as economic hedges by lowering our overal interest rate risk and more closely matching
both the structure and duration of our liabilitiesto the structure and duration of our assets, they did not qualify as effective hedges
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under hedge accounting principles. As aresult, these positions are carried at fair value and are marked-to-market through income
while the item being hedged is not carried at fair value and, therefore, no offsetting fair value adjustment is recorded. Our non-
qualifying hedges at March 31, 2014 are primarily longer-dated pay fixed/receive variable interest rate swaps with an averagelife
of 10.1 years. Market value movements for the longer-dated pay fixed/receive variable interest rate swaps may be volatile during
periodsin which long-term interest rates fluctuate, but they economically lock in fixed interest rates for a set period of timewhich
results in funding that is better aligned with longer term assets when considered in conjunction with variable rate borrowings.

Derivative related expense improved slightly during the three months ended March 31, 2014. The year-ago period was impacted
by a derivative loss of $199 million recognized on the termination of hedges on certain debt as discussed more fully below.
Excluding thisitem from the year-ago period, derivative related expense deteriorated during three months ended March 31, 2014
as aresult of falling long-term interest rates during the first quarter of 2014 which had a negative impact on the mark-to-market
for this portfolio of swaps. Rising long-term interest rates during the first quarter of 2013 had a positive impact on the mark-to-
market for this portfolio of swaps. Net realized losses were essentially flat during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as
compared with the prior year quarter. Ineffectiveness during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 was primarily
related to our cross currency cash flow hedges that are approaching maturity.

Asdiscussed in previousfilings, we have approximately $1.0 billion of junior subordinated notesissued to HSBC Finance Capital
Trust IX ("HFCT IX"). HFCT IX, which is a related but unconsolidated entity, issued trust preferred securities to third party
investors to fund the purchase of the junior subordinated notes. In October 2013, U.S. Regulators published a final rule in the
Federal Register implementing the Basel 111 capital framework under which the trust preferred securitieswill no longer qualify as
Tier | capital. In anticipation of these changes as well as other recent changesin our assessment of cash flow needs, including long
term funding considerations, in thefirst quarter of 2013 we terminated the associated cash flow hedges associated with these notes,
whichresultedinthereclassification toincome of $199 million of unrealized | osses previously accumul ated in other comprehensive
income during the three months ended March 31, 2013.

Net income volatility, whether based on changes in interest rates for swaps which do not qualify for hedge accounting or
ineffectiveness recorded on our qualifying hedges under the long haul method of accounting, impacts the comparability of our
reported results between periods. Accordingly, derivative related expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 or any prior
periods should not be considered indicative of the results for any future periods.

Gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives reflectsfair value changes on our fixed rate debt accounted for under
FVO aswell asthefair value changes and realized gains (losses) on the related derivatives associated with debt designated at fair
value. Theimprovement in the first quarter of 2014 relates primarily to lower losses from tighter credit spreads in comparison to
the prior year quarter. See Note 7, “Fair Vaue Option,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information, including a break out of the components of the gain on debt designated at fair value and related derivatives.

Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates represents revenue received under service level agreements under which we service
real estate secured receivables as well as rental revenue from HSBC Technology & Services (USA) Inc. (“"HTSU”) for certain
office and administrative costs. Servicing and other feesfrom HSBC affiliates were essentially flat as compared with the year-ago
quarter.

Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on receivables held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014
totaled income of $111 million primarily reflecting an increase in the fair value of the real estate receivables held for sale during
2014 which included a partia offset of $60 million related to the initial transfer of additional real estate secured receivables to
held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014 at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. As previously discussed,
conditions in the housing industry have continued to show improvement in the first quarter of 2014 due to modest improvements
in property values as well as lower required market yields and increased investor demand for these types of receivables. These
fair value estimates are influenced by numerous factors outside of our control and these factors have been highly volatilein recent
years. All of the reduction in fair value of $60 million related to the transfer of additional real estate secured receivables which
had been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell to held for sale during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 as discussed above, was attributable to non-credit related factors. There were no receivables
transferred to held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2013. See Note 6, "Receivables Held for Sale" in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional discussion.

Other income was income of $22 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with aloss of $23 millionin
the year-ago quarter as the current quarter included a net decrease in the estimated repurchase liability recorded through earnings
primarily related to the personal non-credit card receivable portfolio sold on April 1, 2013 while the year-ago quarter included an
increase in the estimated repurchase liability recorded through earnings as reflected in the table below.

Our reservefor potential repurchase liability represents our best estimate of the loss that has been incurred resulting from various
representations and warranties in the contractual provisions of all of our loan sales. Our repurchase liability exposure at March
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31, 2014 of $82million primarily relatesto receivablessold by Decision Onein previousyears. Becausethelevel of loan repurchase
losses are dependent upon investor strategies for bringing claims or pursuing legal action for losses incurred, the level of the
liability for loan repurchase losses requires significant judgment. The following table summarizes the changes in our reserve for
potential repurchase liability related to all of our loan sales:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
Balance at Deginning Of PEMOM ..ot $ 116 $ 36
(Decrease) increasein liability recorded through €arnings..........cccoeveerrereenee e (16) 25
REAIZEA IOSSES........cuiiiiii s (18) —
Balance at €N Of PEITO.........oiviirieiieere ettt ettt st st e e $ 82 % 61

As we have limited information of the losses incurred by investors, there is uncertainty inherent in these estimates making it
reasonably possible that they could change. The range of reasonably possible losses in excess of our recorded repurchase liability
is between zero and $62 million at March 31, 2014 related to claims that have been filed.

Operating Expenses Compliance costs continued to be a significant component of our operating expenses totaling $11 million
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with $35 million during the year-ago period primarily within other
servicing and administrative expenses. While compliance related costs remain elevated as compared with historical periods, due
to the remediation requirements and continuing compliance of the Federal Reserve Servicing Consent Order, our agreement in the
first quarter of 2013 with the Federal Reserveto ceasethe Independent Forecl osure Review has positively impacted our compliance
cost trends.

The following table summarizes the components of operating expenses. The cost trends in the table bel ow include fixed allocated
costs which have not necessarily declined in line with the run-off of our loan portfolio, which will continue in future periods.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Salaries and employee DENEFits..........cocveiveiiiicncc e $ 56 $ 64 $ 8) (12.5%
Occupancy and equipment EXPENSES, NEL........ccvveeveereneeeneee s seesenens 9 9 — —%
Real estate OWNed EXPENSES..........ccurierericiei e 12 22 (10) (45.5%
Other servicing and adminiStrative EXPENSES..........cvrrerrerereresrneeeseseseeeenens 80 105 (25) (23.8)%
Support services from HSBC affiliates...........cccovvviviiniiinnnine, 60 68 (8) (11.8)%
OPEratiNng EXPENSES...c.vviveeeeererieresereseetesesessssesesesessssssesessssesasessssesssasssssseseneas $ 217 $ 268 $ (51) (19.0)%

Salaries and employee benefits decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to the impact of the continuing
reduced scope of our business operations and the impact of entity-wide initiatives to reduce costs. The decrease a so reflects the
impact of the conversion of the personal non-credit card receivables to the purchaser's system on September 1, 2013 which also
resulted in the transfer of over 200 employees to the purchaser as discussed more fully in Note 6, "Receivables Held for Sale.”
These decreases were partially offset by increased staffing associated with the transfer of additional employeesto HSBC Finance
Corporation who had previously been centralized in North America and whose salary and employee benefits were previously
allocated to us but primarily support the activities of HSBC Finance Corporation. Beginning on January 1, 2014, the salary and
employee benefits related to these additional employees are now reported within HSBC Finance Corporation.

Occupancy and equipment expenses, net were flat during the three months ended March 31, 2014.
Real estate owned expenses decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 dueto lower losses on sales of REO property
as aresult of improvementsin home prices as compared with the prior year period.

Other servicing and administrative expenses decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 reflecting lower fees for
consulting services as a result of our agreement in the first quarter of 2013 with the Federal Reserve to cease the Independent
Foreclosure Review. The decrease also reflects continuing reduction in the scope of our business operations and the impact of
entity-wide initiatives to reduce costs.

Support services from HSBC affiliates decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as support services from HSBC
affiliatesreflectslower technology and compliance support costs aswell astheimpact of additional employeeswho had previously
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been centralized in North America and billed to HSBC Finance Corporation now being reported within salaries and employee
benefits of HSBC Finance Corporation effective January 1, 2014 as discussed above.

Efficiency Ratio from continuing operations was 69.1 percent during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared with 35.8
percent during the three months ended March 31, 2013. Our efficiency ratio from continuing operations in both periods was
impacted by the change in the fair value of own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have el ected the fair value option.
Excluding this changein fair value attributable to credit spreads from the periods presented, our efficiency ratio remained higher
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as a result of lower other revenues during the current quarter as the prior year
period benefited from alarger improvement in the fair value of real estate secured receivables held for sale. The efficiency ratio
was also negatively impacted by lower net interest income, partially offset by lower operating expenses.

Income taxes Thefollowing table provides an analysis of the difference between effective income tax rates based on the total tax
provision attributable to pretax income and the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Tax provision (benefit) at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate.......... $ 33 35.0% $ 160 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of Federal benefit.........c.coeovvvvcecnncccncnn 1 11 4 9
Adjustment with respect to tax for prior periods™ ............cccc..ovevvernnnn. 6 6.3 (10) (2.2)
Adjustment of tax rate used to value deferred taxes? ............cccoo..coeennnns (52)  (54.7) (5) (1.1
Change in valuation allowance reserves™? ..............coooeeeeevisseeeen (4) (4.2) 10 2.2
Uncertain tax reserves adjustments™............ccc..cooevvenemveienevosessiossssionnn. ©) (3.2) (5) (1.1
Other non-deductible/non-taxable items..............coveeeiicciciieccnne €)) (1.1) — —
OUNEN ... 3 2.9 2 (.4
Total income tax provision (PENEFit)..........ocoviviiiiiiiiiics $ 17 (17.9% $ 152 33.3%

@ For 2014, the amount relates to changes in estimates in the amount of state income taxes deductible on the federal income tax return. For 2013, the amount
relatesto correctionsto current and deferred tax balance sheet accounts and changesin estimates as aresult of filing the federal and state incometax returns.

@ For 2014, the amount primarily relates to the effects of re-valuing our deferred tax assets for New York State Tax Reform that was enacted on March 31,
2014.

®  For 2014 and 2013, the amounts primarily relate to changes in val uation allowance reserves in states with net operating |oss carryforward periods of 12 to
20 years.

@ For 2014 and 2013, the amounts primarily relate to the conclusion of state audits and expiration of state statutes of limitations.

On March 31, 2014, New York Governor Cuomo signed legisiation overhauling New York’s corporate tax regime as well other
significant tax changes. Most of these changes take effect for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and will have a
significant and positive future economic impact on HSBC entitieswith activity taxed in New York State, including us. Asaresult,
these changes have had an impact on our deferred taxes at March 31, 2014 and resulted in an increase to our net deferred tax asset
of approximately $55 million.

Segment Results — IFRSs Basis

We have one reportable segment: Consumer. Our Consumer segment consists of our run-off Consumer Lending and Mortgage
Servicesbusinesses. Whilethese businessesare operating in run-off, they have not been reported asdi scontinued operationsbecause
we continue to generate cash flow from the ongoing collections of the receivables, including interest and fees. Our segment results
arereported on acontinuing operations basi s. There have been no changesin measurement or composition of our segment reporting
as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

We report financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance with IFRSs. Our segment results are presented in accordance
with IFRSs (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure) on a legal entity basis as operating results are monitored and reviewed and
trends are eval uated on an IFRSs basis. However, we continue to monitor liquidity and capital adequacy, establish dividend policy
and report to regulatory agencieson aU.S. GAAP basis.
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Consumer Segment The following table summarizes the IFRSs results for our Consumer segment for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INLEIESE INCOME .....oceeeevtceee ettt ettt $ 372 $ 636 $ (264 (415%
Other OpeErating INCOME.........cviuiirieireerisiee e ae e aeseseens (84) (199) 115 57.8
Total OPErating INCOME.......couirieeirieiiriee e bbb 288 437 (149) (341
Loan impairment Charges........covveeieeie e 118 319 201 63.0
Net interest income and other operating income after loan impairment

(o= 0 == 170 118 52 4.1
OPErating EXPENSES ....c.veueteiertererteeeteseeress et seese st et s s e s e s s s seseseenes 216 255 39 153
INCOME (10SS) DEFOIE taX......cecveeericecte e $ 46 $ (137 % 91 66.4%
NEL INETESE MAIGIN.....ovvvvveiereeissessesisess s T 436%  573% 00— @ —
EffICIENCY FaIO. ... ittt 75.0 58.4 — —
Return after-tax on average assetS ("ROA™) ..o 3 (.7 — —

Balances at end of period:

CUSEOMEY TOBINS......eeveeee e ees s ee s ee s eesesenees $27283 $36021 $ (8738  (24.3)%
L0aNS hEld FOr SAEY ... 956 3,455 (2,499) (72.3)
= Y 37,152 46,941 (9,789)  (20.9)

@ OnApril 1, 2013, we completed the sale of our personal non-credit card loan portfolio which had been classified as held for sale and totaled $3,213 million
at March 31, 2013.

Our Consumer segment reported alower loss before tax during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared with theloss
before tax during the year-ago period. The improvement reflects lower loan impairment charges, higher other operating income
and lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower net interest income.

Loan impairment charges improved during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as discussed below:

* The decrease in loan impairment charges for the real estate secured loan portfolio during the three months ended March
31, 2014 reflectslower level sof new impaired|oansand lower | oan bal ancesoutstanding asaresult of continuedliquidation
of the portfolio including loan sales as well as lower loss estimates due to lower delinquency and loss severity levels as
compared with the first quarter of 2013.

* Loan impairment charges for personal non-credit card |oans decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as
the portfolio was sold on April 1, 2013.

Loan impairment charges were $201 million lower than net charge-offs during the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared
with loan impairment charges lower than net charge-offs of $222 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. Loan
impairment allowances decreased to $2,551 million at March 31, 2014 compared with $2,960 million at December 31, 2013 asa
result of lower levels of new impaired |oans as aresult of lower loan levels and improved economic conditions, improvementsin
loss severity, lower delinquency levels and transfers of real estate secured loans to held for sale. During the three months ended
March 31, 2014 real estate secured loans transferred to held for sale had loan impairment allowances totaling $161 million at the
time of transfer. Loans held for sale and the associated loan impairment allowances are reported as a component of other assets.
However, these loans continue to be accounted for and impairment continues to be measured through loan impairment chargesin
accordance with |AS 39 with any gain or loss recorded at the time of sale.

As discussed previously, we have identified a pool of real estate secured loans we intend to sell, although only a portion of this
pool of real estate secured loans currently qualifies for classification as held for sale under IFRSs at March 31, 2014. Assuming
we had completed the sale of the entire pool of real estate secured loans held for sale under U.S. GAAP on March 31, 2014, based
on market values at that time, we would have recorded a loss of approximately $75 million before consideration of transaction
costs.
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During April 2014, we commenced the active marketing to sell a further portion of our real estate secured loans. At that time, the
sale was considered highly probable and these loans were classified as held for sale under IFRSs. As of March 31, 2014, the loans
had an unpaid principal balance of approximately $320 million and a carrying amount before impairment allowance, but including
the effect of write-downs, of approximately $220 million. We expect to complete the sale of these loans in the third quarter of
2014.

On May 1, 2014, we completed the sale of real estate secured receivables with an aggregate unpaid principal balance of $1,260
million (carrying value of $869 million after impairment allowance and including the effect of write-downs) at the time of saleto
athird-party investor and expect to record a gain of approximately $12 million during the second quarter of 2014.

Net interest income decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to lower average loan levels as compared with
the year-ago period primarily asaresult of the sale of our portfolio of personal non-credit card loans on April 1, 2013 and certain
real estate secured loan sales during 2013 and lower overall loan yields, partially offset by lower interest expense. Overall loan
yields decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as aresult of the sale of our higher yielding personal non-credit
card loan portfolio which resulted in asignificant shift in mix to higher levels of lower yielding first lien real estate secured loans,
partialy offset by the impact of improved credit quality for real estate secured loans. Lower interest expense during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 reflects lower average borrowings and alower cost of funds. Net interest margin decreased during
the three months ended March 31, 2014 reflecting the lower overal loan yields as discussed above, partially offset by the lower
cost of funds as a percentage of average interest earning assets.

Other operating income improved during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared with the year-ago period. The
following table summarizes significant components of other operating income for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013

(in millions)
TIAOING IOSS™ ...ttt $ (90) $ (125)
Loss from debt designated at fair VEIUE...........cciiiiiiiicceeccee e (30) (71)
ONEY .o s 36 (3
Total other OPErating INCOME. ... s $ 84) $ (199)

@ Trading loss primarily reflects activity on our portfolio of non-qualifying hedges and, for the first quarter of 2013, a derivative loss on the termination of a

hedge relationship as well as provisions for mortgage |oan repurchase obligations.

Trading loss improved during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as the prior year quarter included a $199 million derivative
loss recognized on the termination of interest rate swaps associated with a hedge relationship. Excluding the impact of thisitem
in the prior year quarter, trading loss deteriorated during the current quarter as aresult of the impact of faling long-term interest
rates on our non-qualifying hedges portfolio. Loss from debt designated at fair value improved during the three months ended
March 31, 2014 primarily as a result of lower losses from tighter credit spreads in comparison to the prior year quarter. Other
operating incomeal so reflectsareduction inthe estimated repurchaseliability related to receivablessold in prior yearsaspreviously
discussed as well as lower losses on sales of REO properties as aresult of improvements in home prices.

Operating expenses decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2014 reflecting the continuing reduction in the scope of
our business operations and theimpact of entity-wideinitiativesto reduce costs. The decrease al so reflectslower feesfor consulting
services as a result of our agreement in the first quarter of 2013 with the Federal Reserve to cease the Independent Foreclosure
Review.

Theefficiency ratio deteriorated during the three months ended March 31, 2014 asthe decrease in total operating income outpaced
the decrease in operating expenses.

ROA improved during the three months ended March 31, 2014 primarily driven by lower loan impairment charges, higher other
operating income and lower operating expenses and the impact of lower average assets.
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Customer loans Customer loans for our Consumer segment consisted of the following:

Increases (Decreases) From
December 31, 2013

March 31,
2014 $ %
(dollars are in millions)
Real estate secured loans held for iNVEStMENL............ccccvceiveiiicecee e $ 27283 $ (1,979) (6.8)%
Real estate secured [0ans held fOr Sale........coveeeiiciieciece e 956 956 100.0
Real estate secured held for investment and held for sale......coeovevceccecvcceciennn, $ 28239 $ (1,023) (3.5%

Real estate secured loans held for investment decreased to $27,283 million at March 31, 2014 as compared with $29,262 million
at December 31, 2013. The decrease in our real estate secured loan portfolio reflects the continued liquidation of this portfolio
which will continue going forward. The liquidation rates in our real estate secured loan portfolio continue to be impacted by
declines in loan prepayments as fewer refinancing opportunities for our customers exist and the trends impacting the mortgage
lending industry as previously discussed. During the three months ended March 31, 2014, apool of real estate secured |oans met
the IFRSs criteriato be classified as held for sale with an unpaid principal balance of $1,433 million at the time of transfer.

Credit Quality

Credit Loss Reserves We maintain credit |oss reservesto cover probableincurred losses of principal, interest and fees. Credit loss
reserves are based on arange of estimates and are intended to be adeguate but not excessive. For loans which have been identified
asTDR Loans, credit loss reserves are maintained based on the present val ue of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans
original effective interest rates. We estimate probable losses for consumer receivables which do not qualify as TDR Loans using
aroll rate migration analysis that estimates the likelihood that aloan will progress through the various stages of delinquency, or
buckets, and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance experience of other loans in our portfolio. This
migration analysis incorporates estimates of the period of time between aloss occurring and the confirming event of its charge-
off. Loanswith different risk characteristics are typically segregated into separate models and may utilize different periods of time
for estimating the period of aloss occurring and its confirmation. This analysis also considers delinquency status, |0ss experience
and severity and takes into account whether borrowers have filed for bankruptcy, or loans have been re-aged or are subject to
modification. Our credit |0ss reserves also take into consideration the loss severity expected based on the underlying collateral, if
any, for theloan in the event of default based on historical and recent trends, which are updated monthly based on arolling average
of several months' data using the most recently available information. Delinquency status may be affected by customer account
management policies and practices, such as the re-age of accounts or modification arrangements. When customer account
management policies or changes thereto shift loans that do not qualify asa TDR Loan from a “higher” delinquency bucket to a
“lower” delinquency bucket, this will be reflected in our roll rate statistics. To the extent that re-aged or modified accounts that
donot qualify asaTDR Loan have agreater propensity to roll to higher delinquency buckets, thiswill be captured in theroll rates.
Since the loss reserve is computed based on the composite of all of these calculations, thisincreasein roll rate will be applied to
receivables in all respective delinquency buckets, which will increase the overall reserve level. In addition, loss reserves on
consumer receivables are maintained to reflect our judgment of portfolio risk factorsthat may not befully reflectedin the statistical
roll rate calculation or when historical trends are not reflective of current inherent losses in the portfolio. Portfolio risk factors
considered in establishing lossreserves on consumer receivablesinclude product mix, unemployment rates, the credit performance
of modified loans, loan product features such as adjustable rate loans, the credit performance of second lien loans where the first
lien loan that we own or serviceis 90 or more days contractually delinquent, economic conditions, such as national and local trends
in housing markets and interest rates, portfolio seasoning, account management policies and practices, changes in laws and
regulations and other factors which can affect consumer payment patterns on outstanding receivables, such as natural disasters.

While our credit loss reserves are available to absorb losses in the entire portfolio, we specifically consider the credit quality and
other risk factors for each of our products. We recognize the different inherent loss characteristics in each of our products as well
as customer account management policies and practices and risk management/collection practices. We also consider key ratios,
including reserves as a percentage of nonaccrual receivables and reserves as a percentage of receivables. Loss reserve estimates
are reviewed periodically and adjustments are reported in earnings when they become known. As these estimates are influenced
by factors outside our control, such as consumer payment patterns and economic conditions, there is uncertainty inherent in these
estimates, making it likely that they will change.

Real estate secured receivable carrying amounts in excess of fair value less cost to sell are generally charged-off no later than the
end of the month in which the account becomes six months contractually delinquent. Values are determined based upon broker
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price opinions or appraisals which are updated at least every 180 days. Typically, receivables written down to fair value of the
collateral less cost to sell do not require credit loss reserves.

The table below sets forth credit loss reserves and credit loss reserve ratios for the periods indicated. The transfer of certain real
estate secured receivables to held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014 has resulted in these receivables being
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and no longer have any associated credit |oss reserves as previously discussed
which impacts comparability between credit loss reserves and the related reserve ratios for March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013.

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Credit 0SS TESEIVES M) .. et s e ee e s e s r s $ 2997 $ 3273
Reserves as a percentage of @
RECEIVAIDIES........oiiie et be s besbesbeseesae s teteseensenseneeneeneesenneanens 10.5% 11.1%
NONACCIUEI FECEIVAIIES.........oovieieciececteee ettt sttt e be e b e sbeenaesaeesresanestesnnens 172.9 166.6

@ AtMarch 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, credit |ossreservesincludes $52 million and $52 million, respectively, related to receivables held for investment
which have been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell primarily reflecting an estimate of additional loss
following an interior appraisal of the property as previously discussed.

@ These ratios are significantly impacted by changesin the level of real estate secured receivables which have been written down to the lower of amortized
cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies and are not classified as held for sale. The following
table shows these ratios excluding these receivables and any associated credit loss reserves for all periods presented.

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Reserves as a percentage of :
RECEIVADIES ...ttt b e bkt e b e e £ A b e £ b b e R £ A e b e Re e e b e b e e e A e b et b e A e bt e e e b e be et et et e ban 10.7% 11.3%
NONACCIUAl FECEIVADIES........eieierteieete etttk b e bbbt b bbbt bbbt se e b et e b b e st et e e b et et e ban 303.2 256.2

®  Reserves associated with accrued finance charges, which totaled $328 million and $326 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively,
arereported within our total credit loss reserve balances noted above, although receivables, net charge-offs and nonaccrual receivables as reported generally
exclude accrued finance charges. The credit loss reserve ratios presented in the table exclude any reserves associated with accrued finance charges.

@ Credit loss reserve ratios exclude receivables and nonaccrual receivables associated with receivable portfolios which are considered held for sale as these
receivables are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value with no corresponding credit loss reserves.

Credit lossreservesat March 31, 2014 decreased as compared with December 31, 2013 dueto lower reserve requirementson TDR
Loans, lower receivable levels and lower levels of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency on accounts less than 180 days
contractually delinquent. Reserve requirements on TDR Loans were lower at March 31, 2014 due to lower levels of new TDR
Loan volumes as well as the impact of improvements in loss and severity estimates based on recent trends in the portfolio. The
decrease a so reflectsthetransfer to held for sale of additional real estate secured receivables during the three months ended March
31, 2014 which had been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell as previously
discussed. Credit loss reserves associated with these receivables prior to their transfer to held for sale totaled $20 million during
the three months ended March 31, 2014 and was recognized as an additional charge-off at the time of the transfer to held for sale.

At March 31, 2014, 82 percent of our credit loss reserves are associated with TDR Loans held for investment which total $10,767
million and arereserved for using adiscounted cash flow analysiswhich, in addition to considering all expected future cash flows,
also takesinto consideration the time value of money and the difference between the current interest rate and the original effective
interest rate on the loan. This methodology generally results in a higher reserve requirement for TDR Loans than the remainder
of our receivable portfolio for which credit |oss reserves are established using aroll rate migration analysis that only considers 12
months of losses. This methodology is highly sensitive to changes in volumes of TDR Loans as well as changes in estimates of
the timing and amount of cash flows for TDR Loans. As aresult, credit loss reserves at March 31, 2014 and provisions for credit
lossesfor TDR Loansfor the three months ended March 31, 2014 should not be considered indicative of the results for any future
periods.

In addition to TDR Loans, a portion of our real estate secured receivable portfolio held for investment is carried at the lower of
amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell. The following table summarizes these receivable components along
with receivables collectively evaluated for impairment and receivabl es acquired with deteriorated credit quality and the associated
credit loss reserves associated with each component:
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March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Credit Loss Credit Loss
Reserves Receivables Reserves Receivables
(in millions)
Collectively evaluated for impairment............ccccceeeeveeinincesiesiesesenenns $ 539 $ 13,774 $ 604 $ 14,617
Individually evaluated for impairment™ ............cccoooommveemreeeeceeerrs 2,405 10,767 2,616 11,076
Recelvables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
collateral 16sSCOSEtO SEll .....oiviiiicee e 52 927 52 879
Receivables acquired with deteriorated credit quality .........cccceevveeeeneee. 1 13 1 12
Total®

.................................................................................................... $ 2997 $ 25481 $ 3273 $ 26,584

@ Thereceivable balance above excludes TDR Loansthat are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled

$637 million and $604 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The reserve component above excludes credit lossreservesfor TDR
Loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $39 million and $38 million at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. These credit loss reserves are reflected within receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of
the collateral less cost to sell in the table above.

Reserves associated with accrued finance charges, which totaled $328 million and $326 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively,
are reported within our total credit loss reserve balances, although receivable balances generally exclude accrued finance charges.

Thefollowing table summarizes our TDR L oansand receivablescarried at thelower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral
less cost to sell in in comparison to the real estate secured receivable portfolio held for investment:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Total rea estate secured receivables held for iINVESIMENt ..........c.cccoveeeeieece e $ 25481 $ 26,584
Real estate secured receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
COllateral 18SS COSE t0 SEIl ..uviiieie et sre e s s sre e s re e $ 927 $ 879
Real estate SecUred TDR LOBNSY.........oeieeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeeeesee e sese s esees s ss e eneeene 10,767 11,076

Real estate secured receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
collateral less cost to sell or reserved for using a discounted cash flow methodology .............. $ 11694 $ 11,955

Real estate secured receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
collateral less cost to sell or reserved for using a discounted cash flow methodology as a
percentage of real estate secured reCaiVabIES ... 45.9% 45.0%

@ Excludes TDR Loans which are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell and included separately in the table.

Credit loss reserve ratios Following isadiscussion of changesin the reserve ratios we consider in establishing reserve levels.

Reserves as a percentage of receivables were lower at March 31, 2014 as compared with December 31, 2013 as the decrease in
credit loss reserves as discussed above outpaced the decrease in receivables.

Reserves as a percentage of nonaccrual receivables were impacted by nonaccrua real estate secured receivables carried at the
lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell. Excluding receivables carried at fair value of the collateral
less cost to sell and any associated credit |oss reserves from these ratios, reserves as a percentage of nonaccrual receivables at
March 31, 2014 remained higher as compared with December 31, 2013 as the decrease in nonaccrual receivables, as discussed
more fully below, outpaced the decrease in credit |oss reserves.

SeeNote5, "Credit Loss Reserves," in the accompanying consolidated financia statementsfor arollforward of credit lossreserves
by product for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

Delinquency Our policiesand practices for the collection of consumer receivables, including our customer account management
policiesand practices, permit usto modify the terms of loans, either temporarily or permanently (a“ modification”), and/or to reset
the contractual delinquency status of an account that is contractually delinquent to current (a“re-age”), based on indiciaor criteria
which, in our judgment, evidence continued payment probability. Such policies and practices differ by product and are designed
to manage customer relationships, improve collection opportunities and avoid foreclosure or repossession as determined to be
appropriate. If are-aged account subsequently experiences payment defaults, it will again become contractually delinquent and
be included in our delinquency ratios.
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The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency for receivables and receivables held for
sale and two-months-and-over contractual delinquency as a percent of consumer receivables and receivables held for sae
(“delinquency ratio”). As previously discussed, during the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred additional real
estate secured receivables carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell to receivables held
for sale which creates alack of comparability between dollars of contractual delinquency and the delinquency ratio for March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013.

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Dollars of contractual delinquency:
Receivables held for investment:
Real estate secured:

Late stage delinQUENCY ™Y@ ... $ 702 $ 670
Individually evaluated for impairment® ..o sseeeeeean 1,175 1,591
Collectively evaluated for impairment™ ..o 294 401
Total real estate secured receivables held for iNVeStMENt...........ccceveeeeeeeieece e 2,171 2,662
Redl estate secured receivables held fOr SAIE™ .........oo.rvverevoeceieseseese s 1,630 1,473
TOLAL c..eiveteteeetet ettt ettt et et b bbbt beb bt e bbb e bbbt et et e b e b et et ebebebe b et et ebebebebebebebebebebebebebebebebetebetas $ 3801 $ 4135

Delinquency ratio:
Receivables held for investment:
Real estate secured:

Late Stage deliNQUENCY .......ooeierie ettt sb e se e 75.73% 76.22%

Individually evaluated for impairmENt...........ccoeiiireine e 10.91 14.36

Collectively evaluated for iMmpPairMENt.........cccceeoeiiereneie s e 2.13 274
Total real estate secured receivables held for iNVEStMEN............coeoereiirininr e 8.52 10.01
Real estate secured receivables held for SAl@........ooiviiiciie i 67.36 71.96
101 OO TRP 13.62% 14.44%

@ Two-months-and-over contractually delinquent receivables are classified as "late stage delinquency” if at any point initslife cycleit has been written down
to thelower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies (generally 180 days past due).
However, asaresult of account management actionsor other account activity, these receivablesmay no longer be greater than 180 days past due. At March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, the amounts above include $224 million and $279 million, respectively, of receivables that at some point in their life cycle
were written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies, but are
currently between 60 and 180 days past due.

@ Amount includes TDR Loans which totaled $442 million and $423 million a March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

®  This amount represents delinquent receivables which at no point in its life cycle have ever been greater than 180 days contractually delinquent and have
been classified as TDR Loans which are carried at amortized cost. For TDR Loans we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow methodology. Each
loan is individually identified as a TDR Loan and then grouped together with other TDR Loans with similar characteristics. The discounted cash flow
impairment analysis is then applied to these groups of TDR Loans. This amount excludes TDR Loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair
value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies as they are reflected in the late stage delinquency totals.

@ Thisamount represents delinquent receivables which at no point in its life cycle have ever been greater than 180 days contractually delinquent and are not
classified as TDR Loans. As discussed more fully above, for these receivables we establish credit loss reserves using a roll rate migration analysis that
estimatesthelikelihood that aloan will progressthrough thevarious stagesof delinquency and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance
experience of other loansin our portfolio.

® At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, dollars of contractual delinquency for receivable held for sale includes $1,101 million and $944 million,
respectively, of real estate secured receivables held for sale which are also classified as TDR Loans.

Dollars of delinquency for real estate secured receivables held for investment at March 31, 2014 decreased $491 million since
December 31, 2013 as discussed below.

* Late stage delinquency Dollars of late stage delinquency increased as compared with December 31, 2013 as aresult of the
progression of accounts to |ate stage delinquency during the first quarter of 2014 as accounts become greater than 180 days
delinquent. Thisincrease was largely offset by the transfer of additional real estate secured receivablesto held for sale during

57



HSBC Finance Corporation

the three months ended March 31, 2014 as well as the impact of the continued improvements in economic conditions and
account management actions taken during the first quarter of 2014.

* Individually evaluated for impairment The decrease in dollars of delinquency for receivables individually evaluated for
impairment reflectsthe progression of accountsto | ate stage delinquency as accounts became greater than 180 days delinquent
as well as a decrease in the volume of new TDR Loans during the three months ended March 31, 2014. The decrease aso
reflects the continued improvements in economic conditions and lower receivable levels.

* Collectively evaluated for impairment The decrease in dollars of delinquency for accounts collectively evaluated for
impairment reflects lower receivables levels and the continued improvements in economic conditions.

Dollars of delinquency for receivables held for sale at March 31, 2014 increased as compared with December 31, 2013 reflecting
the impact of the transfer of additional real estate secured receivables to held for sale during the three months ended March 31,
2014 aswell asincreasesin thefair value of real estate secured receivables held for sale during the three months ended March 31,
2014 as previously discussed which increases the carrying value of these receivables.

Delinquency ratio The delinquency ratio for real estate secured receivables held for investment was 8.52 percent at March 31,
2014 compared with 10.01 percent at December 31, 2013. Thedecrease primarily reflectslower dollarsof delinquency asdiscussed
above, partially offset by the impact of lower levels of real estate secured receivables held for investment as previoudly discussed.

See" Customer Account Management Policiesand Practices’ regarding thedelinquency treatment of re-aged and modified accounts.

Net Charge-offs of Consumer Receivables The following table summarizes net charge-off of receivables both in dollars and as
a percent of average receivables (“net charge-off ratio”). During a quarter that receivables are transferred to receivables held for
sale, those receivables continue to be included in the average consumer receivable balances prior to such transfer and any charge-
off related to those receivables prior to such transfer remain in our net charge-off totals. However, in the quarter following the
transfer to held for sale classification, the receivables are no longer included in average consumer receivables as such loans are
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and, accordingly, there are no longer any charge-offs associated with these
receivables, athough recoveries on these receivables continue to be reported as a component of net charge-offs. As aresult, the
amounts and ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2014 are not comparable with the amounts and ratios for the quarters ended
December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013.

March 31, December 31, March 31,
Three Months Ended® 2014 2013 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Net charge-off dollars:

REal EStALE SECUIEH .......cveeiireeceeeetete ettt s ebe e $ 282  $ 2718 3 358
Personal Non-Credit Card@..............oo.oveueveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (4) (6) (32)
1o = S $ 278 $ 272 $ 326
Net charge-off ratio:
Real EStALE SECUMEA .......ceevieeeeierec ettt sa s e senes 4.34% 4.06% 4.42%
Personal NON-Credit Card®@.............oovveeeeeeseee e — — —
OBl ettt b b ae bt re e et nens 4.28% 3.97% 4.02%
Real estate charge-offs and REO expense as a percent of average real estate

SECUrEd FECEIVANIES........cviiicretiise ettt 4.53% 4.24% 4.69%

@ The net charge-off ratio for all quarterly periods presented is net charge-offs for the quarter, annualized, as a percentage of average consumer receivables
for the quarter.

@ While charge-offs are no longer recorded on receivables following the transfer of those receivables to the held for sale classification, during the quarters
ended March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013 we received recoveries on fully charged-off personal non-credit card receivables which are
reflected in the table above. Additionally, during the quarter ended March 31, 2013, recoveries also include $10 million of cash proceeds received from the
sale of recovery rights on certain fully charged-off personal non-credit card receivables. As these personal non-credit card receivables were fully charged-
off with no carrying value remaining on our consolidated balance sheet, a net charge-off ratio for our personal non-credit card receivable portfolio cannot
be calculated for the periods presented although these recoveries are reflected in the total net charge-off ratio for these periods.

As previously discussed, during the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we transferred certain real estate
secured receivables to held for sale which consisted of real estate secured receivables which had been written down to the lower
of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell. At thetime of transfer, we held credit loss reserves associated with
thesereceivablesrelated to an estimate of additional lossfollowing aninterior appraisal of the property. Because these receivables
were collateral dependent, credit loss reserves totaling $20 million and $24 million were recognized as an additional charge-off
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at thetime of thetransfer to held for saleduring the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Excluding
this additional charge-off for the periods presented, net charge-off dollars for real estate secured receivables for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 was higher as compared with the prior quarter driven by an increase in charge-offs of $28 million related
to 2013, which was not material to the results for that year, associated with advances made on behalf of borrowers such as real
estate taxes which enable us to maintain our collateral lien position on certain real estate secured loans, partially offset by the
impact of lower receivable levels, continued improvements in economic conditions and lower charge-off on accounts that reach
180 days contractual delinquency as aresult of improvementsin home prices.

The net charge-off ratio for real estate secured receivablesfor the three months ended March 31, 2014 increased as compared with
the prior quarter asthe decreasein average receivabl e level s outpaced the decreasein dollars of net charge-offs as discussed above.

Real estate charge-offsand REO expenses as a percentage of averagereal estate secured receivablesfor March 31, 2014 decreased
as compared with December 31, 2013 dueto lower dollars of net charge-offs as discussed above and lower REO expenses, partialy
offset by the impact of lower average receivable levels. See “Results of Operations” for further discussion of REO expenses.

Nonperforming Assets Nonperforming assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Nonaccrual real estate secured receivables held for investment:®

Late stage deliNQUENCY@® ...t es s es s $ 681 $ 639

Individually evaluated for impairment™ .............cccooovoroieeeoeeeeeeeeeeee e 652 848

Collectively evaluated for imPairMENt™ ......... ..o eeee e s ees s se s 211 282
Total nonaccrual real estate secured receivables held for investment® 1,544 1,769
REal EStAEE OWNE...... oottt sttt e b et e b e b e ere e b ens 238 323
Nonaccrual receivables held for SAEDD .. ... 1,584 1,422
Total NONPETOIMING BSSELS......cucveviiriiietei sttt et se e b ss st b ese e s beseaesnsnens 3,366 $ 3,514

@ Nonaccrual receivables reflect all loans which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as second lien loans (regardiess of delinquency status)
where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually delinquent. Nonaccrual receivables held for investment and held for sale
do not include receivables totaling $1,054 million and $953 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which have been written down
to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which are less than 90 days contractually delinquent and not accruing interest.
In addition, nonaccrual receivables do not include receivables which have made qualifying payments and have been re-aged and the contractual delinquency
statusreset to current as such activity, in our judgment, evidences continued payment probability. If are-aged loan subsequently experiences payment default
and becomes 90 or more days contractually delinquent, it will be reported as nonaccrual.

@ Nonaccrual receivables are classified as "late stage delinquency” if at any point in its life cycle it has been written down to the lower of amortized cost or

fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies (generally 180 days past due). However, as aresult of account
management actions or other account activity, these receivables may no longer be greater than 180 days past due. At March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, the amounts above include $155 million and $179 million, respectively, of receivables that at some point in their life cycle were written down to the
lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies, but are currently between 90 and
180 days past due.

®  Thisamount includes TDR Loans which are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $424 million

at March 31, 2014 compared with $397 million at December 31, 2013.

@ This amount represents nonaccrual receivables which at no point in its life cycle have ever been greater than 180 days contractually delinquent and have

been classified as TDR Loans. This amount represents TDR Loans for which we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow methodology. Each loan is
individually identified asa TDR Loan and then grouped together with other TDR Loans with similar characteristics. The discounted cash flow impairment
analysisisthen applied to these groups of TDR Loans. This amount excludes TDR Loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
collateral less cost to sell asthey are reflected in the late stage delinquency totals.

®  Thisamount represents nonaccrual receivableswhich at no point in its life cycle have ever been greater than 180 days contractually delinquent and are not
classified as TDR Loans. As discussed more fully above, for these receivables we establish credit loss reserves using a roll rate migration analysis that
estimatesthelikelihood that aloan will progressthrough thevarious stages of delinquency and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance
experience of other loansin our portfolio.

© At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, nonaccrual second lien real estate secured receivables totaled $201 million and $231 million, respectively.

™ AtMarch 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, nonaccrual receivable held for saleincludes $1,062 million and $900 million, respectively, of real estate secured
receivables held for sale which are also classified as TDR Loans.
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Nonaccrual real estate secured receivables held for investment at March 31, 2014 decreased as compared with December 31, 2013
as discussed below.

* Late stage delinquency Nonaccrual late stage delinquency increased as compared with December 31, 2013 as a result of the
progression of accounts to late stage delinquency during the first quarter of 2014 as accounts become greater than 180 days
delinquent. Thisincreasewaspartially offset by the transfer of additional real estate secured receivablesto held for saleduring
the three months ended March 31, 2014 as well as the impact of the continued improvements in economic conditions and
account management actions taken during the first quarter of 2014.

* Individually evaluated for impairment The decreasein nonaccrua receivablesindividually evaluated for impairment reflects
the progression of accountsto late stage delinquency asaccountsbecome greater than 180 daysdelinquent aswell asadecrease
in the volume of new TDR Loans during three months ended March 31, 2014. The decrease aso reflects the continued
improvements in economic conditions and lower receivable levels.

* Collectively evaluated for impairment The decrease in nonaccrual receivables collectively evaluated for impairment reflects
lower receivables levels and the continued improvements in economic conditions.

Nonaccrual receivables held for sale at March 31, 2014 increased as compared with December 31, 2013 reflecting the impact of
the transfer of additional real estate secured receivablesto held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014 aswell as
increases in the fair value of real estate secured receivables held for sale during the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to
increases in the fair value of these receivables which increases the carrying value of these receivables.

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, nonaccrual receivables in the table above include TDR Loans and TDR Loans that
are held for sale totaling $2,138 million and $2,145 million, respectively, some of which are carried at the lower of amortized cost
or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell in accordance with our existing charge-off policies. See Note 4, “Receivables,” in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further details regarding TDR Loan balances.

Customer Account Management Policies and Practices Our policies and practices for the collection of consumer receivables,
including our customer account management policies and practices, permit usto take action with respect to delinquent or troubled
accounts based on criteria which, in our judgment, evidence continued payment probability, as well as, in the case of real estate
secured receivables, a continuing desire for borrowers to stay in their homes. The policies and practices are designed to manage
customer relationships, improve collection opportunities and avoid forecl osure as determined to be appropriate. From timeto time
we re-evaluate these policies and procedures and make changes as deemed appropriate.

Currently, we utilize the following account management actions:

* Modification — Management action that results in a change to the terms and conditions of the loan either temporarily or
permanently without changing the delinquency status of theloan. M odifications may include changesto one or moreterms
of theloanincluding, but not limited to, achangein interest rate, extension of the amortization period, reductionin payment
amount and partial forgiveness or deferment of principal.

»  Collection Re-age — Management action that results in the resetting of the contractual delinquency status of an account to
current but does not involve any changesto the original terms and conditions of the loan. If an account which has been re-
aged subsequently experiences a payment default, it will again become contractually delinquent. We use collection re-
aging as an account and customer management tool in an effort to increase the cash flow from our account relationships,
and accordingly, the application of thistool is subject to complexities, variations and changes from time to time.

* Modification Re-age —Management actionthat resultsin achangeto thetermsand conditions of thel oan, either temporarily
or permanently, and al so resetsthe contractual delinquency status of an account to current as discussed above. If an account
which has been re-aged subsequently experiences a payment default, it will again become contractually delinquent.

Generally, in our experience, we have found that the earlier in the default cycle we have been able to utilize account management
actions, the lower therate of recidivismislikely to be. Additionally, we have found that for |oan modification, modifications with
significant amounts of payment reduction experience lower levels of recidivism. Some customers receive multiple account
management actions. In this regard, multiple account management action as a percentage of total modifications are in arange of
70 percent to 80 percent.

Our policiesand practicesfor managing accounts are continually reviewed and assessed to assure that they meet the goals outlined
above, and accordingly, we make exceptions to these general policies and practices from time to time. In addition, exceptions to
these policies and practices may be made in specific situations in response to legal agreements, regulatory agreements or orders.

Since January 2007, we have cumulatively modified and/or re-aged approximately 399 thousand real estate secured loanswith an
aggregate outstanding principal balance of $45.9 hillion at the time of modification and/or re-age under our forecl osure avoidance
programs which are described below. The following table providesinformation about the subsequent performance of al real estate
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secured loans granted a modification and/or re-age since January 2007, some of which may have received multiple account
management actions:

Based on Outstanding
Receivable Balance at

Number Time of Account

Status as of March 31, 2014: of Loans Modification Action
Current or less than 30-days delinQUENL...........ccoureireiineineeese e 30% 29%
30- t0 59-dayS AElINQUENL .........eiueieeitiie et e 3 3
60-days OF MOre deliNQUENE.........cciuiirieirieirieri e 10 10
PaIA-IN-TUIL oot s st 18 21
Charged-off, transferred to real estate owned or sold 39 37

100% 100%

The following table shows the number of real estate secured accounts remaining in our portfolio (including receivables held for
sale) as well as the outstanding receivable balance of these accounts as of the period indicated for loans that we have taken an
account management action by the type of action taken. A significant portion of our real estate secured receivable portfolio has
received multipleaccounting management actionsand real estate secured receivabl esincluded in thetable below may havereceived
multiple account management actions.

Number of Outstanding Receivable
Accounts® Balance ®®
(act(;]ooltg';sn%rst; in (dollars are in millions)
March 31, 2014:“
COllECHiON rE-A0E ONIY ..ottt 992 $ 7,778
MOITICAETON ONIY ...ttt ere e 7.4 694
MOIfiCALION FE-BOB. ...c.e ettt sttt ere e 75.9 7,926
Total loans modified and/or re-aged® ..............cocorveeeeeeereeeeseeeeeeee s 1825 $ 16,398
December 31, 2013:?
COllECHION FE-AJE ONIY ...ttt ettt bbbt be e ae s rens 1006 $ 7,876
MOITICAETON ONIY ...ttt ere e 1.7 734
Y Koo Mo (0 - = 76.4 7,954
Total loans modified anA/or re-aged@ ............ooeoeeeeeereeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeee e seeere. 1847 $ 16,564
@ SeeNote4, “Receivables,” inthe accompanying consolidated financial statementsfor additional information describing modified and/or re-aged loanswhich
are accounted for as TDR Loans.
@)

The following table provides information regarding the delinquency status of loans remaining in the portfolio that were granted modifications of loan terms
and/or re-aged as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 in the categories shown above:

Number of Accounts Outstanding Receivable Balance
Current or Current or
less than 30- 60-days or less than 30- 60-days or
days 30- to 59-days more days 30- to 59-days more
delinquent delinquent delinquent delinquent delinquent delinquent
March 31, 2014:
Collectionre-ageonly ..........cccuu.... 73% 7% 20% 73% 8% 19%
Modification only ...........ccceuee.e.. 85 2 13 88 2 10
Modification re-age...........ccoeevnue. 68 7 25 70 7 23
Total loans modified and/or re-
A0 ... 71% 7% 22% 72% 8% 20%
December 31, 2013:
Collectionre-ageonly ..........cccuu.... 68 % 10% 22% 69 % 11% 20%
Modification only .........ccccccceevnnes 84 2 14 87 3 10
Modification re-age...........ccocuuuue. 64 9 27 66 9 25
Total loans modified and/or re-
A0 ... 67% 10% 23% 68% 10% 22%
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®  The outstanding receivable balance included in thistable reflects the principal amount outstanding on the loan net of any charge-off recorded in accordance
with our existing charge-off policies but excludes any basis adjustments to the loan such as unearned income, unamortized deferred fees and costs on
originated loans, purchase accounting fair value adjustments and premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Additionally, the balance in this table related
to receivables which have been classified as held for sale has been reduced by the lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment recorded as well asthe
credit loss reserves associated with these receivables prior to the transfer.

@ At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the outstanding receivable bal ance includes the following amounts related to receivables classified as held for

sale.
March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
COllECHON FE-BHE ONIY ... $ 805 $ 697
MOTITICEHIONS ONIY ... es 42 37
IMIOGIFICBEION FE-AQ......v ettt ettt bbbttt b bbb bbb b bbb bbb bbb bbb e bbb e bbb bbb e bt e b e bbb e b bbb bbb bes 1,332 1,127
Total 10ans MOdified @NA/OF FE-AJEM...........cirireeeeeirieeree ettt bbbttt s e et e st neenas $ 2,179 $ 1,861

The following table provides additional information regarding real estate secured modified and/or re-aged |oans during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 :

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Balance at beginning Of PO ........ccoo et $ 16,564 $ 20,811
Additions due to an account management aCtion®................covoveeeeeeeeeeee e e 191 252
PAYIMENESD ... ee e e e ee e e ee e e ee e e ee s en s (282) (264)
NEE CNAIGE-0ff S, bbbt be bbb se st e e et e e be e tenans (104) (324)
Transfer to real EStAatE OWNEd ...........oouiiviciiiiceee et re b re e (43) (118)
Change in lower of amortized cost or fair value on receivables held for sale...........ccocevvierennen. 72 471
Balance at end Of PEIOU.......c.couciiieiieiisceee e et ne s $ 16,398 $ 20,828

@ Includes collection re-age only, modification only, or modification re-ages.

@ Includes amountsreceived under ashort sale whereby the property is sold by the borrower at aprice which has been pre-negotiated with us and the borrower
is released from further obligation.

In addition to the account management techniques discussed above, we have also increased the use of deed-in-lieu and short sales
in recent yearsto assist our real estate secured receivable customers. In a deed-in-lieu, the borrower agrees to surrender the deed
to the property without going through forecl osure proceedings and we rel ease the borrower from further obligation. In ashort sale,
the property is offered for sale to potential buyers at a price which has been pre-negotiated between us and the borrower. This pre-
negotiated price is based on updated property valuations and overall loss exposure given liquidation through foreclosure. Short
sales also release the borrower from further obligation. From our perspective, total 1osses on deed-in-lieu and short salesare lower
than expected total |ossesfrom foreclosed loans, or loanswhere we have previously decided not to pursue foreclosure, and provide
resolution to the delinquent receivable over a shorter period of time.

Modification programs We actively use account modificationsto reduce the rate and/or payment on anumber of qualifying loans
and generally re-age certain of these accounts upon receipt of two or more modified payments and other criteria being met. This
account management practice is designed to assist borrowers who may have purchased a home with an expectation of continued
real estate appreciation or whose income has subsequently declined. Additionally, our loan modification programs are designed
to improve cash collections and avoid foreclosure as determined to be appropriate. A significant portion of our real estate secured
receivable portfolio has received multiple modifications.

Based on the economic environment and expected slow recovery of housing val ues, during 2008 we devel oped additional analytical
review tools leveraging industry best practices to assist us in identifying customers who are willing to pay, but are expected to
have longer term disruptionsin their ability to pay. Using these analytical review tools, we expanded our foreclosure avoidance
programsto assist customerswho did not qualify for assistance under prior program requirementsor who required greater assistance
than available under the programs. The expanded program required certain documentation as well as receipt of two qualifying
payments before the account could be re-aged. Prior to July 2008, for our Consumer Lending customers, receipt of one qualifying
payment was required for a modified account before the account would be re-aged. We also increased the use of longer term
modifications to provide assistance in accordance with the needs of our customers which may result in higher credit loss reserve
reguirements. For sel ected customer segments, thisexpanded program lowered theinterest rate on fixed ratel cansand for adjustable
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rate mortgage ("ARM") loans the expanded program modified the |oan to alower interest rate than scheduled at the first interest
rate reset date. The dligibility requirementsfor this expanded program allow more customers to qualify for payment relief and in
certain cases can result in a lower interest rate than allowed under other existing programs. During the third quarter of 2009, in
order to increase the long-term success rate of our modification programs we increased certain documentation requirements for
participation in these programs. Late in the third quarter of 2011 the modification program was enhanced to improve underwriting
and achieveabetter bal ance between economicsand customer-driven variabl es. The enhanced program offersalonger modification
duration to select borrowersfacing atemporary hardship and expands the treatment optionsto include term extension and principal
deferral or forgiveness. As aresult, the loans remaining in our portfolio are comprised of a growing composition of longer dated
or permanent modification.

The volume of loans that have qualified for a new modification has falen significantly in recent years. Although we made
enhancements to our modification programs during 2013 to provide longer term modifications and larger payment relief on short
term modifications, fewer customers are requesting these account modifications. We expect the volume of new modificationsto
continueto decline aswe believe asmaller percentage of our customerswith unmodified loanswill benefit from loan modification
in away that will not ultimately result in a repeat default on their loans. Additionally, volumes of new loan modifications are
expected to decrease due to the impact of improvements in economic conditions over the long-term and the continued seasoning
of aliquidating portfolio.

Inthe second half of 2013, we began offering principal write downsto customers meeting certain criteria. For qualifying customers,
wedeterminethefull amount contractually due, including unpaid principal balance, outstanding deferredinterest and other ancillary
disbursementsthat, by law, are reimbursable, and reduce the outstanding amount to alower amount. However, in many casesthis
principal forgivenessdoes not changethe carrying value of the receivable as many of thesereceivableshad previously beenwritten
down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral in accordance with our existing charge-off policies. During the
three months ended March 31, 2014, we provided principal write downs totaling $40 million, which included $11 million for
deferred interest and other ancillary disbursements. Theimpact to the provision for credit losses was not material asthese amounts
were already included in our credit loss reserves.

We will continue to evaluate our consumer relief programs as well as all aspects of our account management practices to ensure
our programs benefit our customers in accordance with their financial needs in ways that are economically viable for both our
customers and our stakeholders. Loans modified under these programs are only included in the re-aging statistics table (“Re-
age Table”) that isincluded in our discussion of our re-age programs if the delinquency status of aloan was reset as a part of the
modification or wasre-aged in the past for other reasons. Not all loans modified under these programs have the delinquency status
reset and, therefore, are not considered to have been re-aged.

The following table summarizes loans modified during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, some of which may
have a so been re-aged:

QOutstanding
Number of Accounts Receivable Balance at
Modified Time of Modification

(accounts are in thousands,
dollars are in billions)

Foreclosure avoidance programs™®@:
Three months ended March 31, 2014 ........c.ooeeeecenieiece e 27 $ 4
Three months ended March 31, 2013........ccoooiiiee e 4.0 .6

@ Includes all loans modified during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 regardless of whether the loan was also re-aged.
@ If qualification criteria are met, loan modification may occur on more than one occasion for the same account. For purposes of the table above, an account
isonly included in the modification totals once in an annual period and not for each separate modification in an annual period.

A primary tool used during account modification involves modifying the monthly payment through lowering the rate on the loan
on either atemporary or permanent basis. The following table summarizes the wei ghted-average contractua rate reductions and
the average amount of payment relief provided to customersthat entered an account modification (including receivables currently
classified as held for sal€) for the first time during the quarter indicated. The average payment relief provided on modifications
hasincreased during 2013 refl ecting enhancementsto our modification programsduring 2013 to providelonger term modifications
and larger payment relief on short term modifications as well as the impact of offering principal write downs to customers as
discussed ahove.
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Quarter Ended
Mar. 31, Dec.31, Sept.30, June30, Mar. 31,

2014 2013 2013 2013 2013
Weighted-average contractual rate reduction in basis points on account
modifications during the Period™@ ..., 433 441 410 383 351
Average payment relief provided on account modifications as a percentage
of total payment prior to Modification®..............coceeeeeeeeeereeeeereeeseesreeneenn. 38.3% 374% 31.8% 29.4% 26.3%

@ The weighted-average rate reduction was determined based on the rate in effect immediately prior to the modification, which for ARMs may be lower than
the rate on the loan at the time of origination.

@ Excludes any modifications on purchased receivable portfolios which had a carrying value of $795 million and $817 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.

Re-age programs Our policies and practices include various criteria for an account to qualify for re-aging, but do not, however,
reguire us to re-age the account. The extent to which we re-age accounts that are eligible under our existing policies will differ
depending upon our view of prevailing economic conditionsand other factorswhich may changefrom period to period. In addition,
exceptionsto our policies and practices may be made in specific situationsin responseto legal or regulatory agreements or orders.
It is our practice to defer past due interest on re-aged real estate secured and personal non-credit card accounts to the end of the
loan period. We do not accrue interest on these past due interest payments consi stent with our 2002 settlement agreement with the
State Attorneys General .

We continue to monitor and track information related to accounts that have been re-aged. First lien real estate secured products
generally havelessloss severity exposure than other products because of the underlying collateral. Credit loss reserves, including
reserveson TDR Loans, take into account whether |oans have been re-aged or are subject to modification, extension or deferment.
Our credit loss reserves, including reserves on TDR Loans, also take into consideration the expected |oss severity based on the
underlying collateral, if any, for theloan. TDR Loans are typically reserved for using a discounted cash flow methodol ogy.

We used certain assumptionsand estimatesto compileour re-aging statistics. The systemi ¢ countersused to compiletheinformation
presented below exclude from the reported statistics |oans that have been reported as contractually delinquent but have been reset
to acurrent status because we have determined that theloans should not have been considered delinquent (e.g., payment application
processing errors). When comparing re-aging statistics from different periods, the fact that our re-age policies and practices will
change over time, that exceptions are made to those policies and practices, and that our data capture methodologies have been
enhanced, should be taken into account.

Thefollowing tables provideinformation about re-aged real estate secured receivables and real estate secured receivables held for
sale and includes both Collection Re-ages and M odification Re-ages, as discussed above.

0O March 31, December 31,
Re-age Table 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Total real estate secured receivables eVEr re-aged........coooereerieieeeeeeeese e $ 15052 $ 15253
Real estate secured receivables ever re-aged as a percentage of total receivables and receivables
held for sale
Re-aged inthe 1ast 6 MONINST ..ot 9.5% 8.6%
Re-aged inthe [ast 7-12 MONENS® ..o e 9.4 10.5
Previously re-aged beyond 12 MONLNS ..........c.cov it 35.0 34.2
Total real estate secured receivables ever re-aged as a percentage of total receivables and
receiVablES NEIA FOr SAIE.... ..o e e 53.9% 53.3%

@ The outstanding balance included in this table reflects the principal amount outstanding on the loan net of unearned income, unamortized deferred fees and
costson originated loans, purchase accounting fair val ue adjustments and premiums or discounts on purchased loansaswell asnet of any charge-off recorded
in accordance with our existing charge-off policies aswell aslower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments recorded on receivables held for sale.

@ Thetablesabove exclude any accounts re-aged without receipt of a payment which only occurs under special circumstances, such as re-ages associated with
disaster or in connection with a bankruptcy filing. At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the unpaid principal balance of re-ages without receipt of a
payment totaled $542 million and $617 million, respectively.

®  During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, approximately 70 percent and 65 percent, respectively, of real estate secured receivable re-ages
occurred on accounts that were less than 60 days contractually delinquent.
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At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, $3,107 million (21 percent of total re-aged loans in the Re-age Table) and $3,417
million (22 percent of total re-aged loans in the Re-age Table), respectively, of re-aged accounts have subsequently experienced
payment defaults and are included in our two-months-and-over contractual delinquency at the period indicated.

We continue to work with advocacy groupsin select marketsto assist in encouraging our customerswith financial needsto contact
us. We have also implemented new training programs to ensure that our customer service representatives are focused on helping
the customer through difficulties, are knowledgeabl e about the avail abl e re-aging and modification programsand are ableto advise
each customer of the best solutions for their individual circumstance.

We also support avariety of national and local efforts in homeownership preservation and foreclosure avoidance.

Concentration of Credit Risk A concentration of credit risk is defined asasignificant credit exposure with an individual or group
engaged insimilar activitiesor having similar economic characteristicsthat would causetheir ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changesin economic or other conditions.

We have historically served non-prime consumers. Such customers are individuals who have limited credit histories, modest
incomes, high debt-to-income ratios or have experienced credit problems evidenced by occasional delinquencies, prior charge-
offs, bankruptcy or other credit related actions. The majority of our secured receivables have high loan-to-value ratios.

Because we primarily lend to individual consumers, we do not have receivables (including receivables held for sale) from any
industry group that equal or exceed 10 percent of total receivables at March 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. The following table
reflects the percentage of consumer receivables (including receivables held for sale) by state which individually account for 5
percent or greater of our portfolio.

Percent of Total Real
Estate Secured Receivables

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

(072111 {01 o TT= TR OO 10.0% 9.4%
N L= T o TS 6.8 6.9
PENNSYIVANIGL ..o 6.1 6.1
L 0o 6.0 6.0
[ Fo o F= TR PR 5.4 5.4
RV o 1 1= TSRS 5.1 51

Liquidity and Capital Resources

HSBC Related Funding We work with our affiliates under the oversight of HSBC North America to maximize funding
opportunities and efficiencies in HSBC's operations in the United States. All of our ongoing funding requirements have been
integrated into the overall HSBC North America funding plans and our funding requirements are now sourced primarily through
HSBC USA, Inc.

Due to affiliates totaled $8,749 million and $8,742 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The interest
rates on funding from HSBC subsidiaries are market-based and comparable to those available from unaffiliated parties.

See Note 11, "Related Party Transactions,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statementsfor further discussion about our
funding arrangements with HSBC affiliates, including derivatives.

Short-Term Investments Securities purchased under agreementsto resell totaled $5,226 million and $6,924 million at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Securities purchased under agreements to resell decreased as compared with
December 31, 2013 asaresult of the retirement of debt, partially offset by the run-off of our liquidating receivable portfolios and
the sale of REO properties.
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Long-Term Debt (excluding amounts due to affiliates) decreased to $18,593 million at March 31, 2014 from $20,839 million at
December 31, 2013. Therewerenoissuancesof long-term debt during thethreemonthsended March 31, 2014 or 2013. Repayments
of long-term debt totaled $2,224 million and $471 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The following table summarizes maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2014, including secured financings:

(in millions)
20 1 SRS $ 1,292
20 1 SRS 5,890
20 1 RSO RR 5,502
220 1 S 1,884
20 RS RR 307
LIS 5 L ST S T TTS R TT 3,718
TOMBl v vevevsveseee s '$ 18593

Secured financings previously issued under public trusts of $2,073 million at March 31, 2014 are secured by $3,899 million of
closed-end real estate secured receivables. Secured financings previously issued under public trusts of $2,200 million at
December 31, 2013 were secured by $4,020 million of closed-end real estate secured receivables.

In order to eliminate futureforeign exchangerisk, currency swapswere used at thetimeof issuancetofixinU.S. dollarsall foreign-
denominated notes previously issued.

Weusederivativesfor managinginterest rateand currency risk and havereceived |oan commitmentsfromthird partiesand affiliates,
but we do not otherwise enter into off-balance sheet transactions.

Common Equity During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we did not receive any capital contributions from HINO.
However, as we continue to liquidate our receivable portfolios, HSBC's continued support will be required to properly manage
our business and maintain appropriate levels of capital. HSBC has historically provided significant capital in support of our
operations and has indicated that they remain fully committed and have the capacity to continue that support.

Selected capital ratios In managing capital, we develop atarget for tangible common equity to tangible assets. Thisratio target
is based on discussions with HSBC and rating agencies, risks inherent in the portfolio and the projected operating environment
and related risks. Our targets may change from time to time to accommodate changes in the operating environment or other
considerations such as those listed above.

The following table summarizes selected capital ratios:

December 31,

March 31, 2014 2013
Tangible common equity t0 tanGiDIE BSSELS™ ..............ovueeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeeeesee e seseees s 14.53% 13.45%
Common and preferred equity t0 total aSSELS........ciiviirereerecece e 18.90 17.59

@ Tangiblecommon equity to tangibl e assetsrepresentsanon-U.S. GAAPfinancial ratiothat isused by HSBC Finance Corporation management and applicable
rating agencies to evaluate capital adequacy and may differ from similarly named measures presented by other companies. See “Basis of Reporting” for
additional discussion onthe use of non-U.S. GAAPfinancial measuresand “ Reconciliationsof Non-U.S. GAAPFinancial Measuresto U.S. GAAPFinancial
Measures’ for quantitative reconciliations to the equivalent U.S. GAAP basis financial measure.

On March 26, 2014, the Federal Reserve informed HSBC North America, our indirect parent company, that it did not object to
HSBC North America's capital actions, including payment of dividends on outstanding preferred stock of HSBC North America
and its subsidiaries. The Federal Reserve informed HSBC North Americathat it did object to its capital plan submitted for the
2014 Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review ("CCAR") due to weaknesses in its capital planning processes. HSBC North
Americawill be required to resubmit its capital plan incorporating enhancementsto its processes. In the Federal Reserve's Dodd
Frank Act Stress Test resultsissued on March 24, 2014, HSBC North America had the strongest minimum total capital ratio, after
theimpact of the supervisory severely adverse scenario, compared to its peer CCAR firms, an indication of the capital and financial
strength of HSBC North America. The Dodd-Frank Act Stress Test results are based solely on hypothetical adverse scenarios and
should not be viewed or interpreted as forecasts of expected outcomes or capital adequacy or of the actual financial condition of
HSBC North America. Capital planning and stress testing for HSBC North America may impact our future capital and liquidity.
The Federal Reserve does not permit bank holding companiesto disclose confidential supervisory information including the reason
for an objection to a capital plan submitted for CCAR.
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2014 Funding Strategy The following table summarizes our current range of estimates for funding needs and sources for 2014:

Actual Jan. 1 Estimated April 1
through through Estimated Full Year
Mar. 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
(in billions)
Funding needs:
Term debt MatUritieS..........ccveeieeeeeiecceeeece e $ 2 $ 2 - % 3 3 4 - $ 5
Secured financing MatUrties........cocoovveievere e — 1 - 1 1- 1
Litigation DONG ........ccoceiiiiiiiiert e — — - 2 — - 2
Total fuNding NEEOS.......ccvrrirrrreeeree e $ 2 % 3 -5 6 $ 5-8% 8
Funding sources:
Net asset atrition®.............oooverrevrereeeeeeeee e, $ — $ 2-3$ 3% 2-% 3
Liquidation of short-term investments...........ccceeeereeeneennnn. 2 1) - — 1 - 2
Asset sales and transfers......ocoveereineeneee s — 2 - 2 2 - 2
OthEr@ ... — — - 1 — - 1
Total fuNdiNg SOUICES......c.cvririererrrriereeeeeeseseeeeeseeseeseens $ 2 % 3 -3 6 $ 5-8% 8

@ Net of receivable charge-offs.
@ Primarily reflects cash provided by operating activities and sales of REO properties.

For the remainder of 2014, the combination of cash generated from operations including balance sheet attrition, liquidation of
short-term investments and asset sales will generate the liquidity necessary to meet our maturing debt obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

On October 17, 2013, the District Court entered a partial final judgment against us in the Jaffe litigation in the amount of
approximately $2.5 hillion. We are currently appealing this judgment. In addition to the partial judgment that has been entered,
there also remains approximately $527 million, prior to imposition of pre-judgment interest, in claims that still are subject to
objections that have not yet been ruled upon by the District Court. In November 2013, we obtained a surety bond to secure a stay
of execution of the partial judgment while the appeal is on-going. The surety bond has aterm of three years and an annual fee of
$7 million. Toreducecostsassociated with posting cash coll ateral with theinsurance companies, the surety bond hasbeen guaranteed
by HSBC North America and we will pay HSBC North Americaafee of $6 million annualy for this guarantee. During the three
months ended March 31, 2014, werecorded expense of $2 million related to the surety bond and $1 million related to the guarantee
provided by HSBC North America. See Note 15, "L itigation and Regulatory Matters," in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for additional information.

Fair Value

Net income volatility arising from changes in either interest rate or credit components of the mark-to-market on debt designated
at fair value and related derivatives or changes in the fair value of receivables held for sale affects the comparability of reported
results between periods. Accordingly, our results for the three months ended March 31, 2014 should not be considered indicative
of the results for any future period.

Fair Value Hierarchy Accounting principles related to fair value measurements establish a fair value hierarchy structure that
prioritizesthe inputs to val uation techniques used to determine the fair value of an asset or liability (the “Fair Value Framework™).
The Fair Value Framework distinguishes between inputs that are based on observed market data and unobservable inputs that
reflect market participants assumptions. It emphasizes the use of valuation methodologies that maximize market inputs. For
financial instruments carried at fair value, the best evidence of fair value is aquoted price in an actively traded market (Level 1).
Where the market for afinancial instrument is not active, valuation techniques are used. The mgjority of valuation techniques use
market inputs that are either observable or indirectly derived from and corroborated by observable market data for substantially
thefull term of the financial instrument (Level 2). Because Level 1 and Level 2 instruments are determined by observable inputs,
less judgment is applied in determining their fair values. In the absence of observable market inputs, the financial instrument is
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valued based on val uation techniques that feature one or more significant unobservableinputs (Level 3). The determination of the
level of fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of an asset or aliability is classified often requires judgment.
We consider the following factors in developing the fair value hierarchy:

» whether the pricing quotations differ substantially among independent pricing services;

» whether the instrument is transacted in an active market with a quoted market price that is readily available;
* the size of transactions occurring in an active market;

* thelevel of bid-ask spreads;

*» alack of pricing transparency due to, among other things, market liquidity;

» whether only afew transactions are observed over asignificant period of time;

» whether the inputs to the valuation techniques can be derived from or corroborated with market data; and

* whether significant adjustments are made to the observed pricing information or model output to determine the fair
value.

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the reporting entity has the ability to access for the identical
assets or liahilities. A financial instrument is classified asaLevel 1 measurement if it islisted on an exchange or is an instrument
actively traded in the OTC market where transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume. Weregard financia instruments
that are listed on the primary exchanges of a country to be actively traded.

Level 2inputsareinputsthat are observable either directly or indirectly but do not qualify asLevel 1inputs. We generally classify
derivative contracts as well as our own debt issuance for which we have elected fair value option which are not traded in active
markets, as Level 2 measurements. These valuations are typically obtained from athird party valuation source which, in the case
of derivatives, includes valuations provided by an affiliate, HSBC Bank USA, National Association ("HSBC Bank USA").

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity
for the asset or liability. Level 3 inputsincorporate market participants assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by
market participantsin order to bear that risk. Wedevelop Level 3inputsbased onthebestinformationavailableinthecircumstances.
At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, our Level 3 assetsrecorded at fair value on anon-recurring basisincluded receivables
held for sale totaling $1,518 million and $2,047 million, respectively. At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had no
Level 3 assetsin our continuing operations recorded at fair value on arecurring basis.

Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on whether the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable. As such, the classification within the fair value hierarchy is dynamic and can be transferred to other
hierarchy levels in each reporting period. Transfers between leveling categories are assessed, determined and recognized at the
end of each reporting period.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 Measurements There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

Transfers Between Level 2 and Level 3 Measurements During the three months ended March 31, 2014, we transferred certain
real estate secured receivables held for sale totaling $902 million from Level 3to Level 2 prior to their salein the second quarter
of 2014. These real estate secured receivables were sold on May 1, 2014. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we
transferred our personal non-credit card receivable portfolio held for sale totaling $2,947 million from Level 3to Level 2 prior to
the sale of this portfolio on April 1, 2013.

See Note 14, “Fair Value Measurements,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further details including our
valuation techniques as well as the classification hierarchy associated with assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Risk Management

Overview Somedegree of risk isinherent in virtually all of our activities. Accordingly, we have comprehensive risk management
policies and practices in place to address potential risks, which include the following:

e Credit risk istherisk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations under
acontract. Our credit risk arises primarily from our lending and treasury activities;
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e Liquidity risk is the potential that an institution will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due or fund its
customers because of inadequate cash flow or the inability to liquidate assets or obtaining funding itself;

e Market risk istherisk that movementsin market risk factors, including interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates,
will reduce our income or the value of our portfolios;

* Interest rate risk isthe potential impairment of net interest income dueto mismatched pricing between assetsand liabilities
aswell aslossesin value due to rate movements;

e Operational risk istherisk of lossresulting frominadequate or failed internal processes, peopleor systemsor from external
events (including legal risk);

e Compliance risk is the risk that we fail to observe the letter and spirit of all relevant laws, codes, rules, regulations and
standards of good market practice causing us to incur fines, penalties and damage to our business and reputation;

* Reputational risk is the risk arising from a failure to safeguard our reputation by maintaining the highest standards of
conduct at all times and by being aware of issues, activities and associations that might pose a threat to the reputation of
HSBC locally, regionally or internationally;

»  Strategic risk istherisk that the businesswill fail toidentify, execute and react appropriately to opportunities and/or threats
arising from changes in the market, some of which may emerge over a number of years such as changing economic and
political circumstances, customer requirements, demographic trends, regul atory developments or competitor action;

e Security and Fraud risk is the risk to the business from terrorism, crime, incidents/disasters, cyber-attacks and groups
hostile to HSBC interests;

e Model risk istherisk of incorrect implementation or inappropriate application of models. Model risk occurs when amodel
does not properly capture risk(s) or perform functions as designed; and

»  Pension risk isthe risk that the cash flows associated with pension assets will not be enough to cover the pension benefit
obligationsrequiredto bepaid andincludestherisk that assumptionsused by our actuariesmay differ from actual experience.

The objective of our risk management system is to identify, measure, monitor and manage risks so that:
e potential costs can be weighed against the expected rewards from taking the risks;
e appropriate disclosures are made;
« adequate protections, capital and other resources can be put in place to weather al significant risks; and

« compliance with al relevant laws, codes, rules and regulations is ensured through staff education, adequate processes
and controls, and ongoing monitoring efforts.

See"Risk Management” in MD& A in our 2013 Form 10-K for amore compl ete discussion of the objectivesof our risk management
system aswell asour risk management policies and practices. Our risk management processinvolvesthe use of various simulation
models. We believe that the assumptions used in these models are reasonable, but actual events may unfold differently than what
isassumed in the models. Consequently, model results may be considered reasonabl e estimates, with the understanding that actual
results may vary significantly from model projections.

Credit Risk Management Day-to-day management of credit risk is administered by the HSBC Finance Corporation Chief Risk
Officer who reports to the HSBC North America Chief Risk Officer. The HSBC North America Chief Risk Officer reportsto the
HSBC North America Chief Executive Officer, Group Managing Director, and to the Group Managing Director and Chief Risk
Officer of HSBC. Our credit and portfolio management procedures currently focus on effective collections and customer account
management effortsfor each loan. Prior to the sale of our Card and Retail Servicesbusinesson May 1, 2012, our lending guidelines,
which delineate the credit risk we were willing to take and the rel ated terms, were specific not only for each product, but also took
into consideration various other factors including borrower characteristics, return on equity, capital deployment and our overall
risk appetite. We aso have specific policies to ensure the establishment of appropriate credit loss reserves on atimely basis to
cover probablelosses of principal, interest and fees. Our customer account management policies and practices are described under
the caption “Credit Quality - Customer Account Management Policies and Practices’ in MD&A. Also see Note 2, “ Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements,” in our 2013 Form 10-K for further discussion of our
policies surrounding credit loss reserves. Our policies and procedures are consistent with HSBC standards and are regularly
reviewed and updated both on an HSBC Finance Corporation and HSBC level. The credit risk function continuesto refine “ early
warning” indicators and reporting, including stress testing scenarios on the basis of current experience. These risk management
tools are embedded within our business planning process.

Counterparty credit risk is our primary exposure on our interest rate swap portfolio. Counterparty credit risk is the risk that the
counterparty to atransaction fails to perform according to the terms of the contract. At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
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all of our existing derivative contracts are with HSBC subsidiaries, making them our sole counterparty in derivative transactions.
Derivative agreements require that payments be made to, or received from, the counterparty when the fair value of the agreement
reaches a certain level. The fair value of our agreements with an affiliate counterparty required the affiliate to provide collateral
to usof $721 million and $811 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, al of which wasreceived in cash.
These amounts are offset against the fair value amount recognized for derivative instruments that have been offset under the same
master netting arrangement.

There has been no significant change in our approach to credit risk management since December 31, 2013.

Liquidity Risk Management Continued successin reducingthesizeof our run-off real estate secured receivableportfolio, including
the proceeds of receivables held for sale, will be the primary driver of our liquidity management process going forward. However,
lower operating cash flow asaresult of declining receivable balances may not provide sufficient cash to fully cover maturing debt
over the next four to five years. We currently do not expect third-party long-term debt to be a source of funding for usin the future
given the run-off nature of our business. We anticipate any required incremental funding will be integrated into the overall HSBC
North Americafunding plans and will be sourced through HSBC USA Inc., or will be obtained through direct support from HSBC
or its affiliates. HSBC has indicated it remains fully committed and has the capacity to continue to provide such support. Should
HSBC North Americacall upon usto execute certain strategiesin order to address capital and other considerations, our intent may
changeand aportion of thisrequired funding coul d be generated through additional sal esof selected receivablesfromour receivables
held for investment portfolio.

We project cash flow requirements and determine the level of liquid assets and available funding sources to have at our disposal,
with consideration givento anti ci pated balance sheet run-off, including liquidation of receivablesheld for sale, contingent liabilities
and the ability of HSBC USA Inc. to access wholesal e funding markets. In addition to base case projections, a stress scenario is
generated to simulate crisis conditions, assuming:

* no unsecured funding is available; and
* only affiliate committed credit facilities can be accessed.

Stressed coverageratios arederived from stressed cash flow scenario analyses and expressthe stressed cash inflowsasapercentage
of stressed cash outflows over one-month and three-month time horizons.

The stressed cash inflows include:

* inflows (net of assumed discount required for an accelerated liquidation) expected to be generated from the realization of
liquid assets;

*» contractual cash inflows from maturing assets that are not aready reflected as a utilization of liquid assets;
* planned asset sale proceeds; and
« affiliate committed credit facilities.

Our one-month and three-month time horizon stressed coverage ratio as of March 31, 2014 were 502 percent and 282 percent,
respectively. A stressed coverage ratio of 100 percent or higher reflects a positive cumulative cash flow under the stress scenario
being monitored. HSBC operating entities are required to maintain aratio of 100 percent or greater out to three months under the
combined market-wide and HSBC-specific stress scenario defined by the inherent liquidity risk categorization of the operating
entity concerned.

We aso maintain a liquidity management and contingency funding plan, which identifies certain potential early indicators of
liquidity problems, and actions that can be taken both initially and in the event of aliquidity crisis, to minimize the long-term
impact on our businesses. The liquidity contingency funding plan is reviewed annually and approved by the Risk Committee of
the Board of Directors. We recognize a liquidity crisis can either be specific to us, relating to our ability to meet our obligations
inatimely manner, or market-wide, caused by amacrorisk eventinthebroader financial system. A rangeof indicatorsaremonitored
to attain an early warning of any liquidity issues. Theseinclude widening of key spreads or indices used to track market volatility,
widening of our credit spreadsand higher borrowing costs. Intheevent of acashflow crisis, our objectiveistofund cash requirements
without HSBC affiliate access to the wholesal e unsecured funding market for at least 90 days. Contingency funding needswill be
satisfied primarily through liquidation of short term investments, sale of loans or secured borrowing using the mortgage portfolio
as collateral. We maintain a liquid asset buffer consisting of cash and short-term liquid assets.

In January 2013, the Basel Committee issued revised Basel 111 liquidity rules and HSBC North America is in the process of
evaluating the Basel 111 framework for liquidity risk management. The framework consists of two liquidity metrics: the liquidity
coverage ratio (“LCR"), designed to be a short-term measure to ensure banks have sufficient high-quality liquid assets to cover
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net stressed cash outflows over the next 30 days, and the net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), which isalonger term measure with
a12-month time horizon to ensure a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities. The ratios are subject to an observation
period and are expected to become established standards, subject to phase-in periods, by 2015 and 2018, respectively. Based on
the results of the observation periods, the Basel Committee may make further changes.

In October 2013, the Federal Reserve, the OCC and the FDIC issued for public comment aruleto introduce aquantitative liquidity
requirement in the United States, applicable to certain large banking institutions, including HSBC North America. The proposed
LCR is generally consistent with the Basel Committee guidelines, but is more stringent in several areas including the range of
assetsthat will qualify ashigh-quality liquid assetsand the assumed rate of outflowsof certain kinds of funding. Under the proposal,
U.S. institutionswould begin the LCR transition period on January 1, 2015 and would be required to be fully compliant by January
1, 2017, as opposed to the Basel Committee's requirement to be fully compliant by January 1, 2019. The proposed rule does not
address the NSFR requirement, which is currently in an international observation period. Based on the results of the observation
period, the Basel Committee and U.S. banking regulators may make further changes. U.S. regulators are expected to issue a
proposed rulemaking implementing the NSFR in advance of its scheduled global implementation in 2018.

We believe that HSBC North Americawill meet these liquidity requirements prior to their formal introduction. The actual impact
will be dependent on the specific final regulations issued by the U.S. regulators to implement these standards. HSBC Finance
Corporation may need to changeitsliquidity profileto support HSBC North America's compliance with any future final rules. We
are unable at thistime, however, to determine the extent of changes we will need to make to our liquidity position, if any.

Maintaining our credit ratings is an important part of maintaining our overall liquidity profile. As indicated by the major rating
agencies, our credit ratings are directly dependent upon the continued support of HSBC. A credit rating downgrade would increase
future borrowing costs only for new debt obligations, if any. As discussed above, we do not currently expect to need to raise funds
fromtheissuanceof third party debt going forward, but instead any required funding hasbeenintegratedinto HSBC North America's
funding plans and will be sourced through HSBC USA Inc. or through direct support from HSBC or its affiliates. HSBC has
historically provided significant capital in support of our operations and has indicated that they remain fully committed and have
the capacity to continue that support.

The following table summarizes our credit ratings at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

Standard & Moody’s
Poor’s Investors
Corporation Service Fitch, Inc.
As of March 31, 2014:
S 0] e = o A Baal A+
Senior SUBOrdiNGEd dEDL.........c.ooieieiieece et sre e A- Baa2 A
SerieS B Preferred SLOCK ..o e BBB+ Baa3 -
As of December 31, 2013:
TS 1T 0 g0 (< o) AP TRR A Baal A+
Senior SUBOrdiNated dEDL...........coieieiiiee e st A- Baa2 A
SerieS B Preferred SLOCK ..o e BBB+ Baa3 -

As of March 31, 2014, there were no pending actions from these rating agencies in terms of changes to the ratings presented in
the table above for HSBC Finance Corporation.

Other conditions that could negatively affect our liquidity include unforeseen capital requirements, a strengthening of the U.S.
dollar, a slowdown in the rate of attrition of our balance sheet and an inability to obtain expected funding from HSBC and its
subsidiaries.

See “Liquidity and Capital Resources’ for further discussion of our liquidity position.
There has been no significant change in our approach to liquidity risk management since December 31, 2013.

Market Risk Management Wemaintainan overall risk management strategy that primarily usesstandard, over-the-counter interest
rate and currency derivative financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to fluctuations caused by changesin interest rates and
currency exchange rates. We managed our exposure to interest rate risk primarily through the use of interest rate swaps. We do
not use leveraged derivative financial instruments.

We manage our exposure to foreign currency exchangerisk primarily through the use of currency swaps. Our financia statements
are affected by movementsin exchange rates on our foreign currency denominated debt.
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There has been no significant change in our approach to market risk management since December 31, 2013.

Interest rate risk A principal part of our management of interest rate risk is to monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest
income under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling). We aim, through our management of interest rate risk, to
mitigate the effect of prospective interest rate movements which could reduce future net interest income, while weighing the cost
of such hedging activities on the current net revenue stream.

Projected net interest income sensitivity figures represented the effect of the pro forma movements in net interest income based
on the projected yield curve scenarios and the current interest rate risk profile. This effect, however, does not incorporate actions
which would probably be taken by us to mitigate the effect of interest rate risk.

The table below sets out the effect on our future net interest income of an incremental 25 basis points paralld rise or fal in rates
at the beginning of each quarter over a 12 month period. Rates are not assumed to become negative in the down shock scenario
which may effectively result in non-parallel shock. Assuming no management actions, a sequence of such rises would increase
planned net interest income by $16 million for the twelve monthsfollowing March 31, 2014 (increase by $13 million for thetwelve
months following December 31, 2013), while a sequence of such falls would decrease planned net interest income by $7 million
for the twelve months following March 31, 2014 (decrease by $7 million for the twelve months following December 31, 2013).
These amounts incorporate the effect of any option features in the underlying exposures.

Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

At March 31, 2014:
Projected change in net interest income (reflects projected rate movements on January 1):
Change resulting from a gradual 25 basis point increase in interest rates at the beginning of

<= os o [0 = TS SORRPSTPN $ 16 1.1%
Change resulting from a gradual 25 basis point decrease in interest rates at the beginning of
BACK UAITEN ... etttk b et s 7 (.5)

At December 31, 2013:

Projected change in net interest income (reflects projected rate movements on January 1):
Change resulting from a gradual 25 basis point increase in interest rates at the beginning of

== o o [0 = TSSO SRRPSTPN $ 13 8%
Change resulting from a gradual 25 basis point decrease in interest rates at the beginning of
EACH UAITET ... s (7 (.4

The increase in net interest income following a hypothetical rate rise as compared with December 31, 2013 reflects updates of
economic stress scenarios including housing price index assumptions, regular adjustments of asset and liability behavior
assumptions and model enhancements.

A principal consideration supporting the margin at risk analysisisthe projected prepayment of loan balances for a given economic
scenario. Individual loan underwriting standards in combination with housing valuations, |oan modification program, changes to
our foreclosure processes and macroeconomic factors related to available mortgage credit are the key assumptions driving these
prepayment projections. Whilewe have utilized anumber of sourcesto refinethese projections, we cannot currently project precise
prepayment rates with a high degree of certainty in all economic environments given recent, significant changesin both subprime
mortgage underwriting standards and property val uations across the country.

There has been no significant change in our approach to interest rate risk management since December 31, 2013.

Operational Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to operational risk management since
December 31, 2013.

Compliance Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to compliance risk management since
December 31, 2013.

Reputational Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to reputational risk management since
December 31, 2013.

Strategic Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to strategic risk management since December
31, 2013.
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Security and Fraud Risk Management Therehasbeen no significant changein our approach to security and fraud risk management
since December 31, 2013.

Model Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to model risk management since December 31,
2013.

Pension Risk Management There has been no significant change in our approach to pension risk management since December
31, 2013.
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Reconciliations of Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measures to U.S. GAAP Financial Measures

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (“U.S. GAAP”). In addition to the U.S. GAAP financial results reported in our consolidated financial statements, MD&A
includes reference to the following information which is presented on anon-U.S. GAAPbasis:

IFRSs Segment Results A non-U.S. GAAP measure of reporting results in accordance with IFRSs. For areconciliation of IFRSs
results to the comparable owned basis amounts, see Note 12, “Business Segments,” in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Equity Ratios In managing capital, we develop targets for tangible common equity to tangible assets. This ratio target is based
onrisksinherent in the portfolio, the projected operating environment and rel ated risks, and any acquisition objectives. We, certain
rating agencies and our credit providing banks monitor ratios excluding the equity impact of unrealized gains losses on cash flow
hedging instruments, postretirement benefit plan adjustments and unrealized gains on investments as well as subseguent changes
in fair value recognized in earnings associated with debt and the related derivatives for which we elected the fair value option.
Our targets may change from time to time to accommodate changesin the operating environment or other considerations such as
those listed above.

Quantitative Reconciliations of Non-U.S. GAAP Financial Measures to U.S. GAAP Financial Measures The following table
provides areconciliation for selected equity ratios:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Tangible common equity:

Common Shareholder’S BQUITY ... s $ 5169 $ 5,086
EXCIUTE: ..ot R e r et r e
Fair value option adjUSIMENL ... 77 (99)
Unrealized (gains) losses on cash flow hedging inStruments............ccoceveveveneneseeceesesieeieenens 83 97
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments, NEt Of TaX.........cccverrerrierereeee e 11 11
Tangible COMMON EQUITY ..ot s sttt s $ 5186 $ 5,095
Tangible shareholders’ equity:
Tangible COMMON EQUITY ....coveriiuiririereee et st st s $ 5186 $ 5,095
= L= =0 I (0 U S 1,575 1,575
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of HSBC Finance Capital Trust IXY.................... 1,000 1,000
Tangible shareholders’ EQUITY.........co e e $ 7761 9 7,670
Tangible assets:
QL0 = ST SRS SSR $ 35,686 $ 37,872
Exclude:
INEANGIDIE BSSELS...... e et e st e r e e e ae e sreeae e e — —
Derivative fINANCIal 8SSELS.......cccviiiirereserere ettt st te e e e e e e e e e enens — —
TANGIDI@ ASSELS.......eeeeeeece et bbb bbb b et e et n s $ 3568 $ 37,872
Equity ratios:
Common and preferred equity t0 total 8SSELS........cviiririeiireire e 18.90% 17.59%
Tangible common equity to tangible @SSELS........coveieieieeeerer e 14.53 13.45
Tangible shareholders’ equity to tangible aSSELS.........cociciieie i 21.75 20.25

@ Preferred securitiesissued by certain non-consolidated trusts are considered tangible equity in thetangible sharehol ders equity to tangible assetsratio calcul ation
because of their long-term subordinated nature and the ability to defer dividends.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Information required by this Item isincluded in the following sections of Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations: “Liquidity and Capital Resources’ and “Risk Management.”

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain a system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by HSBC Finance Corporation in the reports we file or submit under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a
timely basis. Board of Directors, operating through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of independent outside
directors, provides oversight to our financial reporting process.

We conducted an evaluation, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by thisreport. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by thisreport so asto alert them in atimely fashion to material information required to be disclosed in reports
we file under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There hasbeen no changein our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2014 that has materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

See Note 15, “Litigation and Regulatory Matters,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements beginning on page 37
for our legal proceedings disclosure, which isincorporated herein by reference.

Item 5. Other Information.

Disclosures Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act requires
disclosure of certain activities or transactions relating to Iran or to persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions programs relating
to terrorism, or the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction. Disclosure isrequired even if the activities are not prohibited by
U.S. law or if they are conducted outside the United States by non-U.S. affiliates in compliance with local laws and regulations.

In order to comply with this requirement, HSBC has requested relevant information from its affiliates globally. During the period
covered by thisForm 10-Q, HSBC Finance Corporation did not engagein any activitiesor transactionsrequiring discl osure pursuant
to Section 13(r). The following activities conducted by our non-U.S. affiliates are disclosed in response to Section 13(r):

Loans in repayment Between 2001 and 2005, the Project and Export Finance (“PEF") division of HSBC arranged or participated
in a portfolio of loans to Iranian energy companies and banks. All of these |loans were guaranteed by European and Asian export
credit agencies, and they have varied maturity dateswith final maturity in 2018. For thoseloansthat remain outstanding, the HSBC
Group continues to seek repayment in accordance with its obligations to the supporting export credit agencies and, in all cases,
with appropriate regulatory approvals. Details of these loans follow.

The HSBC Group has 13 loans outstanding to an Iranian petrochemical and energy company. These loans are supported by the
official Export Credit Agencies of thefollowing countries: the United Kingdom, France, Germany, Spain, The Netherlands, South
Korea and Japan. The HSBC Group continues to seek repayments from the company under the existing loans in accordance with
the original maturity profiles. All repayments made by the Iranian company have received a license or an authorization from
relevant authorities. Repayments have been received under a number of the loans in the first quarter of 2014.

Bank Mélli and Bank Saderat acted as sub-participants in three of the aforementioned loans. In the first quarter of 2014, the
repayments due to these banks under the loan agreements were paid into frozen accounts under licenses or authorizations from
relevant European governments.
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In 2002, the HSBC Group provided aloan to Bank Tejarat with a guarantee from the Government of Iran to fund the construction
of a petrochemical plant undertaken by a U.K. contractor. This loan was supported by the U.K. Export Credit Agency and is
administered under license from the relevant European Government. A repayment was received in the first quarter of 2014. This
loan has now matured, but claims for non-payment are still being processed with the U.K. Export Credit Agency.

The HSBC Group a so maintains sub-participationsin loans provided by other international banksto Bank Tejarat and Bank Mellat
with guarantees from the Government of Iran. These sub-participations were supported by the Export Credit Agencies of Italy,
The Netherlands and Spain. In relation to Bank Mellat, the HSBC Group has two sub-participations, both of which matured in the
first quarter of 2014. The repayments due under these facilities have not been received from Bank Méellat in the first quarter of
2014 and claimsfor non-payment are being processed with the supporting Export Credit Agencies. In relation to Bank Tejarat, the
HSBC Group hastwo sub-participations; one facility matured in the first quarter of 2014 and the second will maturein June 2014.
The payments due under the sub-participations were not received from Bank Tejarat during the first quarter of 2014, and claims
are being processed and settled by the relevant European Export Credit Agencies. Licenses and relevant authorizations have been
obtained from the competent authorities of the European Union in respect of the transactions.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group generated by these loans in repayment for the first quarter of 2014, which includes
interest and fees, was approximately $393,000. Estimated net profit for the HSBC Group during the first quarter of 2014 was
approximately $256,000. Whilethe HSBC Group intendsto continueto seek repayment under the existing loans, it does not intend
to extend any new loans.

Legacy contractual obligations related to guarantees Between 1996 and 2007, the HSBC Group provided guaranteesto anumber
of itsnon-lranian customersin Europe and the Middle East for various business activitiesin Iran. In anumber of cases, the HSBC
Group issued counter indemnities in support of guarantees issued by Iranian banks as the Iranian beneficiaries of the guarantees
required that they be backed directly by Iranian banks. The Iranian banks to which the HSBC Group provided counter indemnities
included Bank Tejarat, Bank Mélli, and the Bank of Industry and Mine.

The HSBC Group has worked with relevant regulatory authorities to obtain licenses where required and ensure compliance with
laws and regulations while seeking to cancel the guarantees and counter indemnities. None were canceled during the first quarter
of 2014 and approximately 20 remain outstanding.

Therewas no measurabl e gross revenue to the HSBC Group for thefirst quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group does not all ocate direct
costs to fees and commissions and, therefore, has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group is seeking to cancel
all relevant guarantees and does not intend to provide any new guaranteesinvolving Iran.

Other relationships with Iranian banks Activity related to U.S.-sanctioned Iranian banks not covered el sewherein this disclosure
includes the following:

* The HSBC Group maintains a frozen account in the U.K. for an Iranian-owned, U.K.-regulated financial institution. In
April 2007, the U.K. government issued a license to allow us to handle certain transactions (operational payments and
settlement of pre-sanction transactions) for thisinstitution. In December 2013, the U.K. government issued anew license
to allowing the HSBC Group to deposit certain check payments. There was some licensed activity in the first quarter of
2014.

* The HSBC Group acts as the trustee and administrator for two pension schemes involving three employees of a U.S.-
sanctioned Iranian bank in Hong Kong. Under the rules of these schemes, the HSBC Group accepts contributions from
the Iranian bank each month and all ocates the funds into the pension accounts of the three Iranian bank employees. The
HSBC Group runs and operates these pension schemesin accordance with Hong Kong laws and regulations. During the
first quarter of 2014, one of the two schemes was terminated and the only member and accrued benefits were transferred
into the other scheme. The HSBC Group continues to act as trustee and administrator for the remaining pension scheme.

* 1n 2010, the HSBC Group closed its representative office in Iran. The HSBC Group maintains alocal account with an
Iranian bank in Tehran in order to facilitate residual activity related to the closure. The HSBC Group has been authorized
by the U.S. Government (and by relevant non-U.S. regulators) to make these types of payments in connection with the
liquidation and deregistration of the representative officein Tehran. In thefirst quarter of 2014, the HSBC Group initiated
a payment of $55,000 to this account to settle taxation assessments as well as to pay outstanding and future accounting,
legal, and administrative related expenses associated with the closure.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group in the first quarter of 2014 for al Iranian bank-related activity described in this
section, which includes fees and/or commissions, was $147,000. The HSBC Group does naot allocate direct costs to fees and
commissions and therefore has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group intends to continue to wind down this
Iranian bank-related activity and not enter into any new such activity.
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Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13224 The HSBC Group maintainsafrozen personal account for anindividual sanctioned
under Executive Order 13224, and by the U.K. and the U.N. Security Council. Activity on thisaccount in thefirst quarter of 2014
was permitted by alicense issued by the U.K. There was no measurable gross revenue or net profits generated in the first quarter
of 2014.

The HSBC Group undertook a review of an account held for a customer in the U.K. in the first quarter of 2014 and identified a
domestic currency payment in the second quarter of 2013 from an entity designated under Executive Order 13224 in 2003. The
HSBC Group is closing the account.

Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13382 The HSBC Group held an account for a customer in France that was sanctioned
under Executive Order 13382 in thefirst quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group is closing the account. There was no measurable gross
revenue or net profits generated to the HSBC Group in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group also maintains an account for
acustomer in the U.K. for whom the HSBC Group processed a payment received from the same sanctioned entity. The payment
related to an invoice raised prior to designation but was made five days after designation.

Other activity The HSBC Group holds alease of branch premisesin London which it entered into in 2005 and is due to expirein
2020. Thelandlord of the premisesisowned by the Iranian government and isa specially designated national under U.S. sanctions
programs. Pursuant to the lease, the HSBC Group made payments of approximately $320,000 during 2013. The HSBC Group
made one payment of approximately $50,000 in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group is considering all options available
under the lease. There was no gross revenue or net profit to HSBC.

Frozen accounts and transactions The HSBC Group maintains several accountsthat are frozen under rel evant sanctions programs
and on which no activity, except aslicensed or otherwise authorized, took place during thefirst quarter of 2014. In thefirst quarter
of 2014, the HSBC Group also froze payments where required under relevant sanctions programs. There was no gross revenue or
net profit to the HSBC Group.

Item 6. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibitsincluded in this Report:

12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.
31 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document®®
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document®®
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document®®
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document®®
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document®®
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document™®

@ Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months
ended March 31, 2014, formatted in eXentsible Business Reporting Language (“ XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (L oss) for the three months ended March
31, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsfor the three monthsended March
31, 2014 and 2013, and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

@ Asprovidedin Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thisinformation shall be not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 11 and 12 of the SecuritiesAct of 1933,
as amended, and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability under those sections.
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Table of contents 2
Tangible common equity to tangible assets 66
Tax expense 51
Troubled debt restructures 12, 55
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, HSBC Finance Corporation has duly caused this report to

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Datee May 7, 2014
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Michael A. Reeves
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit Index
12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.
31 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document™®
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document®®
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document®®
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document®®
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document®™®@
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document™®®

(6]

@

Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months
ended March 31, 2014, formatted in eXentsible Business Reporting Language (“XBRL") interactive datafiles: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (L oss) for the three months ended March
31, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsfor the three monthsended March
31, 2014 and 2013, and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Asprovidedin Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thisinformation shall be not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 11 and 12 of the SecuritiesAct of 1933,
as amended, and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability under those sections.
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EXHIBIT 12

HSBC FINANCE CORPORATION
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS (LOSS) TO FIXED CHARGES AND TO
COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Income (10SS) from CONtINUING OPEIELIONS........c.ciiiiiiiiie i $ 112 $ 304
INCOME taX (EXPENSE) DENEFIL ..ottt 17 (152)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax (eXpense) BENEfit...........c i 95 456
Fixed charges:
IEEIESE EXPEISE. ....coeiuieieciii s 274 379
INEErESE POMION OF FENTAISY ........ooeeoeeee e e s se e s e eee s e eeeseseeeseseesseses s see s ees s ees s ees s see s eseseeeseeseeseesessereees 1 1
TOtEl FIXEO CRBIGES. ... 275 380
Total earnings from continuing Operations @S AEfINE............cciiiiiiii e $ 370 $ 836
R0 Of EAMINGS O FIXEA CHBIGES ........oooevveeeeeeeeeeeseseseeeseesssseseessessssseseessesssssesesssessssesesssesssssssesssessseesssssssssseesesssessseseesssnssseeneee T 135 220
PIEFEITEU SIOCK GIVITENAS™...........ooveeee e seesssieeeeee e seseees 0 $ 8 $ 48
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred Stock dividends...........covieirrciiicnc e 1.15 1.95

(1) Representsone-third of rentals, which approximates the portion representing interest.
(2) Preferred stock dividends are grossed up to their pretax equivalents.



EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, Patrick J. Burke, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Finance Corporation, certify that:

1
2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of HSBC Finance Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly presentin all
material respectsthefinancial condition, resultsof operationsand cash flowsof theregistrant asof, and for, the periodspresented
in this report;

Theregistrant’sother certifying officer and | areresponsiblefor establishing and maintai ning discl osure control sand procedures
(asdefinedin ExchangeAct Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (asdefinedin Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and proceduresto be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b. designed suchinternal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c. evauated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financia reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materialy affect, the
registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a. dl significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have asignificant rolein the
registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s/ PATRICK J. BURKE

Patrick J. Burke
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer




Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Michael A. Reeves, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC Finance Corporation, certify that:

1
2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of HSBC Finance Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, thisreport does not contain any untrue statement of amaterial fact or omit to state amaterial
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financia condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financia
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and proceduresto be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, ismade known to us by otherswithin those entities, particularly during the period
in which thisreport is being prepared;

b. designed such interna control over financia reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evauated theeffectivenessof theregistrant’sdisclosure controlsand procedures and presented in thisreport
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed inthisreport any changein theregistrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent eval uation of internal control

over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. dl significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect theregistrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
rolein theregistrant’sinternal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s MICHAEL A. REEVES

Michael A. Reeves
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth bel ow isbeing submitted in connection with the HSBC Finance Corporation (the “ Company”) Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the* Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities ExchangeAct of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Patrick J. Burke, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of HSBC Finance Corporation.

Date: May 7, 2014

/sl PATRICK J. BURKE

Patrick J. Burke
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer




Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth bel ow isbeing submitted in connection with the HSBC Finance Corporation (the “* Company”) Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the“Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act™) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Michael A. Reeves, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of HSBC Finance Corporation.

Date: May 7, 2014

/s MICHAEL A. REEVES

Michael A. Reeves
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

These certifications accompany each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to
the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC Finance Corporation for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Signed originals of these written statements required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been provided to
HSBC Finance Corporation and will be retained by HSBC Finance Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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